
SANKET R SHAH & ASSOCIATES 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Citywood Builders Priv.ate Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

1) Opinion: 

Chartered Accountants 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statement~ of Citywood Builders Priv.ate 
limited ('the Company'), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2020, the statement of 
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the lnd AS financial statements, 
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as "lnd AS financial statemenn, 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020 and its financial performance 
including other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date. 

2) Basis of Opinion: 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the lnd AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

3) Emphasis of Matter: 
1. Attention is invited to Note No. 3.1 (A) of the financial statements with regarding recognition of 

expense for ongoing projects which is based upon estimated project costs, as per the judgement 
of the management, which have been relied upon by us, these b~ing technical matters. 

2. Attention is invited to Note No. 31 of the financial statements with regard to reliance placed by 
the auditors on certification received from the management with regard to the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities given by the Company. 

3. Attention is invited to Note No. 32 of the financial statements with regards to balances that are 
subject to confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments if any. 

4. Attention is invited to Notes the Company has not charged interest on loans and advances given 
to various entities in which the Company has a business inter~ 
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4) Other Information 
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other infonnation comprises the infonnation included in the Company's annual report, but does not 
include the standalone financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 

5) Responsibility of Management's for the lnd AS Financial Statements: 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"} with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial statements 
that give a true and fQir view of the financial position, financial performance (including other 
comprehensive income}, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 as amended, and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the · assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the lnd AS financial ' statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the lnd AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

6) Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements: 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expeg~ifl~e the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. <~~~-;. / · .. \(:}~. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identity and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3){i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the lnd AS financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the lnd AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the lnd AS financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 



7) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 rthe Order"} issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the 

statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; 

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of ~e directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2020. from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

~ with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
Annexure B; and 

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 

financial statements. 
ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, and 
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14th October, 2020 

UDIN: 20152369AAAAGL3903 



Annexure· A to the Independent Auditors' Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report 
to the members of Citywood Builders Private Limited of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report that: 

(i) a. The Company has maintained a register of fixed assets, giving description and location of its 
assets; and 
b. As explained to us, the Company has physically verified its fixed assets during the year; 

(ii) a. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of the verification is reasonable. 
b. In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of Inventory followed by the 
management are reasonable and ad~quate in relation to the size of the company and the nature 
of its business; 
c. On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, we are of the opinion that, the 
company is not maintaining proper project-wise records. The value of inventory has shown of 
both projects. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to its 
book records were n<;>t maintained. · 

(iii) The Company has granted· unsecured loan to one company covered under the register 
maintained under Section 189 of the Act; 
a. The terms and condition of the loan are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the 

Company, and 
b. the schedule of repayment of principal on demand and the loan is interest free loan; 
c. As per the terms and conditions of the arrangement, the amount of the loan is not overdue; 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, 
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(vi) The Central Govem!llent has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. 

(vii) a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion the Company is generally regular in depositing statutory dues, 
including income-tax and other material statutory dues, wherever applicable, with the 
appropriate authorities. 

The extent of no arrears of statutory dues outstanding at the balance sheet date, for a period 
exceeding six months from the date they become payable. 
b. On the basis of our examination of documents and records of the Company, and explanation 
provided to us, there were disputed dues in respect of Income Tax as at the Balance Sheet date 
which have not been deposited on acco ispute are as follows: 
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Name of Section Amount not deposited on Financial Details of Pending 
Statue account of demand (In INR)* Year Proceedings 

Income Tax 143(3) 1,53,13,250/- 2009-10 The proceedings before High 
Act, 1961 Court (Preferred by Department). 

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from eny financial institution, banks, 
government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is 
not applicable. 

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or 
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3{xii) of the Order is nut applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in 
the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 
the Company. 

{xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 

"-"' the Company. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 135703W_,r~~~~": . 
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M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14th October, 2020 

UDIN: 20152369AAAAGL3903 



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(t) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our 
report to the members of Citywood Builders Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

1) Opinion: 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Citywood Builders Private 
Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31 51 March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the" Guidance Note"). 

2) Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls: 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing an~ maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

3) Auditor's Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial repo · nd their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial r ;- H ed obtaining an understanding of internal *' ~L~l\ I~ i~~ ~.r.1 \ ':..'. 
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financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

4) Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance r~garding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that: 
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairty reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tim_ely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

5) Inherent Limitations of.lntemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14th October, 2020 

UDIN: 20152369AAAAGL3903 · 



CITYWOOI) BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET ASAT 31ST MARCH1 2020 
Particulars Note As at As at 

No. 3151 March, 2020 3151 March, 2019 

ASSETS 
Non·Current Assets 
(a) · Property, plant and equipment 4 49,751 124,167 
(b) Current tax assets (Net) 5 6,850,651 5,047,244 
(c) Other non-current assets 6 26,990,194 26,990,194 
Total Non-Current assets 33!890,597 32,161!605 

Current assets 
(a) Inventories 7 1,014,456,943 998,226,698 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade receivables 8 121,342,204 143,378,584 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 161,346,982 106,359,040 
(iii) Bank balances other than (iii) above 10 898,742 846,469 
(iv) Other financial assets 11 18,259,661 16,912,473 

(c) Other current assets 6 86906,853 94401,143 
Total Current Assets 1,403,211,385 1,360,124,407 
Total assets 1,437,101,982 1,392,286,012 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 12 100,000 100,000 
(b) Other equity 13 {239,507!14!] {216!594!164) 
Total Equity (239!407,147} (216!494,164} 

Liabilit ies 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 14 137,393,081 150,428,966 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 15 12,819,627 12,004!233 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 150,212,708 162,433!199 

Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 16 6,993,319 6,993,319 
(ii) Trade payables 17 193,554,891 187,723,391 
(iii) Other financial liabilities 15 1,052,230,099 1,046,892,308 

(b) Other current liabilities 18 273,518,112 204,737,959 
Total Current Liabilities 1!526,296,421 1,446,346! 977 
Total Lla blllties 1,676,509,129 1,608, 780!176 
Total Equity and Liabilities 1!437!101,982 1!392,286,012 

The at:companying notes are an integral part of Financia l Statements. 

As per our report of even date 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES 

Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14th October, 2020 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
Particulars 

INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

EXPENSES 

Total Income 

Note 

No. 

19 
20 

Costs Of Construction/ Development 21 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-
Progress 22 
Employee Benefits Expense 23 
Finance Costs 24 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 25 
Other Expenses 26 

Total Expenses 

Profit I (Loss) before exceptional items and tax 
Exceptional Items 
Profit I (Loss) before tax 

Tax Expense 
Current Tax 
Deferred tax 

Profit I (Loss) After Tax 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of ' 101- each 
Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14th October, 2020 

27 

Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

36,620,104 
1,409,261 

38,029,365 

17,622,715 
3,530,760 

(16,663,576) 
16,750,568 

74,415 
39,627,466 

60,942,348 

(22,912,983) 

(22,912,983) 

(22,912,983) 

(22,912,983) 

(2,291) 

Year ended 
31st March, 2019 

289,914,388 
6,345,248 

296,259,636 

132,127,880 
4,646,744 

260,460,788 
11,226,249 

312,822 
108,670 

22,747,898 
431,631,051 

(135,371,414) 

(135,371,414) 

(135,371,414) 

(135,371,414) 

(13,537) 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

DIN: 03140671 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
Particulars 

I. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACfiVITIES 

Net profit/ [loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add 1 (Less) : 
On account of adoption oflnd AS 115 

Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation 

Operating proHt before working capital changes 

Add 1 (Less) : 
(lncrease)IDecrease in inventories 
(lncrease)IDecrease in Trade Receivables and Other 
Receivables (Including Current Investment) 

Increase I(Decrease)in trade and other payables 
Increasei(Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 

Direct taxes paid 

Net cash now from operating activities 

II. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INVESTING ACfiVITIES 
lnnow I (Outflow) on account of: 

(Increase)IDecrease in Loans and advances 
Net cash now from investing activities 

Ill. CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

lnnow I (Outnow} on account of: 

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowing 
Finance costs paid 

Net cash now from financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II + Ill ) 
Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Components of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 9) 
V Cash on hand 

Balances with banks 
- in Current accounts 
- in Deposits with maturity of less than six months 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

SANKET 

Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14th October. 2020 

Year Ended 

31"tMarch, 2020 

(22,912,983) 

74,415 
(22,838,568) 

(16,230,244) 

28,131,207 
79,949,445 

815,394 

(1,803,407) 
90,862,394 
68,023,826 

(13,035,885) 

(13,035,885) 

54,987,942 

106,359,040 
161,346,982 

670,269 

152,188,413 
8,488,300 

161,3461982 

Year Ended 

31"' March, 2019 

(135,371,414) 

62,583,066 
312,822 
108 670 

(72,366,856) 

70,292,348 

(25,933,080) 
279,156,954 

5,404,269 

(2,538,783) 

32613811708 
25410141852 

2,538,783 
215381783 

(161,979,172) 
~312,822l 

(162,291,994) 

94,261,640 

12,097,401 
10613591040 

653,425 

102,895,909 
2 809 706 

10613591040 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

JASM~HOD 
DIRECTOR 

ECTOR 

DIN: 03140671 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
in · 

Particulars Equity Share Retained Earnings Total 
Capital 

Balance atl11 March, 2017 100,000 (138,652,597) ( 138,552,597) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (5,153,219) (5,153,219) 

Balance at 3111 March, 2018 100,000 (143,805,816) (143,705,816) 

Balance at t• April, 2018 100,000 (143,805,816) ( 143,705,816) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (135,371,414) (135,371,414) 

Balance at 31" March, 2019 100,000 (216,594,164) (216,494,164} 

Balance at 1st April, 2019 100.000 (216,594,164) (216,494,164) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (22,912,983) (22, 9tz, 983} 

Balance at 31st March, 2020 100,000 (239,507,147) (239,407,147} 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of Financial Statements. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR SANKET R. SHAH & ASSOCIATES FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 

SANK 

Membership No. 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 14th October, 2020 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE WttiTED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Citywood Builders Private Limited is a private limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under The Companies Act, 1956. 
The Company is engaged in real estate business of construction and development of residential and commercial projects and other 
real estate project etc. 

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 12th October, 2020. 

2. STANDARDS, NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED EARLY BY THE COMPANY 
Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the financial statements is 
provided below. 

lnd AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (Jnd AS 115) 
There is one new standard issued by MCA (not yet effective) for revenue recognition which overhau Is the existing revenue 
recognition standards including lnd AS 18- Revenue and lnd AS 11- Construction contracts. The new standard provides a control­
based revenue recognition model and provides a live step application principle to be followed for revenue recognition: 

i) Identification ofthe contracts with the customer 
ii) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract 
iii) Determination of the transaction price 
iv) Allocation of transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step ii) 
v) Recognition of revenue when performance obligation is satisfied. 

The effective date ofthe new standard has not yet been notified by the MCA. The management is yet to assess the impact ofthis new 
standard on the Company's financial statements. 

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {lndAS) under the historical cost 
convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') (to the extent notified). The lnd AS are prescribed under Section 133 ofthe Act read with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, Z016. 

The Company has adopted all the lndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with lndAS 101 First time 
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in 
India as prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the 
previous GAAP. Reconciliations and descriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in note 40. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a 
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy thereto in use. 

a) Historical Cost Convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following: 

i. certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value 
ii. assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 
iii. defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

b) Current versus non-current dasslfication 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non current classification. An asset is 
classified as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• Cash or cash equivalent unless r~stricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
A liability Is classified as current when: 
It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

• There is no unconditional r ight to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation In cash and cash 
equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

c) Foreign currency translation 
Functional and presentation currency 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional and presentation currency ofthe 
Company. 

3.1 REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reHects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. 

A. Revenue from sale of properties/ development rights 
Revenue from the sale of properties I flats I commercial premises I units in a project are recognised when the company 
satisfies performance obligations at a point in time i.e when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on giving 
soft possession for fit outs or actual possession to the customer. 

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price 
concessions, returns and financing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes 
collected from customers on behalf of the government. 

Amount received as Advance from customers on Invoicing I raising demand letters are classified as Contract Liabilities. The 
company's right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the company has transferred to the customer are 
classified as receivables. 

The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from April 1, 2018. lnd AS 115 
establishes principles for reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows 
arising from the contracts with its customers and replaces lnd AS 18 "Revenue· and Guidance Note on "Accounting for Real 
Estate transactions· for entities to whom lnd AS is applicable. The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 using the modified 
retrospective approach to contracts that were not completed as at April 01, 2018 and has given impact oflnd AS 115 application 
by debit to Retained Earnings as at the said date by Rs. 10,37,71,371/- pertaining to recognition of revenue based on 
satisfaction of performance obligations at a point in time. 

Accordingly, the comparative amounts of revenue and corresponding contract assets/liabilities have not been retrospectively 
adjusted. 

B. Revenue from Trading Materials: 

Revenue from sale of trading material is recognised when control of promised goods are transferred to the customer. 

C. Revenue from project management services: 

Revenue from 'project management services' is recognized only on satisfaction of performance obligation of promised services 
based on the agreements between the Company and the customer to whom such services are rendered. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

D. Interest 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will How to the Company and 
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal 
outstanding at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts 
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

E. Others 
Revenues I Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

F. Share of profit /loss from partnership firms f association of persons (AOP} is accounted in respect of the financial year of the 
Finn f AOP, during the reporting period. on the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as 
a part of other operating activity. 

3.2 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION/ AMORTISATION 

A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impainnent losses, if any. 

B. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specified in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata 
from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal. as the case may be. 

Asset Category 

Computer 
Office Equipments 
Furniture and Fixture 

3.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
3.3.1 INITIAL RECOGNmON 

Estimated useful life (In Years) 

3 
s 
10 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition except for trade receivables which are 
initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets 
and financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss,are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way 
purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. 

3.3.2 SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT 
a. Non-derivative flnandallnstruments 

(I) Flnandal assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset 
in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(II) Financial assets at ralr value through other comprehensive Income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash Hows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model. for its investments 
which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

~-



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

(ill) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. 

(lv) Flnandalllabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent 
consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and Joss. For trade 
and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the 
short maturity ofthese instruments. 

(v) Fair value offtnandallnstntments 
In determining the fair value of its fi nancial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on 
market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow 
analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of 
value, and such value may never actually be realized. 

3.3.3 Derecognltlon Offlnandallnstntments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it 
transfers the finacial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under JndAS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial 
liability) is derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. 

3.3.4 Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model fo r the financial assets which are not fair 
valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an 
amount equal to life time ECL For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month 
ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime 
ECL The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the 
amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes In circumstances 
indicate thattheir carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the 
higher of the fair value Jess cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset bas is unless the asset does not 
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for 
the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

3.4 TAXATION 
1. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the 
consolidated financial statement of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other 
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

in case the Company is liable to pay income tax u fs llSJB of Income Tax Act. 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of 
normal income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entit lement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such 
asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 



CllYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

li. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated 
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are 
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible 
temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be avai !able to allow all or part of the assetto be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and 
liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

3.5 INVENTORIES 

3.6 

3.6.1 

3.7 

i. All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 
ii. 'Incomplete Projects' include cost of incomplete properties for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in 

other cases where the revenue recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate to a 
(prospective) project, incurred for the purpose of securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in 
which they are incurred unless they are separately identifiable and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

iii. Cost included in inventory include costs incurred upto the completion ofthe project viz. cost of land I rights, value of FSI, materials, 
services and other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost. 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Post-Employment Benefits 
Deftned contribution plans: Company's contribution to State governed Provident Fund Scheme is recognised during the year in 
which the related service is rendered; 

BORROWING COSTS 
Borrowings are initially recognised at the net transaction costs incurred and measured at ammortised cost Any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the period 
of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 
Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of 
the cost of construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active 
development is interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Investment income earned 
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing 
costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

3.8 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non· 
cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses 
associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the company 
are segregated. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, ZOZO 

3.9 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 
i. All transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency. based on closing rates of exchange prevalent on the 

dates of the relevant transactions. 
il. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date . are converted in reporting 

currency at the closing rates of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss is recognized during the year in the 
statement of profit and Joss. 

Ill. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the date of 
the transaction. 

3.10 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the 
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contingent liability is disclosed for: 

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 

Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

3.11 USE OF ESTIMATES 

3.11.1 

The preparation of the financial s tatements in conformity with lndAS requires management to make estimates, judgments a nd 
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving 
complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 3.11.1. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in 
estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates 
are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material. their effects are disclosed in the 
notes to the financial statements. 

Critical accounting judgements and estimates 
a. Revenue recognition 

The Company uses the percentage·of-completion method in accounting for its revenue. Costs of the project are based on the 
management's estimate of the cost to be incurred upto the completion of the projects and include cost of land, Floor Space Index 
(FSI), materials, services and other expenses attributable to the projects. Estimates of project income, as well as project costs, 
are reviewed periodically. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion of work Provisions for 
estimated losses, if any. on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in which such losses become probable based on 
the expected contract estimates at the reporting date. 

b. Property, plant and equipment 
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the 
expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by 
management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed peiodically, including at each financial year end The lives are based 
on his torical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes 
in technology. 

c. Fair value measurements and valuation processes 
Some of the company's assets are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value of an asset 
or liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Levell inputs are not available, the 
Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Company works closely with the qualified external 
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. 
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CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
~--------------------------

4. Property, plant and equipment 
Carrying amounts of: 

Leasehold land 
Commercial Premises 
Mivan System 

Computers and Laptops 
Furniture and Fixtures 
Vehicles 
Office Equipment 

4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Additions 
Disposals 
Transfers 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 

Balance at 31"' March, 2019 

Carrying amount as on 31st March 2019 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 
Additions 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2020 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 
Eliminated on disposal of assets 
Depreciation expense 
Balance at 31st March, 2020 
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 

Computers 
and Laptops 

Computers 
and Laptops 

Total 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

12,99,827 

12,99,827 

10,66,988 

1,08,670 

11,75,658 

1,24,169 

Furniture and 
Fixtures 

12,99,826 

12,99,826 

11,75.660 

74,415 
12,50,075 

49,751 

As at 

31st March, 2020 
f 

49,751 

49,751 

Office 
Equipment 

11,59,710 

11,59,710 

11,59.710 

11,59,710 

Office 
Equipment 

11,59,710 

11,59,710 

11.59,710 

11,59,710 

As at 

3151 March, 2019 
{ 

1,24,169 

1,24,169 

Total 

24,59,537 

24,59,537 

22,26,698 

1,08,670 

23,35,368 

1,24,167 

Total 

24,59,536 

24,59,536 

23,35,370 

74,415 
24.09,785 

49,751 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

5. Current tax assets (Net) 
Advance Tax paid 
Less : Provision for Tax 
Curent Tax Asset I (Liability) 

6. Other assets 
Non-current 
Advances to land owners 

Current 
Project Advances 

'-"' Advances to Suppliers, Contractors and Professionals 
Balance with statutory authorities 
Unbilled revenue 
Other Advances 

- Others. 
- Prepaid Expense 

7. Inventories 
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
- Stock of material at site 
-Incomplete projects (Refer footnote) 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

6,850,651 

6,850,651 

26,990,194 
26,990,194 

54,181,255 
2,690,321 
4,749,976 

25,100,000 
185,301 

86,906,853 

384,163 
1,014,072,779 

1,014,456, 943 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

5,047,244 

5,047,244 

26,990,194 
26,990,194 

24,282,846 
2,938,210 
4,365,186 

62,777,035 
37,866 

94,401,143 

817,495 
997,409,203 

998,226,698 

Footnote: During the financial year incomplete projects including ofJNR 18,31,43,717/- Work In Progress (WIP) relating 
to six projects i.e. (1. Kamaraj Nagar CHS Limited., 2.)ai Mata Di CHS Limited., 3. Shiv Kripa I Anand Aman CHS Limited., 
4. Ambedkar Nagar CHS Limited, 5. Nirmal Nagar CHS Limited, 6. Om Shivaji SRA CHS.) 

8. Trade Receivables 
Current 
Trade Receivables -Others 

9. Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
- in escrow accounts 
Cashon hand 

10. Other bank balances 

Total 

Total 

Deposits with maturity of more than three months but Jess than 12 
months(Refer footnote) 

Deposits with maturity of more than three months 

Total 
Footnotes: 

121,342,205 
121,342,204 

152,188,413 
8,488,300 

670,269 
161,346,982 

898,742 

898,742 

143,378,584 
143,378,584 

102,895,909 
2,809,706 

653,425 
106,359,040 

846,469 

846,469 

1) Balances with bank in margin money and fixed deposits are kept as security for guarantees j other facilities. 
2) Balances with Bank in Fixed De osit are kept as security for gurantees. 
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CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

11. Other financial assets 
Current 

Security deposits 
Advances recoverable from others 

Reimbursement 
Related parties 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 

12. Equity Share capital 
Authorised Share Capital: 

Total 

5,00,000 (As at 31st March, 2019: 5,00,000;) Equity Shares of I?J 101- each fully paid up 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
\.cf 10,000 (As at 31st March, 2019: 10,000) Equity Shares of l'll101- each fully paid up 

Footnotes: 
(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 
and at the end of the year. 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less : Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31"t March, 2020 

(ii) Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

31st March, 2020 
No of shares %holding 

'-" Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited 
Maya Vaidya I Hubtown Limited 
D.V Prabhu I Hubtown Limited 
Kamal Matalia I Hubtown Limited 
Nancy Pereira I Hubtown Limited 
Ani! Ahluwalia I Hubtown Limited 
Chetan Mody I Hubtown Limited 
Total 

(iii) Tenns I rights attached to Equity Shares: 

held 

9,994 99.94% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 

10,000 100.00% 

Period ended Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

189,500 185,500 
16,405,549 16,191,118 

1,125,000 499,530 
539,613 36,325 

18,259,661 16,912,473 

5,000,000 5,000,000 

100,000 100,000 

Number of Share Capital 
shares 

10,000 100,000 

10,000 100,000 

10,000 100,000 

31st March, 2019 
No of shares held %holding 

9,994 99.94% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01% 
1 0.01 o/o 
1 0.01% 

10,000 100.00% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of ' 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is 
entitled to one vote per share. In the event ofliquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the 
number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 
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CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

13. Other Equity 
Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
On account of adoption of lnd AS 115 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

14. Non-current borrowings 
Secured Debentures 

300 (As at 31st March, 2019: 300) 0% Redeemable non-convertible 
debentures of the face value of "10,00,000 each 

Total 

Footnote: 

Year ended 

31st March, 2020 
~ 

(21,65,94,164) 

(2,29,12,983) 
(23,95,07,147) 

13,73,93,081 
13,73,93,081 

Year ended 
31sl March, 2019 

t ' 

(14,38,05,816) 
6,25,83,066 

(13,53,71,414) 
(21,65,94,164) 

15,04,28,966 
15,04,28,966 

i. The Debentures shall be redeemed at a premimum such that the Debenture Holders earn an IRR of 22o/o on 
Subscription Amount 

ii. If Issuer co·mmits a default in payment of Redemption Amount or Amounts Due or in redemption of Debenture 
(including Target Return thereupon) for two consecutive months, then the Debenture Holder shall have the right to 
exchange/convert (the MConversion Option·), as its option, the whole or part of the defaulted amount of the 
outstanding Debentures into 100% of the equity shares of the Issuer. 

iii. The debentures are secured by: 
a) Personal gurantee of the promoters of Hubtown Limited. 
b) Unconditional and irrevocable Corporate Guarantee of Hubtown Limited. 
c) Pledge of unencumbered equity shares valued at~ 50 Million ofHubtown Limited. 

iv. No Interest charged on debenture during the Financial Year and Previous Year. 

15. Other financial liabilities 
Non-current 
Retention money payable 

· From related parties 
- From others 

Current 
- From related parties (Refer Footnote) 
- From others 
Other payables 

Footnote: 

Total 

Total 

48,01,415 
80,18,212 

1,28,19,627 

48,67,57,214 
1,88,475 

56,52,84,410 
1,05,22,30,099 

48,01,415 
72,02,818 

1,20,04,233 

80,38,93,061 
15,72,42,208 

8,57,57,039 
1,04,68, 92,308 

The Company has received interest free Advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the 
Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call f demand as the repayment period of such 
amounts so received is not measurcable precisely. 

I 
I 
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CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

16. Current borrowings 
- From Companies 

Footnotes: 
1) Unsecured loans from Companies no interest rates charged. 
2) Borrowing relating to repayable on demand. 

17. Trade payables 
Trade Payables (Refer Footnote) 

- Related parties 
-Others 

Footnote: 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

6,993,319 
6,993,319 

116,579,519 
76,975,372 

193,554,891 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

6,993,319 
6,993,319 

116,579,744 
71,143,872 

187,723,616 

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small 
Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and 
the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

18. Other current liabll I ties 
Current 

Advance from customers 
Statutory dues 

19. Revenue from operations 
Sale from operations : 

Revenue from Sale of Properties/rights 
Revenue from sale of Trading Materials 

Other operating revenue : 
Liabilities written back to the extent no longer required. 

20. Other Income 
Interest Income: 
Bank fixed deposits 
Income Tax Refund 
Others 
Gain on sale of current investments 
Gain on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 
Miscellaneous income 

21. Costs Of Construction 1 Development 
Construction costs incurred during the year: 
Land I rights acquired 
Material and labour costs 
Approval and consultation expenses 
Other direct development expenses 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

272,890,621 
627,491 

273,518,112 

32,874,222 
3,745,882 

36,620,104 

348,292 
807,075 

77,589 

176,305 
1,409,261 

15,603,671 
857,844 

1,161,200 
17,622,715 

199,436,394 
5,301,565 

204,737,959 

284,682,158 
5,232,158 

72 
289,914,388 

55,971 
4,750 

2,026,460 

(25) 
4,258,092 

6,345,248 

94,663,258 
16,122,430 
21,342,192 

132,127,880 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

v 

22. Changes In Inventories Oflncomplete Projects, Finished 
Properties And FSI 

Opening Inventory: 
Incomplete projects 

Add I (Less): 
WIP relating to other 6 Projects 
On account of adoption of lnd AS 115 

Closing Inventory: 
Incomplete projects 

23. Employee Benefits Expense 
Salaries, bonus, etc. 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Staff welfare expenses 
Other fund expenses 

24. Finance Costs 
Interest costs:-

Other interest expense 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 

25. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

Total depreciation and ammortisation expense 

26. Other Expenses 
Insurance 

'-" Rent 
Advances and other debit balances written off 
Bad Debts 
Brokerage 
Repairs and society maintenance charges 
Legal and professional fees 
Other expenses (Refer Footnote) 

Footnote: 
Auditors, Remuneration: 

Audit fees 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

814,265,486 
814,265,486 

814,265,486 

830,929,062 
830,929,062 
(16,663,576) 

15,822,626 
840,395 

29,765 
57,782 

16,750,568 

74415 
74,415 

166,545 
4,107,917 
1,965,578 

17,602,895 
1,065,006 
5,955,748 
8,763,777 

39,627,466 

35,000 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019 

1,064,208,902 
1,064,208,902 

(183,143,717) 
193,661,090 

1,074,726,275 

814,265,486 
814,265,486 

260,460,788 

10,950,415 
226,945. 

29,124 
19,765 

11,226,249 

312,822 
312,822 

108 670 
108,670 

214,801 

367,785 
544,500 

13,827,243 
453,358 

1,128,310 
6,211,901 

22,747,898 

50,000 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

27. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) 
Basic Earning Per Share and Diluted 

(i) Basic and Diluted EPS 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of 
basic and diluted earnings per share are as follows: 

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 

(ii) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted 
earnings per share 

28. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2020 

(2,291) 

(22,912, 983) 
(22, 912, 983) 

10,000 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 

(13,537) 

(135,371.414} 
(135,371,414) 

10,000 

V The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's management oversees the management of these 
risks. The company's board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

1) Market Risk 
a) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's long term debt 
obligations with floating interest rates. 

b) Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate on account of changes in foreign 
exchange·rates. The company does not have any exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates from its operating activities 
or investments in foreign companies. 
There is no purchase of materials of imported materials hence foreign currency risk does not arise. 

c) Commodity price risk 
The Company is not affected by the price volatility of commodities 
The Company has awarded building construction contracts to its contractors on turnkey basis. 

2) Credit Risk 
""""' Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a 

financial loss. The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities or trade receivables since the sale I lease 
buildings are yet to be constructed and there is no sale or leasing in relation to the same. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and inter corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with 
the company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved companies and within credit limits assigned to each 
company. The credit limits of parties to whom loans are granted are reviewed by board of Directors on an annual basis. The limits are 
set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial Joss through counterparty's potential failure to make 
repayments. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The company is in stage of construction of buildings. All allowable expenses are inventorised by as per the policy of the company. 
Liquidy risk is dependent on the market demand for completed flats. 



CITYWOOD BUILDERS PRJVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE fiNANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Z9. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

a. LIST OF RELATED PARnES: 

A. Names of related parties and desmption of relationship 

I. Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited 

II. A Private company In which a Director, ls a member of Company 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehasana} Private Limited 

III. Associate Company of Holding Company 
Shubhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 

IV. Jointly Control Entity of Holding Company 
Shreenath Realtors 

Note:fi) Related party relationships are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 
(ti} Previous year"s figures are given in brackets 

b Transactions with Related Parties· 
Sr. Particulars Holding A Private company In 
No. Company which a Director, is a 

member of Company 

1 Loans and advances received jrecoveredfadjusted 
Hubtown Limited 92,876,562 . 

(145 311 232' (·) 

2 Loans and Advances given/ repaid/adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 473,208,649 . 

(87 503 098' (-] 

3 On behalf payments made/ adjusted (Including 
reimbursement 

Shreenath Realtors . 
(-) (·) 

Shubhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 

Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehasana) Private Limited 499,530 

(·) (499 530) 

4 Trade Payable 
Hubtown Limited . 

(94427825) (-) 

Sr. Particulars 

No. 
1 Balance outstanding receivables: 

Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehasana) Private limited 
Shubhsiddhi Builders Private Limited 

2 Balance outstanding payables: 
Hubtown Limited 
Shreenath Realtors 

Associate Company of Jointly Control Entity 
Holding Company of Holding Company 

. 

(·l f·l 

. . 
f·) (·) 

525 

(·} (363,625} 

1,125,000 . 

H (·) 
. 
f·) (·} 

. 

H (·} 

As at As at 

31" March 2020 31" March 2019 

. 499,530 

1,125,000 . 

491,558,929 871,891,016 
116,579 219 116,579,744 

30. The accumulated losses of the Company have resulted in complete erosion of the net worth of the Company. The Company's management is, however, of the view 
that the said erosion is temporary in nature as the Company has made strategic investments in certain assets I projects , the proceeds of which would when 
fructified, would result in turnaround of the Company. The Company to that extent does not consider the erosion of the net worth as an impediment to its status as 
a going concern. 
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CJTYWOOD BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

As at As at 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

31. Income Tax Matters for, Tax Contingent Liability 

Financial Amount Balance disputed dues Balance disputed 
Statute and nature or dues Section Year Disputed Dues Paid ~~avable dues oavable 

Income Tax. High Court (Preferred by Department) 143(3) 2009·10 15.313.250 15,313.250 15 313,250 
lncom• Tax. Commissioner of lncom• tax (Appeals) 2718 2010·11 100.000 100000 

Total 15,413,250 15,313,250 15,413,250 

Notes: 

There is no contingent liability towards Service Tax, MVAT {Sales Tax as on 31st March, 2020 

32. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of Current Assets, Current Liabilities and Loans and Advances continues to have a realizable 
value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet 

33. Trade payable & other current liability are subject to confirmation, reconciliation and adjustment if any. 

34. Capital Manacement 
The primary object1ve of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders 
value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company. The borrowings consist 
of debentures issued, term loans from financial institutions and loans from companies. 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as foUows: 

Unsecured Loan 
Interest accured 
Total Debt 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Net Debt{A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B 

35. Fair ValiH! measurement ofFinaDclal lnstrumeats 

Fhppria! A:ssets 
Investments 
Trade receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Bank balances other than (iii) above 
Loans 
Other financial assets 
Total ofFioa~~ctal Assets 

Flnapdal Liabllltle• 
Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Other Financial liabilities 
Total orFillaDCial Uabllides 

31stMarcb 2020 
FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost 

. 
121342 204 
161 346982 

898142 

. 18259661 
. 301,847 589 

. 144396400 
193 554,891 

1065049 726 
. . 1402 991017 

36. Previous year li~n~res have been re]l:rouped I reclassified wherever required. 

The accompanying notes are an iategral part ofFinaDclal Statemeats. 

As per our report of even date 

Place Mumba1 
Date: 14th October, 2020 

FVPL 

. 

. 
. 

. 

. 

31st March, 2020 

6,993,319 

6,993,319 
161346982 

(154.353,663) 

100,000 
(239,507,147) 

(239,407,147) 

64% 

31st March 2019 
FVOCI 

. 

. 

. 

31st March, 2019 

6,993,319 

6,993,319 
106 359040 

(99,365,721} 

100,000 
(216,594,164) 

(216,494,164) 

46% 

Amortised Cost 

. 
143,378 584 
106 359040 

846469 

16 912 473 
267496,565 

157 422 285 
187 723391 

1058 896..2_41 
1 404 042,2-16 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD 
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NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIAT~S 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Gujarat Akruti - TCG Biotech Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Gujarat Akruti - TCG Biotech 
limited (11the Company'') which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 ("the Act'') in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (lnd AS), of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at March 31, 
2020, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash 
flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Emphasis of Matters 

Attention is invited to Note 28 in the financial statements with regards to status of Biotech 
Project of the company, management believes that the recoverable amount of Property, Plant 
and Equipment and capital working in progress is higher than its carrying value as shown in 
balance sheet which has been relied upon by us for the purpose of our audit of the financial 
statements. Our Audit Report is not qualified in respect of this matter. 

Ofl.,ce· 306. lee lbya buildino. M.G. Road. Opp Pntam restaurant.~ Parie [est. Mumbal- 400057. 
Tel . ·22-26127174, +91 82914 19381 Email: ad \ia.niraj@gmaft.com 



Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming 
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report. 

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for the Financial 
Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'') with respect to the preparation of these financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position),profit and 
loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) specified under Section 133 of the 
Act. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise P.rofessional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We al ex 

' 



• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid 

remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and 

limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. 

II. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"), issued by the 

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies 

Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 

3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 



As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the 
Act; 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure 8"; and 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as on 3tst March, 
2020 on its financial position in its financial statements. 

ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No.: 129486W 
Chartered Accountants 

~r 
NIRAJ D. ADATIA 



ANNEXURE "A" REFERRED TO IN INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS 

OF GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG BIOTECH LIMITED ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 

ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020; 

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and in terms of the information and 
explanations given to us, we state that: -

(i) a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets; 

b) The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the Management during the 
year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification; 

c) As per the information and explanation given to us, lease deed and transfer 
formalities with respect to lease hold land included in immovable properties are 
yet to be executed. 

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company does not have any 
inventory during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability 
partnerships, or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments, or provided any 
guarantees or any security to the parties covered under section 185 and 186. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable. 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposits from the public during the year within the meaning of 
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent 
notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost 
records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the 
Company and accordingly paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

(vii) a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of 

b) 

the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular 
in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income-tax, 
sales tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and other material 
statutory dues, wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. The 
statutory dues of Service Tax amounting to Rs. 1,65,284 and interest thereon 
of Rs. 1, 72,036 and TDS amounting to Rs. 53,988 and interest thereon of Rs. 
24,336 were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period 
exceeding six months from the date they became payable. 



(viii) 

(ix) 

(x) 

(xi) 

(xii) 

(xiii) 

Balance Sheet date which have not been deposited on account of a dispute, 
are as follows : 

Period to 
Forum where 

Name of the Nature of which the 
Amount (Rs.) the dispute is 

Statute dues amount 
relates (F.Y.) 

pending 

Income Tax 143 (3) 2011-12 3,570 Income Tax 
Act, 1961 Appellate 

Tribunal 

Income Tax 143 (3) 2012-13 4,750 Income Tax 
Act, 1961 Appellate 

Tribunal 

Income Tax 271(1)(c) 2012-13 19,61,283 Comissioner 

Act, 1961 of Income Tax 
(Appeals) 

Income Tax 271(1)(c) 2013-14 4,21,052 Comissioner 
Act, 1961 of Income Tax 

(Appeals) 

Income Tax 143 (3) 2013-14 520 Income Tax 

Act, 1961 Appellate 
Tribunal 

On the basis of records examined by us, the convertible and redeemable debentures 
of the company were due for conversion and redemption on March 30,2020. As per 
the information and explanation given to us, the tenure of the said debentures has 
been extended for two years to March 30, 2022. (Refer footnote to Note 7 and Note 
9) 
The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, we report that no material fraud by the Company or on 
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the 
course of our audit. 

The Company has not paid I provided for managerial remuneration during the year 
and hence, the provisions of Section 197 read w ith Schedule V to the Act are not 
applicable. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable. 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliances ,&F:n=::~ 

section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been d" ~~~tr 
in the financial statements as required by the applicable Accounting Stand f/; · -~ '?, 

\~~~ 
~ 



(xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment I private placement of shares 
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 
(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations 
given by the management, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45 lA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable. 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No.: 129486W 
Chartered Accountants 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : 04/11/2020 

UDIN : 20120844AAAAAU9374 



"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF GUJARAT AKRUTI- TCG BIOTECH UMITED 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the 11Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG 
BIOTECH LIMITED (11the Company") as of 31st March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 
detection offrauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Auditin& issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reportin& assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risks. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation o ~ 

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 'Of~\ 
0 

company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and proc~u~!:s _that; £ 

---~t>;t s 
" 



(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADAliA & ASSOCIATES 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 04/11/2020 
UDIN: 20120844AAAAAU9374 



GUJA~AT Al~RUTI · TCG BIOTECH LIMITED . ~ 

13ALANCC: SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020 
Particular~ 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(:1) Property, plant a nd equipment 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 
(c) Financia l dssets 

(i) Other fi nancial assets 
Total Non-Current assets 

Current assets 
(a) Financial assets 

(i) Ca~h cmd cash equivalents 
(ii) Other financial assets 

Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LJ,\BILITIES 
Equity 
~a) Equity share c..apital 
lb) Con vertible Instrument;; classified as Eyuity 
[cj Other equity 
l'otal Equity 

Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other fmanciallia bll ities 

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilitic..s (Net) 
Total No11-Cnrrcnt Liabilities 

Current I.Jabililics 
(a) Financia l LJ :~bil iti es 

(i) Trade payablcs 
fi ij Othe r t1nancia lliabi li ties 

• (b) Other l'UI rent liabilities 
Total Currc.lt Liabili t ies 
Total Liabilities 
TOTl\L EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Note 
No. 

3 

4 

5 
4 

6 
7 
8 

As a t 
31st March, 2020 

!I{ 

177,612,774 
146,419,158 

207,600 
324,239,532 

162,455 
1,609 

164,064 
324,403,596 

500,000 
161,526,900 
(39,459,540 

122,567,360 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

!I{ 

177,941,724 
122,469,049 

207,600 
300,618,373 

176,190 
5,855 

182,045 
300,800,418 

9 166,855,423 112,905,314 
732,391 

'11, 131,3-10 
184,769,045 

10 
11 

166,855,423 

12 25,041,777 27,781,26j 
10 L,866,656 2,254.191 

13 .~7,~0~7~2.~38~0~--------~6~,9~5~4~,8~6~5~ 
----- __ __14-.!.!,~9::::..80:::.!'::::..81~3::.__ ___ ~3~6,~9~90:::.!'::..31;!_9~ 

201,836,236 221,759,364 
324,403,596 300,800,418 

The accompanying no~cs are an integr al pa rt of the fin ancial statements 

,,s pr~ our report of even date 

1:0 R NIRAJ D. ADATlf\ & ASSOCI/\Tt-:S 
rim; Regtstrc~llon No. l L..i' ~Jtn~ ..... 
Chartered Acrountan <'\,.,...-

NIRAJ ADATIA 
P<.~ ~tner 

:vtembershi r No.: 120844 

MUinbai 
Da le : 4th November, 2020 

For :~nd vii behalf oi the Board uf Din~ctors 

~HAH 
Jl;t.:ctor 

UIN: 03 t 34'H2 

~ 
RUSHANK SIIAH 

D1rector 
DIN: 02960155 

MLII Ilbai 
Date: 4th NoveBibt!r, 2020 



GUJARAT AKRUTI- TCG BIOTECH LIMITED 
I I 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2::.:0::..:2:..:0=-:-:----:--:-------:-:-----:--:---
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended 

No. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

INCOME 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 
TOTAL INCOME 

EXPENSES 
Costs Of Construction I Development 
Finance Costs 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Other Expenses 
TOTAL EXPENSES 

P•·ofiti (Loss) before Tax 
Tax Expense 
Deferred tax (charge) I Credit 
Profiti (Loss) for the Year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of~ 101- each 

14 
15 

16 
17 
18 
19 

Basic 20 
Diluted 20 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES 
Firm Registration No. 129486W 
Chartered Accountants ~ 

4f?~r.~ 
NIRAJ ADATIA 
Pa:-tner 
Membership No.: 120844 

Mumbai 
Date: 4th November, 2020 

~ ~ 

3,295,090 
3,644 

3,298,734 

19,238 
328.950 
555,581 

903,769 

2,394,965 

41,131,341 
43,526,306 

43,526,306 

870.53 
2.69 

186,760 
7,233 

193,993 

52,841 
328,050 
626,746 

1,007,637 

(813,644) 

(7,776,074) 
(8,589' 718) 

(8,589,718) 

(171.79) 
(171.79) 

For and on behalf of the Boa:-d of irectors 

Director 
DIN:03134932 

~ 
RUSHANK SHAH 

Director 
DIN: 02960155 

Mumbai 
Date: 4th Novembl.!r, 2020 



GU)ARAT AKRUTI- TCG BIOTECH LIMITED 
I I 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
Particulars 

CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net profit/(loss) before taxation as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add/ (Less) : 
Depreciation 
Finance Costs 
Sundry credit balances appropriated 
Interest Income 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add I (Less): 
lncreasej(Decrease) in trade and other payables 
(lncrease)fDecrease in other financial assets 

Net cash flow from operating activities 

II CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM INYESTING ACTIVITIES 
lnflowf (Outflow) on account of : 

Ill 

Interest received on fixed deposit 
(Purchase)jSale of fixed assets, including capital work-in-progress (net) 
Net cash flow from investing activities 

CASH FLQWS ABISitH:i EBQM Flf!!Af!!Cir:IG ACTIVIIIES 
lnflow/ (Outflow) on account of: 
Finance Costs Paid 
lncrease/(Decrease) in long and short term borrowings 
Net cash flow from financing activities 

Net increase in cash a nd cash equiva lents (I + II + Ill) 

Add: Balance a t the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Compo nents of cas h and cash equivalents (Refer note 5) 
Cash on hand 
Balances with banks 
-On Current accounts 

- Deposit with maturity of less than three months 

Footnote: 

31st March, 2020 
~ 

2,394,965 

328,950 
19,238 

(3,295,090) 
(2,345) 

(2,949,24 7) 
(554,282) 

553,193 

553,193 
(1,089) 

6,592 

6,592 

(19,238) 

(19,238) 

(13,735) 

176,190 

162,455 

104 

133,573 
28,778 

162 455 

31st March, 2019 
~ 

(813,644) 

328,050 
52,841 

(1 ,601) 
379,290 

(434,354) 

386,666 
22,188 

408,854 
(25,500) 

(52,841) 

(52,841) 

(78,341) 

254,531 

176,190 

100,829 

53,173 
22,188 

176190 

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS- 7) statement of cash 
flows. 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fina ncial statements 

As per our report of even date 

NIRAJ ADATIA 
Partner 
Membership No.: 1 20844 

Mumbat 
Date: 4th November, 2020 

For and on behalf of the~ 2f ~ors 

~~~~~EN SHAH 
Director 

~ RUSHANK SHAH 
DirE'ctor 

DIN:02960 155 

Mumbat 
Date: 4th November, 2020 



GUJARAT AKRUTI - TCG BIOTECH LIMITED 
I ' 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
As at 1s t April, 2018 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st March, 2019 
Changes in equity share capital 
As at 31st Ma rch, 2020 

B. OTHER EQUITY AND CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS 

Particulars Convertible Instruments 
classified as Equity (Refer 

note 7) 
As at 1st April, 2018 161,526,900 
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year -
As at 1st April, 2019 161,526,900 
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Total comprehensive income for the year -
Balance a t 31st March, 2020 161,526,900 

As per our report of even da te 

Mumbai 
Date: 4th November, 2020 

(in ~) 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

(m ~) 

Retained Earnings Total 

(74,396,128) 87,130,772 
- -

(8,589,718) (8,589,718) 
(82,985,846) 78,541,054 

- -
43 526,306 43,526,306 

{39,459,540) 122,067,360 

For and on beha lf of the Board of Di rectors 

Di rector 
DIN:03134932 

~ 
Director 

DIN: 02960155 

Mumbai 
Date: 4th November, 2020 



CU ARAT AKRUTI • TCC BIOTECil LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE Yl:AR ENDED JIST MARCil, 2020 

Note 1. Statomont of Significant Accounting Policies. 

1.1 Company Overview 
Cujarat Akruti • TCC Biotech Limited Is an unlisted limited Company domoclled In India, Incorporated under the Companies Ac~ 1956. The Company Is engaged In 
th~ business of development, construction. markeung and mamtenance of a bio·tec:hnology park in the sute of GuJaraL The Company was incorporated on 28th 
May, 2007 as a JOint venrure berwcen CuJarat State Boottchnology Mouoon, Hubtown l.omited and TCC Urban lnfrastrucrure Holdong Pnvate l.omoted to carry on 
the business of development. construction. marketing and mamtenance of a b1o-tKhnolo&Y park in the st..te of GuJarat. as pe-r the Memorandum of Undersunding 
dated 5th March, 2007. The Company IS yet to commence commeroalacuvoues. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by lhe Company's Board of Directors on 4th November, 2020. 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 

I. Basis of pre paration of financial Statements 

(I) Complia nce with lnd AS 
These finanaal statements have been prepared In accordance Wlth the lndoan Accountmg Standards (heremafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') as notified by 
Mmtstry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companoes A~ 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companoes (Indian Accounnng Standards) Rules. 20 IS as 
amended and other relevant provos1ons of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented on the financial statoments. 

(II) ll istorical cost co nvention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
I ) certaon financlalasstts and habohues that are measured at faor value, 
2) assets held for sale· moasured at lower of carryong amount or f.11r value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans · plan assets measured at fa or value; 

(Ill) Current non·current classiRcatlon 
All the assets and loabolitoes have been classified as current or non·curren~ wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per tho guidance set 
oulln Schedule Ill to the Act. Operollng cycle for the busoness actovolles of the Company co•ers tho duratoon of the proj«t/ contract including the def«tllabllity 
l"'nod, wherever apphcaole, and extends upto the reahsanon of receovables (oncludong retenuon monoes, of any) withon the credot penod normally apphcableto 

the respective project. 

11. Significant accounting judgeme nts, estimates and assumptions 
The p~paration of financ,al statements an conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of lnd AS requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that aff«t the reported balances of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, 
and the desdosure of conungent habehues. Uncertainty about these assumpuons and esnm~tes could result an outcomes Wt require a material 
adjustment to the carryuog amount of assets or loabolones aff«ted on furure penods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a prope:ny is classified as mvestment property or enventory property. Investment property compnses land and 
buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company. nor for sale in the ordinary course of business. but are held 
pnm~nly to earn ren~J income and cap1tal apprtciataon. These bualdmgs are subsuntially rrnted to tenants and not antended toM sold m the ord1nary 
course of business. 1.-entory comprises property that Is held for sale In the ordonary cou~e of l>us!ness. Pnncopally. these are properties that the 
company develops and inlends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future .1o1d other key sources of esumalion uncertamty at the report1ng date. that have a significant risk of causing a 
m~ti'n:.l adJustment to the anyang amounb of assets and habahtles WJlhm the next financ1al ye3r. 'lre desmbed below. The Company based llS 

assumptions and f"St1m:.tes on parameters available when the nnandal statements "ere prep;~rt"d. Exisung circumstances and assumptions about future 
dt-velopments, however, may change due to market changes or a rcumsunces ans1ng that are beyond the control o( the Company. Such changes are 
reflected In the assumprio:-.s when they occur. 

Ill. ~venue recognition 
Revenue Recogn1t1on Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or serv1res to customers in an amount that reflects the 
cons•derauon wh1ch the Company expects to rece1ve m exchange for those good.s or servtces. 

A. Revenue from sale of properties/ development rights 
Revenue from the long term lease orland 1 properties are recognised when the company satisfies performance obligations at a point In orne I.e when 
contrails transferred to the customer whoch is usually on govong possession to the custon>er. 

Revenue IS measured based on the transaction pncc, which is the consideration, adjusted for d1srounts, rebates. price concessions, returns and 
financong component 1f any, as speclfie1 in the contracts woth the customers. Revenue excludes taXes collected from customers on behalf of the 

govemmenL 

Amount rece1vod as Advance from customers towards premoum for long oerm least of land I ~roperty are classified as Contract Liabohues. The 
company's nght to considerabon m exchange for goods or serv1ces that the company has transferred tci the customer are classified as receiVables. 
The Company has purchased land on leasehold basis frono Cujarat Industrial Development Corp.>ration (or the purpose of building and executing 
work thereon for development of Boo-te.:h park. The same woll be sub leased to customers for lease l'l'ntal a tier the lease deed and other forma II toes 

are executed. 

The Company has ado, ted lnd AS II S Revenue from contracts woth customers, Wlth effect f1 om Apnl I, 20 I H. lnd AS I I 5 e>l<lbhshes pnnaples for 
reporting mformauon abo'Jt the nature. all'ount. umlng and uncertainty of revenues and cash OCI\IS ansmg from the contraos With its customers. 
The Company has adopted lnd AS I I 5 usong the modo fled retrospecnve approach to contracts that were not co'11pleted as at Aprol 0 I, 2018 and there 
were no amounts required to be debltt.--rlto RetainPd E:arnlngs pertaimng to recognition or re\ltnu~ bdsed on satisfaction of perfom1ance obligauons 
~t .. po1nt in nme 

Acrordmgly, tne c~mp:arallve amounts or revenue and corrtspondmg contr<~ct assets/ habll1ties have not ~n retrospectively adJuSted. 

B. Interest Income 
Interest mcome from a ronandal anet ts recognoted when ot os probable that the economoc benefits Wlil now to the Company and the amount o 
mcome can be measu1 ed rchaoly. Interest Jncome 1S accrued on a lime b~sis. by reference to the prtndpal oul'stand•ng at the t(fecuve mterest rate 
aophcable, whoch ts the rate that ex..,ctly discounts esumated furu re c•sh receopcs through the expected hfe of the financial asset to that asset's net 
cJrrylng amount on lnltl..ll recognition. 

c. Others: 
1;diture are accounted on acC1"'Ual, as thev an> e-trnrd or mcurred. 



CUJARAT AKRUTI • TCC BIOTECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH. 2020 

IV. Property plant and equipment, Investment property and depreciation 1 ammortlsatlon 

A. Tangoble Fixed AJ.sets are stated at cost of acquosotlon or construction less accumulated deprecoauon and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

B. Depreciation IS provided on the straight line method on the baSIS of estimated useful hfe of the asset m the manner specifi ed in Schedule 11 to the 
Companies Ac~ 2013. Depredation on additions to assets or on sale/diSposal of assets Is calcula ted pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto 
the month of such sale/disposal. as the case may be. 
Asset Category E5tlmated useful life (in Years) 
Compound Wall 30 
Computers & Laptops 3 

C. Leasehold land wall M amortized over the b.llance penod of le01se after the lease deed ~nd other transfer form~laues arr execut~ 
D. Capital work·ln·progress. representing expenditure incurred an respect of assets under development and not ready to use for their intended use, are 

carried at cosL Cost includes related acquositlon expenses, construction co~ related borroWing cost and other dorect txpendoture. 

V. Financ.iallnstruments 

A financial instrument Is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enrhy and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
A. Inves tments and Financial Assets 

t. Initial r ecognition 
F.nanaaJ assets are subsequently measured ill arnortJsed cost 1f th~e financ1al assets ilrt held w1thin a busaness model With an obJectiVe to hold 
these assets In order to collect contr.KtUal Cilsh Rows and the conr:ractual turns of the financial asset gwe nse on speofied dates to cash nows that 
are solely payments of prinopal and Interest on the prlnopal amount outstanding. Interest Income from these financial assets is included in finance 
mcome using the effective Interest rate (•E1R·) method. Jmpaannent gam.s or losses ansing on these assets are recogn1sed an the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

II. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement. financ1al assets are classified in followmg catcgoncs 

•l Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
A financ1al asset Is subsequently meuured at arnon1sed cos t 1f it as held Within a busaness rnodel whose obJective IS to hold the asset in order to 
collect contr.lctual c;osh flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset gJVe rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments o 
pnncipal and tnterest on the prinopaJ amount outsta.ndang. 

b) Financ.ial Assets Measured at Fair Value 
Fmanc1al assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these fi nandal assets are held w1lhm a busmess model With an ObJectiVe to hold these 
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows or to seJI these finandal assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pn ndpal and interest on the pnnclpal amount outstandtng. Movements 1n the carrymg amount are 
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of tmpalrment s~lns or losses. mterest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 
recogmsed on the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, on cases where the Company has rruode an orrevocable election based on ots busoness model. 
for Its investments which are classified as ~Ulty mstnJments, the subsequent chang~ tn fa~r value are recogn1zed In other comprehensiVe mcome. 

Financtal asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI is carried at FVTPL 

ui. De-recognition of Financial Assets; 
The Company de-recognises a finand3l asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire. or it transfers the fmandal 
asset and subst.lntlally all rosks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains subStantially a ll 
the nsks and rewuds of ownershtp and contmues to control the tr.lnsferred asset. the Company recogmzes 1ts ret.laned interest in the assets and an 
associated habohty for amounts it may have to pay. 

If the Company retains substantially all the nsks and rewords of ownership of a transferred fon•ncoal a...,~ the Company continues to recogmse the 
finanaal a.sset and 1lso recogn•ses a collate~hsed borrowmg for the proceflls receiVed. 

8. Equi ty Instruments a nd Financial Uablllties 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments Issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements eutered 
onto and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity Instrument. 

o. Equity Instruments 
An equoty Instrument Is any contract thai evidences a residual interest In the assets of the Company after deducting all of Its liabilities. Equity 
1nsrruments which are Issued for cash a re recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs. Equ1ty Instruments which are 1ssued for 
consideration other thon cash are recorded at fa or value of the equity lnstrumenL 

II. Financial Liabilities 
t. lnitial Recognition 
Fonancoal habohlles are classofied, at onoual recognouon. as fi nancoal habllitoes at FVPL, Ioon> Jnd borrowings and payables as appropnate. All financoal 
llablluies are recognised Initially at fa ir value and, In the case ufloans and borrowings and poyJbles, net of directly ouributable transaction costs. 

2. Subsequr,nt Measurement 
The measurement of financial habihUes depends on theor classoficauon. as descnbed below 
• Financlalllabilltles at FVTPL 
Fonancoal habihties 31 FVTPL onclude finonclal iloboloties held for tradong and financoal hJbolo ues desognatcd upon onlual recognotlon as at FVTPl. 
Flnanclaillobilltles are classified as heiJ for trading If they are Incurred for the purpose of repurchasing In the near ter m. Gains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recogntsed In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Fmanctal guar;~ntee contracts 1ssued b) lhf Compcmy are those contracts that require a pJyment lo be mJde to reimburse lhe holder for~ Joss It 
1ncurs because t~e speufied debtor fal's to make a paym'!nl when due 10 accordance with the t~nns or a debt inst.nJmenL Fmanclal guarantee 
contncu are rf'COgrused imtiaUy as • hab1hty at fatr value, adJusted for transacuon co.sb that are du-ectly ~nnbutable to the assuancr of the 
guarantee. Subsequently. the liability is measureJ at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determoned as rer impair ment requorements of lnd 
AS I 09 and the amount recognised less cumulauve amortosauon. .~mortosauon is recognosed as finance income on the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

· Finandal1i3bilitles a t amortised cost 
After mioal recognition, mterest·beanng loans and ~rrowmgs are )Ubsequently me~sur~ at ..amorr1sed ... ·o:.t using the EIR methcxl Any difference 
between the proceeds (net of tr.lnsaction costs) ond the settlement or redemption of borrowings os rrcogmsed over the term of the borrowongs on the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. AmonJsed costls c.alculat~ by taking Into account any d1scoum or premium on acquiSitJOn and fees or costs that are an 
ontegral part of the El R. The EIR amortosallon Is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit ond Loss. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1ST MARCil, 2020 

3. De-recognition of Flna ndal Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation spedfled In the contract is discharged. cancelled or expired. When an existing financial 
liab1hty Is replaced by another from the same lender on substanllally different temlS, or the terms ttf an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification Is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The difference In the 
respectave carrymg amounts is recocnlsed in the Statement of Pro fit and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Fmancul assets and financial habihtaes are offset and the net amount IS reported In the Balance Sheet if 1here LS a currently enforceable legal right to 
orTse1 the recognised amounts and there as iilJ1 mtention to settle on a net basts to realise the assets and settle the liabllaues sfmultilneously. 

VI Oerecogn ltJon of financial instruments 
The Company derecognttes a financial asset when the contractual nghu to the ash flows from the financaal asset expares or at transfers the finac1al as.set 
and the transfer qual ifies for derecognlllon under lndAS 109. A finanoal hab1hty (or a part of a finanoalllabihty) IS derecogmud from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obligatJon speafl~ tn the contract IS dtscharg~ or cancel!~ or exp1res. 

VII. Impairment 
a. Fina ncial assets 

The Company measures the expected credit loss assodated With tts assets based on h1Stoncal rrend. mdustry pracoces and the busmess environment m 
which the entlty operates or any other appropnate basas. The1mpa1nnent methodology applied depends on whether there has been • sagmfacant mcrease 
in credit nsk. 

b. Non-Hnandol assets 
The Company assesses, at eoch reporting date, whether there IS an md1cataon that an asset may be Impaired. If any IndiCation exists, or when annual 
im~lrment testing for an asset is requared.. the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amounL An asset's recoverable amount is the h1gher of an 
asset's or cash-generating umt's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and 1ts value In use. Recoverable amount Is detennmed for an lnd1vldual asse~ 
unless the asset does not generate cash Inflows that are largely Independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount o 
an asset or CGU exceeds Its recoverable amounr, the asset IS considered Impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

In assessang value muse, the estimated future cash flows are dtscounttd to the1r present value us1ng a pre·tax d1scount rate that reflects current market 
ossessments of the time value of money and the risks speafic to the asuL In detennmmg faar v:olue less costs o( dasposal. recent marl<et transactaons are 
taken an to account If no such transactloM can be idenufieJ, an appropriate valuauon model Is usEd. The:.e calcuJatJons are corroborated by valuanon 
multiples. quoted share pnces for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators. 
Impairment losses. lnc-Judlng impairment on inventories. are recogmsed In the statement of pront and loss. 

I. Property, plant a nd equapment 
Property, plant and equ1pment are evt~lutated for recover<lbthty wheneer events or changes 10 ctrcurnsuncf's md1cate that the1r car-rying amounts may not 
be recoverable. For the purpose of 1mpaarment testing. the recoverable amount (I.e. the higher of the faar value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) Is 
determined on an Individual asset bt~sb. unless the asset does not generate cash nows that arc largely Independent or those from other assets. In such 
cases, the recoverable amount Is determined for the CGU to whiCh the asset belongs. 

li. Provisio ns 
A proviSIOn Is recogmzed If, as a result of • past even~ the Company has a present legal or constructwe obligation that is reasonably esllmable, ond It IS 
probable thot an outlk..v of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. ProviSions are detennmed by discounting the expected future cash 
flows ot a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the nme value of money and the nsks specaflc to the hab1ilty. 

VIII. Taxation 

I. Current Tax 
The tax currently payable is base~ on tanble profit for the year. Taxable profit daffers from 'prolit befor~ ta\' as reported In the finantt•l statement o 
profit and loss becauseof Items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 111 otl>er years and items thot are never taxable or deducoble. The 
Compony's current tax L' calculated using rates that have bffn enacted or substantively enacted by th• end of the reporting period. 

In case the Company I• liable to pay Income :ax u/s 11 SJB of Income Tax Act, 1961 {I.e. MAT), the amount ol tax paid In excess of normal mcome tax IS 
recognrz.ed as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only If there 1s convincang evidence for realization of such asset during the spec1fied period. MAT credat 
entitlement ls reviewtd at each Balance Sheet date. 

IL Deferred Tax 
Deferred taX is re<:ogmz.ed on temporary diferences bet\'\reen the arrying amounts of .usets and hab1hors an thr finanoal statements and the 
corresponding tax bJ<es used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognlted for ali taxJble temporary differences. 
Deferred t.ox assets are gener• liy recogni.ed for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits wi ll be ava ilable 
against whtch those dedua.h!e tempor•ry differences con be utilized 
Th• carrya'lg amount of Jeierred tax a.set is rev.ewed at the end of each reportang peraod and redue<d to th< extent that 1t Is no longer probable that 
suffioent taXable profits wtll be av;ulable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are m~asured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period In which the llabllltv is settled or the asset 
reahud, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enocted or substantavely enacted by the end of the reporting peraod. 
The measurement of deferred tax llob1htaes and assets renects the taX consequences that would follow from the manner In whiCh the Company expects, at 
the end of the reporung period. to recover or settle the carryuag amount of its a.sets and llab1hues. 

ill. Current a nd deferred tax fo r the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized In profit or loss, except when they relate to Items that are recognized In other comprehensave Income or directly 
111 equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognited In other comprehensive mcome or di rectly in <quity 1 espoctlvely. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TilE YIAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

IX.. Borrowlncs and Borrowing costs 
Borrowing are lnitally recognised at Net off transatlon cost incurred and measured at amortised cosL Any d1frerence between the proceeds (net o 
transation costs) and the redemption amount Is recognised in statetment of profit and loss ov~r ther period of the borrowings usang the effective interest 
method. 
Interests and other borrowing costs lnduded under nnance costs calculated as per effective Interest rate attnbutable to qualifying assets, which takes 
subsunual period of time to get ready for Its Intended use are allocated .. part or the cost or construCtiOn I development or 5UCh assets. Such allocation IS 

suspended dunng extended penods in which active development ls Interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such ~ctivitles are substantially 
complete. Investment 1ncome earned on the temporary Investment of specific borrowtngs pend1ng thetr expend•ture on qualifying assets IS deducted from 
the borrowmg costs elig1ble for capitallsatlon. Other borrowtng costs are charged to the Profit and Loss AccounL 

X. Earnings per Share 
Basic earnmgs per sht~re are Ciillculated by davtdmg the net profit or loss for the year attnbutiible to equaty shareholders by the weaght~ aven.ge number 
of equity shares outstandmg during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outsUndmg dunng the year Is adjusted for events of bonus 
issue, If any. 
For the purpose of calculating d1lu ted earnings per share. the net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number 
of shares outstanding durmg the year are adjusted for the effects of all diluove potential equity shares. 

XI. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash nows are reported u5ing the mdirect method, whereby profit for the period Is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash r«"tlpu or payments and item of income or expenses associated with Investing or finanong cash 
nows. The cash nows from operating. Investing and nnandng actiVIties of the company are segregated. 

XII. cash and Cash Equivalents 
cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet compnse cash at t..nks and on hand and short·tenn deposits w1th an on gtno.l matunty of three months or 
less. wh1ch are subject to an ansagnificant risk of cht~nge.s in Y.i lue. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash nows, cash and cash equivalents consast of c;~sh and short·term deposalS, as deOned above, net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts a s they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash managemenL 

XIII. Foreign currency tran5'1ctions 
A. All transactions In foreign currency arc 1 ecorded In the reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange prevalent on the dates of the relevant 

trans~act•ons. 

B. Monetary assets and liabilities in fore1gn currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date, are conven.ed m reponmg currency at the closang 
rates or exchange prevailing on the said date. Resulunt gain or loss is recognized during the year In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Non monetary ass~ts and liab1hties denom1nated an foreign currenaes are camtd at the exchange rate prevalent on the date or the transaction. 

XIV. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 
A proviSion IS recognlz..:d when an enterpnsc ha) a pre~cnt obhgauon (legal or construcuve) as result or past event and it is pro!:table that an outflow of 
embodymg Pconomlc benefits of resources Will be requ1red to settle a reliably assessable obligation. ProVISions are dcterm1ned based on best esttmate 
required to settle each obligation at each b.llance sheet date. If the effect of t.he time nlue of money is matenal. prov1s1ons are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that retlects, when appropriate, thr risks spe-atlc to the habihty. When discounting Is used, the mcrease m the prov1slon due to the passage of 
ume is recognised as a hnance cost. 
Contmgent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events. whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncenain future events not wholly withm the control of the Company. A contingent liability also arises, in rare cases. 
where a liability cannot be recognised because It cannot be measured reliably. 
Contmgent assets are nenher recognlR<I nor dlsdosed In the finanaal statements. 

XV. Recent accountJng proni>uncements 
Mimstry of Corporne AfT•1rs ("MCA1 noufies new mnd•rd or amendments to the ex1sttng standards. There is no such nouficaoon wh1ch would have 
been applicable from April I , 2020. 

L--------------------------------------------------------------------------~ 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

3. l>roperty, plant and equipment and capital work-in-progress ( in ~ ) 

Leasehold Land • Compound Wall 
Computers and 

Total Caphal work·in· 
Laptops progress 

(Refer note 28) 
Cost or deemed cost 

Ua la ncc at 1s t April, 2018 17 1.496.664 10.635.281 17.160 182,149,1 OS I 01,956,693 
Additions . . 20,5 12 356 
Ua lance a t 3 1st March, 2019 17 1,496.664 10,635.281 17, 160 182,149,105 122.469,049 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 1st April, 2010 3,862,171 17,160 3,879,331 . 
Depreciation expense 328,050 328,050 . 
Bala nce at 31st Ma rch, 2019 4,190,221 17,160 4,207,381 . 
Carrying amount as on 3 1st March 2019 171,496,664 6,445,060 177,941,724 122,469,049 

Leasehold land • Compound Wall 
Computers and 

Total 
Cap1tal work-in· 

Laptops progress 

co~t or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2019 17 1.496.664 10,635,281 17,160 182,149,105 122.469,049 

Add1t1ons 23,950,109 

Balance at 315t March, 2020 171,496,664 10,635,281 17,160 182, 149,105 146,419,158 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 1st April, 2019 . 4,190,221 17,160 4,207,381 
Deprecmt1on expense 328 950 . 328,950 . 
Balance at 3 1st March, 2020 4,519,171 17, 160 4 536,331 
Carrying amount a.s at 31s t March, 2020 171,496,664 6,116,110 177,612,774 146,419,158 

'Rcft•r note 2{1V)C. 
As at As at 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
~ ~ 

4. Other financial assets 

r:ilUl·ti.I[[S.:Dl 
Secunty deposits 207,600 207,600 

Total 207,600 207,600 

~ 
Other Advances and Rece1vables 

Interest accrued on fixed deoos:ts 1,609 5,855 

Total 1,609 5,855 

5. Cash a nd cash equivalents 

Balances With banks. 
· m current accounts 133,573 53,173 
• depos1t having matunty less than 3 months 28.778 22.188 

Cash on hana 104 100,829 
Total 162,4 55 176,190 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

6. Share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
3,000,000 (P.Y. 3,000,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/· each 

800,000 (P.Y. 8,00,000) Preference Shares of ~ 100/ · each 
Total 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
50,000 (P.Y. 50,000) Equity Shares of ~ 10/· each fully paid up 

Tota l 

As at 

31st March, 2020 
It 

30,000,000 

80,000,000 
110,000,000 

500,000 
500,000 

a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding a t the beginning and at the end of the year 

Fully paid equity sha res 

Bala nce at 1st April, 2018 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance a t 31st March, 2019 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March, 2020 

Number Of Share 

50,000 

50,000 

50,000 

As a t 

31st March, 2019 
It 

30,000,000 

80,000,000 
110,000,000 

500,000 
500,000 

Share Capital 
~ 

500,000 

500,000 

500,000 

b) Rights, Preferences and Restrktions attached to Shares 
The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of ~ 10 per s hare. Each holder of equity share is entitled to ont: vote per share. In the 
event of liqUidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all 
preierential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

c) Equity Shares heldby its holding company or its ultimate holding company, subsidaries or assocoiates of the holding company or the ultimate 

holding company 

llubtown Limited w1th Benificiary Owners 
Total 

As at 31st March, 2020 
No of shares 

held 

36,500 
36,500 

% holding 

73% 
73% 

d) Details of s ha r es held by each shareholders holding more than 5% s hares 

Fully paid equity shares 
llubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 
TCG Urban Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 
Others 

Total 

As at 31st March, 2020 
No of shares % holding 

held 

36,500 
13,000 

!>00 
50,000 

73% 
26% 

1% 
100% 

As at 31st March, 2019 
No of shares held % holding 

36.500 73% 
36,500 73% 

As ilt 31st March, 2019 
No of shares held 

36,500 
13,000 

500 
50,000 

% holding 

73% 
26% 

1% 
100% 
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7. Convertible Instruments classified as Equity 

Convertible Debentures classified as Equity 
1,615,269 (P.Y. : 1,615,269) Zero Coupon Compulsorily Convertible 
Debentures of the face value of ~ 100 each 

Total 

Footnote : 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

161,526,900 
161,526,900 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

161,526,900 
161,526,900 

1,615,269, zero coupon compulsorily convertible debenture of ~ 100 each to be converted not later than five years from the 
date of allotment, into 16,152,690 number of equity shares of face value of ~10/-. 

As per lnd AS 32 & 109, zero coupon compulsorily convertible debentures of ~ 100 each have been classified as equity since 
the issuer holds an unconditional right to avoid a cash outflow. Hence, it has been regrouped under equity. 

The above debentures were due for conversion on March 30, 2020, however in view of accumulated losses and the severe 
liquidity crunch being faced by the Company, the tenure of the said CCDs be extended by further period of two years from 
March 30, 2020 to March 30 2022, such that the CCDs shall fall due for conversion in to equity shares of the Company on 
March 30, 2022. 

8. Other Equity 

Reta ine d Earnings 
Ualancc at the beginning of the year 
Profit attributable to the owners of the company 
Items of OCI recognised directly in retained earnings 

Total 

(82,985,846) 
43,526,306 

(39,459,540) 

(71,396,128) 
(8,589,718) 

(82, 985,846) 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN 

9. Borrowings 

Non-current 
Secured 

Debentures 

EAR ENDED 

768,919 (P.Y.: 768,919) 0% Secured Reedeemable Non-Convertible 
Debentures of the face value of~ 100 each (Refer Footnote) 

Footnote: 

166,855,423 142,905,314 

166,855,423 142,905,314 

768,919, 0% Debenture having reedeemable balance of ~ 7,68,91,900 are to be reedeemed at the end of five years from the 
date of allotment These debentures are secured by creation of first charge by way of the receivables from the project of the 
company <~nd the project being presently executed and developed at Savil, near Vadodara . Gujarat. These debentures will be 
redeemed at a premium of ~ 117 each. The debentures are valued at amortised cost, using EIR method using 16.76% as the 
effective interest rate which has been derived by compounding the face value of the debentures to the redeemable value over 
a period of 5 years. The interest calculated is capitalised to Capitai-WIP. 

The above debentures were due for redemption on March 30, 2020, however in view of accumulated losses and the severe 
liquidity crunch being faced by the Company, the tenure of the said NCDs be extended by further period of two years from 
March 30, 2020 to March 30 2022, such that the NCDs shall fall due for redemption on March 30, 2022. 

10. Other financial liabilities 

Non-current 
Retention money payable 

Total 

Current 
Business Advance received from related party(Refer Note 24) 
Other payables 

Total 

2,143,824 
722,832 

2,866,656 

732,391 
732,391 

1,508,368 
745,823 

2,254,191 
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!!OTES TO TJ-IE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EN DED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

11. Deterred Tax Liabilities lNetJ 

As a t 
31st March, 2020 

'-: 

The following is the analysis of deferred tax liabilities I (asset) presented in the balance sheet 

Deferred Tax Liability 
Deferred Tax (Asset) 

Total 

2019-20 
Deferred tax liabilities I (assets) in relation to : 
On account of Depreciation (WDV) 
On account of Capital work-in-progress 
On account ofUnamortised Premium on Debentures 
On account of convertible Borrowings 
On account of Premium Payable on Debentures 
On acccount of Other Items 

Total 

2018-19 
Deferred tax lia~ilities I (assets) in relation to : 
On account of Capital work-in-progress 
On account of Una mortised Premium on Debentures 
On account of convertible Borrowings 
On account of Premium Payable on Debentures 
On acccount of Other Items 

Tota l 

-
-
-

Opening Balance 

904,801 
(1 ,734,797) 
(5,239,4 76) 
27,813,527 
26,197,378 
(6,810,093) 

41,131,341 

Opening Balance 

(2,182,842) 
(9,266,243) 
29,876,654 
23, 165,607 
(9,027,100) 

33,355,266 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

'-: 

54,915,706 
(13.784,366) 
41,131,340 

Recognised in profit or 
loss 

(904,801) 
1,734,797 
5,239,476 

(27,813,527) 
(26,197,378) 

6,810,093 
(41,131,341) 

Recognised in profit or 

448,046 
4,026,767 

(2,063,12 7) 
3,031,771 
2,217,007 

7,776,074 

Closing Balance 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

Closing Balance 

(1,734,797) 
(5,239,476) 
27,813,527 
26,197,378 
(6,810,093) 

41,131,340 

Since current year's profit is adjusted with carried forward losses of previous years for the purpose of Income tax, there is no current tax payable; hence 
reconciliation has not been provided. 

1 2. Trade payables 

Due to Micro & Small enterprises 
Due to others 

Total 

Footnote 

460,493 
24,581,285 

25,041,777 

536,398.36 
27,244,865 

27,781,263 

The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be Identified on the basis of the information 
avai lable with the Company regarding the status of s uppliers under the MSMED Act The overdue principal amounts outstanding to the extent Rs. 
4,60,4931- (P.Y- 1,11,977) are payable to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. The interest on overdue amount has not been paid 1 provided since 
there are differences in supplier account balances is under reconciliation. 

13. Other Lia bilities 

~ 
Advance from customers 
Deposits (Unsecured) 
Overdrawn bank balances as per books of accounts 
Other payables: 
-Statutory dues 

Total 

5,300,000 
1,350,000 

422,:580 
7,072,380 

5,300,000 
1,350,000 

304,86§_ 
6,954,865 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

14. Revenue from operations 

Other operating revenue : 
Sundry credit balances appropriated 
Excess Provision Written Back 

Total 

15. Other income 

a) Interest Income: 
Bank fixed deposits 

b) Other gains and losses 
Gain on foreign currency fluctuation (Net) 

Total 

16. Costs of Construction/Development 
Construction costs incurred during the year: 

Approval and consultation expenses 
Total 

17. Finance Costs 

Interes t costs: 
Interest on Debentures 
Less- Transfer to Capital WIP (Refer note 28) 
Delayed/penal interest on statu,tory dues 

Total 

18. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
Total 

1 Y. Other Expenses 

Legal and professional fees 
Security Charges 
Other expenses (refer footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration (included in other expenses) : 
Audit Fees 
GST on above 

Total 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

3,295,090 

3,295,090 

2,345 
2,345 

1.299 
1,299 
3,644 

23,950,109 
(23,950,109) 

19,238 
19,238 

328,950 
328,950 

31,885 
394,809 
128,887 

555,581 

20,000 
3,600 

23,600 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

186,760 

186,760 

1,601 
1,601 

5,632 
5,632 
7,233 

20,512,356 
(20,512,356) 

52,841 
52,841 

328,050 
328,050 

60,771 
515,128 
50,o47 

626,746 

20,000 
3,600 

23,600 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

20. Earn ings Per Share {EPS) 
Basic Earnings Per Share 
Diluted Earnings Per Share •• 

20.1 Basic EPS 

Year Ended 
31st Ma~h, 2020 

870.53 
2.69 

The earnines and weiehted averaee number of eauitv shares used m the calculation of basic earnines oer share are as follows 

Earnings used in the calcula tion of basic earnings pe r share 43,526,306 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 50,000 

20.2 Diluted EPS (Refer note 7) 
The earni ngs and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as fo llows 

Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of di luted earnings per share 

43,526,306 

16,202,690 

Year Ended 
31st March, 2019 

'It 

(171.79) 
(171.79) 

(8,589,718) 

50,000 

(8,589,718) 

50,000 

For the purpose of calculating diluted EPS convertible instruments (zero coupon compulsorily convertible debentures) are deemed to be converted into 

ordinary shares at the beginn ing of the period. 
•• Zero coupon compulsorily convertible debentures could potentially not dilute basic earnings per share fo r the year ended 31st March, 2019, hence 
are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share for F.Y. 2018-19, because they are antidilutive for the period presented. Diluted EPS is 
restncted to the amount of Basic EPS to the extent the conversion of convertible instruments prove to be anti dilutive for F.Y. 2018-19. 

21. Contingent Liabilities (Not Provided For}: 

Particulars 

Claims agains t the Company, not acknowledged as debts on account of: 
Outstanding legal cases 
Income Tax Matter with lncomt! Tax Appellate Tribunal u/s 143(3) for 
the F.Y. 20 11-12 (A.Y. 2012-1 3) 
Income Tax Matter with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal ufs 143(3) for 

the F.Y. 2012-13 (A.Y. 20 13-14) 
Income Tax Matter with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) ufs 
Income Tax Matter with Income Tax Appellate Tribunal ufs 143(3) for 
the F.Y. 20 13-14 (A.Y. 2014-15) 
Income Tax Matter with Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) ufs 
271 (l)(c) for the F.Y. 2013-2014 (A.Y. 2014-15) 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st Ma rch, 2020 

107,512,196 
3,570 

4,750 

1,961,283 
520 

421,052 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

107,512,196 
3,570 

4,750 

1,961,283 
520 

42 1,052 

The Company does not have any cont ingent liability as at balance sheet date, other then stated above, as certified by ma nagement & relied upon by the 

auditors. 



GU ARAT AKRUTI- TCG BIOTECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

22. Disclosure of Derivatives 

a. No denvat1vc mstrument were outstandmg at the end ot the year. 
b. Uncovered nsk m tore1gn currency are as under: 
Cash in Ha nd 
USD 

INR 

EURO 
INR 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
1.400 

96,840 

50 
3,885 

23. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, all items of property plant & Equipment, current assets, current liabilities & 
loans and advances continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

24. Related Parties Disclosures 

A. Names of related parties and description of relationship 

Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited 

Joint Ventures of Holding Company, with whom Transitions have taken place during the year 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Ahmedabad) Private Limi ted 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Vadodara) Private Limited 

Related Party re lationships are identified by the com pany and relied upon by the auditors 
B. Transitions with Relate d Parties 

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Transition 

i. Business Advances receivedf recovere df adjusted 

Hubtown Bus Terminal (Ahmadabad) Private Limited 

Hubtown Bus Terminal (Vadodara) Private Limited 

ii. Interest Expense Accrued 

Hubtown Limited 

Previous years figures are given in brackets 

C. Balance outstanding payablesf reccivables 

a) Unsecured Non- Convertible Debenture 

Hubtown Limited 

b) Business Advances payable 

Hubtown Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Ahmedabad) Pnvate Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Vadodara) Private Limi ted 

Holding 
Company 

~ 

(-) 

(-) 

23,950,109 
(20,512,356) 

Joint Venture of 
Holding Company 

~ 

734,024 
{400,000) 

3,456 
(-) 

(-) 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

166,855,423 

1.121,219 
1,01<1,149 

3,456 

As a t 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

142,905,314 

1,121.219 
387,149 



GUJARAT AKRUTI- TCG BIOTECH LIMITED 
J 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

25. Capita l Management 

The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its 
business and maximise shareholder's value. The company's Board of Di rectors reviews the capital on an annual basis. 

The capilal structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the 
company. There are no borrowings from banks/ financial institutions or corporates other than the equity shareholders and their 
group companies. 

Debt - EQuity Ratio 

The debt- equity ratio at the reporting period was as fo llows 

Secured Debentures 
Less: Cash and Bank Balances 
Net Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Convertible Instruments classified as Equity 
Other Equity 
Total Equi ty (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/ B 

26. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

166,855,423 
(162,455) 

166,692,968 

500,000 
161,526,900 
(39,459,540) 

122,567,360 

136% 

(in~) 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

142,905,314 
(176,190) 

142,729,124 

500,000 
161.526,900 
(82,985,846) 
79,041,054 

181% 

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's 

fi nancial r isk management policy is set by the Managing Board. 
The Company manages market risk th rough a t reasury department which evaluates and exercises independent control over the 
entire process of market risk management. The treasury department recommend risk management objectives and policies which 
are approved by the senior management. The activities of this department include management of cash resourses, borrowing 

strategies and ensuring compliance with the market risk limits and policies. 

1) Market Risk 
a) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 
market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to company's long 

term debt obligations wi th floati ng interest rates. 

b) Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fai r value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate on account of changes in 
foreign exchange rates. The company does not have any exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates from its 

operating activities or investments in foreign companies. 
There is no purchase of materials of imported materials hence fo reign currency risk does not arise. 

2) Credit Risk 
The Company is not exposed to credit risk form its operating activities. Credit risk from balances w1th banks and inter corporate 
loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's policy. 

3) Liquidity risk I The Company's cash flow requiremnet are met by funds received from its holding company. 



GUJARAT AKRUTI- TCG BIOTECH LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

2 7. Fair Value measurement of Financial Instruments (in~) 

31s t March 2020 31st March 2019 
FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cos t FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost 

Einao~ial A~~~t~ 
Other financial assets - - 209,209 - 213,455 
Cash and cash equivalent - - 162,455 - - 176,190 
Total of Financial Assets - - 371,664 - - 389,645 

Fina m;ial Liabiliti~~ 
Borrowings - 166,855,423 - 142,905,314 
Trade payables - - 25,041,777 - - 27,781,263 
Other Financial liabilities - - 2,866,656 - - 2,986,582 
Total of Financial Liabilities - - 194,7 6 3,856 - - 173,673,159 

28. The Company is in discussion with Department of Science and Technology - Government of Gujarat for permission of 
development of the project - Biotech Park. The company is in the possession of the project land and the said project is in progress. As 
per management the recoverable value of property plant and equipment and Capital work in progress is far more than carrying 
v'alue as shown in balance sheet Considering the ongoing nature of the project the Company has capitalised interest expense 
incurred on Capital work in progress. 

29. Previous years figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary. 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR NIRAJ D. ADATIA & ASSOCIATES ~AH ; Fmn Registration No. 129486W - (,1 1;
0 

Director Chartered Accountants ,;;-; :1, . 

~l\ ~C.) ~ DIN, 03134932 

( ~ ~12 { ~ c . - 0 ~ ~· .~~ ~ 0 

NIRAJ ADATIA \t< :J ~ Qi&" -- .YRtJSHANK SHAH 
~r, . 

Partner s'» · '1D • D1rector 

Membership No.: 120844 * -=- DIN: 02960155 

Muml>ai Mumbai 

Date: 4th November, 2020 Date: 4th November, 2020 



Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Joynest Premises Private L:.imited 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

1) Opinion: 

SANKET R SHAH & A SSOCIATES 
Chartered Accountants 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Joynest Premises Private 
Limited ('the Company'); which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 st March 2020, the statement of 
profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the lnd AS financial statements, 
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein 
after referred to as "lnd AS financial statement"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted 
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020 and its financial performance 
tncluding other comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date. 

2) Basis of Opinion: . 
We conducted our audit ln accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs} specified under section 
143( 1 0) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibili ties for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requ irements that are relevant to 
our audit of the lnd AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibi li ties in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

3) Emphasis of Matter: 
1. Attention is invited to Note No. 3.1 (A) of the financial statements with regarding recognition of 

expense for ongoing projects which is based upon estimated project costs, as per the judgement 
of the management, which have been relied upon by us, these being technical matters. 

2. Attention is invited to Note No. 29 of the financial statements with regard to reliance placed by 
the auditors on certification received from the management with regard to the disclosure of 
contingent liabilities given by the Company. 

3. Attention is invited t6 Note No. 31 of the financial statements with regards to balances that are 
subject to confirmations, reconciliation and adjustments if any. 

4. Attention is invited to Notes the Company has not charged interest on loans and advances given 
to various entities in which the Company has a business interest. -( .. sy." H ~ A 

1!..... 0: 
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Our opinion is not qualified in respect of the matters. ~~ t: No. ~r:;, 
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4) Other Information 
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but does not 
include the standalone financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibi lity is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained i[l the audit or otherwise appears 
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 

5) Responsibility of Management's for the lnd AS Financial Statements: 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other 
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the 
Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 as amended, and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the lnd AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern qasis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

6) Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the lnd AS Financial Sta'tements: 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's 
report that includes our .opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected _ · ence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. (;"" c;,~"'11 d ,.Ss0 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant -to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going ·Concern. If we c·onclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the lnd AS financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to contintJe as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the lnd AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the lnd AS financial statements of the current period 
and are therefore the key' audit matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public in benefits of such communication. 
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7) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 
Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows and the 

statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account; 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rule issued thereunder; 

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 
2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

D with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 
Annexure 8; and 

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The Company has no pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone 

financial statements. 
11. The Company has made prov1s1on, as required under the applicable law or 

accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, and 
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 135703W 

Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21 st July, 2020 

UDIN: 20152369AAAADP3765 



Annexure· A to the Independent Auditors' Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report 
to the members of Joynest Premises Private Limited of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the 
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report that: 

(i) a. The Company has maintained a register of fixed assets, giving description and location of its 
assets; and 
b. As explained to us, the Company has physically verified its fixed assets during the year; 

(ii) a. The inventory has .been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, 
the frequency of the verification is reasonable. 
b. In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of Inventory followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and the nature 
of its business; 
c. On the basis of our examination of the records of the company, we are of the opinion that, the 
company is not maintaining proper project-wise records. The value of inventory has shown of 
both projects. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared to its 
book records were not maintained. 

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loan to one company and one partnership firm covered 
under the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act; 
a. The terms and condition of the loan are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the 

Company, and 
b. the schedule of repayment of principal on demand and the loan is interest free loan; 
c. As per the terms and conditions of the arrangement, the amount of the loan is not overdue; 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, 
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 
76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company . . 

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 
148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company. 

(vii) a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Maharashtra Value Added Tax 
(MVAT) and Employees State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) the Company is generally regular in 
depositing, undisputed statutory dues, including income-tax and other material statutory dues, 
wherever applicable, with the appropriate authorities. ~ .. ~ 
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The extent of arrears of statutory dues outstanding including interest at the balance sheet date, 
for a period exceeding six months from the date they become payable and the details of 
outstanding as follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in INR 
1. ESIC Payable 7,617/-
2. Maharashtra Value Added Tax (MVAT) Liability 43,60,026/-
3. Interest on above Staturory Liability 72,77,444/-

Total Statutory Liability 1 '16,45,087/· 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company 
examined by us, the particulars of dues of Income Tax, Value Added Tax and Service Tax as at 
the Balance Sheet date which have not been deposited on account of a dispute are as follows: 

Name of Statue Nature of Amount not Financial Details of Pending 
Dues deposited on Year Proceedings 

account of 
demand (In INR)* 

Income Tax Act, Income 1,00,02,800/- 2016-17 The Commissioner of Income 
1961 Tax Tax (Appeals). 

* Net of amount depos1ted under protest 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
defaulted during the year in repayment of principal dues to debenture holders. The Company 
does not have any loans or borrowings from government during the year. 

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instru'ments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the 
Order is not applicable. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or 
on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of 
our audit. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approyals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not 
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in 
the standalone financial statements as required b the applicable accounting standards. 



(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 
the Company. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the 
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected to its 
directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to 
the Company. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 135703W 

Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st July, 2020 

UDIN: 20152369AAAADP3765 



Annexure- B to the Independent Auditors' Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(D under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our 
report to the members of Joynest Premises Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

1) Opinion: 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Joynest Premises Private 
Limited ("the Company") as of 31 st March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the" Guidance Note"). 

2) Management's Responsibil ity for Internal Financial Controls: 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components o! internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the acc·uracy and completeness of the 

' 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

3) Auditor's Responsibility: 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the 
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both 
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was es!ablished and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
,?c; ... ~·f4S·sc mancial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 

(~ • M • ~ ~\~rnal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 
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financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

4) Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting: 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that: 
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

5) Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 135703W 

Proprietor 
M. No.: 152369 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21 51 July, 2020 

UDIN: 20152369AAAADP3765 



,~ 

JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020 
Particulars 

1 ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 
(b) Capital work-in-progress 
(c) Financial assets 

(i) Other financia l assets 
(d) Current tax assets (Net) 
Total Non-Current assets 

2 Current assets 
(a) Inventories 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 
(ii) Sank balances other than (i) above 
(iii) Other financia l assets 

(c) Other current assets 
Total Current Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
1 Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 
Total Equity 

2 Liabilities 
i Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(1) Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 

(b) Provisions 
Total Non-Curre nt Liabilities 

ii Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 
(c) Provisions 
Total Current Liabilities 
Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Note 
No. 

4 
4 

5 
6 

7 

8 
9 
5 
10 

11 
12 

13 
14 
15 

16 
14 
17 
15 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

6,825,990 
22,569,817 

5,206,750 
15 899 175 

50,501,732 

2,433,825,340 

10,062,492 
120,620,051 
305,032,240 
141,530,258 

3,011,070,381 
3,061,572,113 

1,047,194,550 
(184,718,547) 
862,476,003 

402,796,067 
17,181,288 

28624 
420,005,980 

194,265,907 
437,792,470 

1,14 7,012,430 
19 324 

1, 779,090,131 
2,199,096,110 
3,061,572,113 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

3,274,270 
22,569,817 

5,095,250 
9,016,475 

39,955,812 

2,240,646,171 

17,959,263 
120,120,051 
205,909,128 
176,387,212 

2,761,021,826 
2,800,977,638 

1,047,194,550 
(152,209,794) 
894,984,756 

400,985,870 
12,946,631 

21,247 
413,953,746 

243,026,343 
614,081,161 
634,931,192 

437 
1,492,039,133 
1,905,992,681 
2,800,977,638 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 
Firm Registration No: 135703W 

c hartered/2jta:ts_____.-

sANK~ 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st July, 202 

Foe ond nn boholf nf<I>O ~· 

KAMAL MAT ALIA 

Director 
DIN: 03134932 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st July, 2020 
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JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
Particulars Note Year ended Year ended 

No. 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 18 
Other Income 19 

Total Income 

II Expenses 
Costs Of Construction I Development 20 
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 
Changes in Inventories of Incomplete Project 21 
Employee Benefits Expense 22 
Finance Costs 23 
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 24 
Other Expenses 25 
Total Expenses 

lll Profit before Tax 

IV Tax Expense 
Current Tax 

Profit I (Loss) for the Year 

V Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit liab il ity I asset 

VI Total comprehensive income I (loss) for the year 

VII Earning pe r equity share of nominal value of~ 10/ - each 

Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share 26 
Class - A 
Class - B 
Class- C 
Ordinary 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 

As per our report of even date 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st july, 2020 

~ ~ 

34,616,123 10,600,529 
9,196,601 7,798,206 

43,812,724 18,398,735 

141,577,203 143,604,936 
15,533,149 10,502,108 

(192,866,680) (324,024,284) 
58,869,526 61,892,871 

930,980 9,267,700 
935,518 1,200,808 

51,328,613 132,076,498 
76,308,310 34,520,637 

(32,495,586) (16,121,902) 

(32,495,586} (16,121,902} 

(13,168) (13,423) 

(32,508,754} (16, 135,325} 

(1.79) (0.89) 
(16.12) (8.00) 

(0.62) (0.31) 
(3,249.56) (1,612.19) 

For and on behalf of the board of Directors 

~ 
KAMAL MAT ALIA 

Director 
DIN: 03134932 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21stjuly, 2020 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 

CASH FlOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1ST MARCH, 2020 
Particulars 

I CASH FLOW ARISING FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES : 
Net profiti(Joss) before taxa bon as per Statement of Profit and Loss 
Add 1 (Less) : 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Remeseaurement of the net defined benefit hab1hty I asset 
Interest income 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Add 1 (Less) : 
Increase I (Decrease) in Trade payables 
Increase I (Decrease) in Provis1ons 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other Non Current I Current Liabilities and Provisions 
(Increase) I Decrease in lnventones 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other Non Current I Current Assets 
Direct taxes paid 

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities 

II CASH FLOW ARISING FROM INVESTING ACTIV!T!ES · 
Inflow 1 (Outflow) on account of : 
Purchase of Tangible I Intangible Assets 
(Increase) I Decrease in Capital Work in Progress 
(Increase) I Decrease in Bank balance 
Interest Received 
Ne t cash flow from investing activities 

Ill CASH FlOW ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIV!T!ES · 
Inflow 1 (Outflow) on account of : 
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 
Fmance costs paid 
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 
Net incr ease in cash and cash equivalents (I+ II+ Ill) 

Add: Bala nce at the beginning of the year 
Cash a nd Cash Equivalents at the close of the year 

Compone nts of cash and cash equiva lents (Refer Note 8) 
Cash on hand 

Balances With Banks (including Fixed Depos1ts haVIng maturities less than three months) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
Note: 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

(32,495,586) 

930,980 
935,518 
(13,168) 

(9,158,295) 
(7,304,965) 

(39,800,551) 

(48,760,436) 
26,264 

340,027,204 
(193,179,169) 

(64,377,658) 
(6,882,700) 

26,853,504 
(12,947,046) 

(4.487,238) 

(500.000) 
9,158,295 

4,171,057 

1,810,198 
(930,980) 
879,218 

(7,896,771) 
17,959,263 

10,062,492 

31,863 

10,030,629 
10,062,492 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

(16,121,902) 

9,267,700 
1,200,808 

(13.423) 
(7, 784,493) 
2,670,592 

(13,451,310) 

55,614,397 
3,938 

128,694,903 
(321,406,157) 
224,397,149 

(1,565,857) 
85,738,373 
72,287,063 

(65,883) 
(2,630,899) 

(54,120,051) 
7 784 493 

(49,032,340) 

(519,264) 
(9,26 7, 700) 

(9,786,964) 
13,467,758 

4 491 505 
17,959,263 

57,609 

17 901654 
17,959,263 

The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under md1rect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS· 7) statement of cash 
nows. 

As per our attached report of even date 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st July, 2020 

For and on behalf of the board of D1rectors 
r 

~ 
KAMAL MAT ALIA 

KHILEN V SHAH 
Director 

DIN: 03134932 

Place: Mum bai 
Date: 21st July, 2020 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Notes Amount Amount 
No ~ ~ 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 
Equity Shares Preference Shares 

As at 1st April, 2018 11 727,194,550 320,000,000 
Changes in share capital 
As at 31st March, 2019 727,194,550 320,000,000 
Changes in share capital 
As a t 31st March, 2020 727,194,550 320,000,000 

B. OTHER EQUITY 
Reserves a nd Surplus 

Retained Earnings Total 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 (1 36 074 468) 911.120,082 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (13,423) (13,423) 
Transfer to Retained Earnings (1 6,121,902) (16,121,902) 
Ba la nce at 31st March, 2019 (1 52,209,794) 894,984,756 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (13,168) (13,168) 
Transfer to Retained Earnings (32,495,586) (32,495,586) 
Ba lance at 31st March, 2020 (184,718,547) 862,476,003 

The a ccompa nying notes a re a n integra l part of the financial statements 

As per our attached report of even date 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st july, 2020 

For and on behalf of the board of Directors 

KAMAL MAT ALIA 

Di rector 

~95 
KHILEN V SHAH 

Director 
DIN : 03134932 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st july, 2020 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 1. COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

1.1 Company Overview 
Joynest Premises Private Limited is a Private Limited Company domiciled in India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. Company is 
engaged in the real estate business of construction and development of residential project at Chembur and other similar works. 

1.2 The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 21st July, 2020 

Note 2. STANDARDS, NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED EARLY BY THE COMPANY 

Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the financial statements is provided 
below. 
lnd AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers' (lnd AS 115) 
There is one new standard issued by MCA (not yet effective) for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing revenue recognition 
standards including Ind AS 18 - Revenue and Ind AS 11 - Construction contracts. The new standard provides a control-based revenue 
recognition model and provides a five step application principle to be followed for revenue recognition: 

i) Identification of the contracts with the customer 
ii) Identification of the performance obligations in the contract 
iii) Determination of the transaction price 
iv) Allocation of transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step ii) 
v) Recognition of revenue when performance obligation is satisfied. 
The effective date of the new standard has not yet been notified by the MCA. The management is yet to assess the impact of this new standard 
on the Company's financial statements. 

Note 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (lnd AS) as notified by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act , 2013 ('Act') (to the extent notified) read with Rule 3 of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The Company has adopted all the IndAS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with lndAS 101 First time adoption of 
Indian Accounting Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an 
existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

a) Historical Cost Convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for the following: 

i. certain financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value 
ii. assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. 
iii. defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value. 

b) Current and Non-Current Classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non current classification. 
An asset is classified as current when : 

i. It is expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
iii. It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
iv. It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 

reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current 
A liability is c.Iassified as current when: 

i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
iii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current 

Operating cycle for the business activities of the company covers the duration of the specific project I contract f service and extends up to 
the realisation of receivables within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective project 

c) Foreign currency translation 
Functional and presentation curre ncy 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('JNR') which is also the functional and presentation currency of the Company. 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRJVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

3.1 REVENUE RECOGNITION 
Revenue Recognition Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects 
the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. 

A. Revenue from sale of prope rties/ development rights: 
i. Revenue from the sale of properties I flats I commercial premises I units in a project are recognised when the company satisfies 

performance obligations at a point in time i.e when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on giving soft possession for fit 
outs or actual possession to the customer. 

ii. Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price concessions, 
returns and financing component if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from 
customers on behalf of the government 

iii. Amount received as Advance from customers on Invoicing I raising demand letters are classified as Contract Liabilities. The company's 
right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the company has transferred to the customer are classified as receivables. 

iv. The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from April 1, 2018. lnd AS 115 establishes 
principles for reporting information about the nature, amount. timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from the 
contracts with its customers and replaces lnd AS 18 "Revenue" and Guidance Note on "Accounting for Real Estate transactions" for 
entities to whom lnd AS is applicable. The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach to contracts that 
were not completed as at April 01, 2018 and there were no amounts required to be debited to Retained Earnings pertaining to 
recognition of revenue based on satisfaction of performance obligations at a point in time. 

Accordingly, the comparative amounts of revenue and corresponding contract assets/ liabilities have not been retrospectively adjusted. 

B. Revenue from Trading Materials: 
Revenue from sale of trading material is recognised when control of promised goods are transferred to the customer. 

C. Revenue from project management services: 
Revenue from 'project management services' is recognized only on satisfaction of performance obligation of promised services based on 
the agreements between the Company and the customer to whom such services are rendered. 

D. Interest 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding at the 
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

E. Others 
Revenues I Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

F. Share of profit I loss from partnership firms I association of persons (AOP) is accounted in respect of the financial year of the Firm f AOP, 
during the reporting period, on the basis of their audited/ management reviewed accounts, which is considered as a part of other 
operating activity. 

3.2 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION/ AMMORTISATION 
A. Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction Jess accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 

if any. 
8. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method on the basis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specified in Schedule 

II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of 
such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Computer 
Office Equipment's 
Furniture and Fixture 
Vehicles 

3.3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
3.3.1 Initial recognition 

Estimated useful life fin Years) 
3 
5 

10 
8 

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument All 
financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fa1r value on initial recognition except for trade receivables which are initially measured at 
transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financia l assets and financial liabilities, that are 
not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are 
accounted for at trade date. 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

3.3.2 Subsequent measurement 
a. Non-derivative financia l instruments 
(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order 
to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Financial assets at fa ir value through other comprehens ive income 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model whose 
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Further, in cases 
where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model. for its investments which are classified as equity 
instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financia l asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fai r valued through profit or loss. 

(iv) Financialliabilities 
Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration 
recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables 
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

(v) Fa ir value of financial instruments 
In determining the fair value of its fi nancial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market 
conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash now analysis, available 
quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may 
never actually be realized. 

3.3.3 Derecognition of financial instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the 
fi nancial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under lndAS 109. A fi nancial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is 
derecognized from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

3.3.4 Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through 
profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to life time ECL. 
For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or 
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised is recognized as an 
impairment gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fai r 
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases. the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

3.4 TAXATION 
i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial 
statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never 
taxable or deductible. The Company's cur rent tax is calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of 
the reporting period. 
In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ufs llSJB of Income Tax Act. 1961 (i.e. MAT), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal 
income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit enti tlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the 
specified period. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 
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JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

ii. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and 
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or 
the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or Joss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity respectively. 

3.5 INVENTORIES 
All inventories are stated at Cost or Net Realizable Value, whichever is lower. 
Stock of material at Site' includes cost of purchase, other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition. 
Cost formula used is average cost 

Incomplete Projects' include cost of incomplete properties for which the Company has not entered into sale agreements and in other cases 
where the revenue recognition is postponed. 'Incomplete Projects' also include initial project costs that relate directly to a (prospective) 
project. incurred for the purpose of securing the project These costs are recognized as expenditure for the year in which they are incurred 
unless they are separately identifiable and it is probable that the respective project will be obtained. 

Inventory value includes costs incurred up to the completion of the project viz. cost of land I rights, value of floor space index (FSI), materials, 
services and other expenses (including borrowing costs) attributable to the projects. Cost formula used is average cost 

3.6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Post-Employment Benefits 
Defined benefit plans: 

3.6.1 Gra tuity 
Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of a defined benefit plan. The liability recognised in the financial statements in 
respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date, together with adjustments for unrecognised 
actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation is calculated at or near the reporting date by an independent 
actuary using the projected unit credit method. 
Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes tn actuarial assumptions are credited or charged to the statement of OCI 
in the year in which such gains or losses are determined. 
Short-term employee benefits: 
Expense in respect of other short term benefits is r ecognised on the basis of the amount paid or payable for the period during which services 
are rendered by the employee. 
Other Long Term employee Benefits : 
Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed within one year from the balance sheet date is 
recognised on the basis of discounted value of estimated amount required to be paid or estimated value of benefit expected to be availed by 
the employees. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due or expected to be availed more than one year after the balance 
sheet date is estimated on the basis of an actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experience and changes m actuarial assumptions are charged to 
statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined. 
Defined contribution plans: Company's contribution to State governed Provident Fund Scheme is recognised during the year in which the 
related service is rendered. 

3.7 BORROWING COSTS 
Interests and other borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the cost of 
construction I development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted 
and, no costs are allocated once all such activities are substantially complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of 
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is ded ucted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other 
borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Account 

3.8 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit fo r the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with 
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 
3.9 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

i. All transactions in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency, based on closing rates of exchange prevalent on the dates of 
the relevant transactions. 

ii. Monetary assets and liabilities m foreign currency, outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date , are converted in reporting currency at the 
closing rates of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss is recognized during the year in the statement of profit and 
loss. 

iii. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the date of the 
transaction. 

3.10 SEGMENT REPORTING 
The Company is engaged in the business of Real Estate Development, which as per Jnd AS- 108 'Operating Segments' is considered to be the 
only reportable business segment The Company is also operating within the same geographical segment Hence, disclosures under Jnd AS -
108 are not applicable. 

3.11 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the amount of 
obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to renect the current best 
estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material. 
Contingent liability is disclosed for: 
Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or 
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a 
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. 

3.12 USE OF ESTIMATES 
The preparation of the finanoal statements in conformity With lndAS requ1res management to make esnmates, Judgments and assumptions. 

These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liab1hties, 

the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financ1al statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses 

during the period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments 

and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note 3.12.1.Accounting estimates could change from period to 

period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of 

changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are renected in the financial statements in the period in which 

changes are made and, if material, the1r effects are disclosed in the notes to the fi nancial statements. 

3.12.1 Critical accounting judgements and estimates 
a. Revenue recognition 

The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method m accounting for its revenue. Costs of the prOJect are based on the 
management's estimate of the cost to be incurred upto the complenon of the projects and include cost of land, Floor Space Index (FSJ), 
matenals, services and other expenses attributable to the proJeCts. EStimates of project mcome, as well as proJect costs, are reviewed 
periodically. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion of work. ProVISions for estimated losses, if any, on 
uncompleted contracts are recorded m the period in wh1ch such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the 
reporting date. 

b. Property, plant a nd equipment and depreciation 
The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected 
residual value at the end of its hfe. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by management at the time 
the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial year end. The lives are based on histon cal experience with 
s1milar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may 1mpact their life, such as changes in technology. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 4. Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress 

Computers and Furniture and Vehicles Office Total Capital work-in· 
Laptops Fixtures Equipment progress 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 38,687 1,148,117 3,927,258 4,226,702 9,340,764 19,938,918 
Addi tions 65,883 . 65,883 2,630,899 
Transfers 
Balance at 31st Ma rch, 2019 38,687 1,148,117 3,993,141 4,226,702 9,406,647 22,569,817 

Accumulated depreciation and Impairment 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 38,687 914,924 633,246 3,344,712 4,931,569 
Depreciation expense 74,497 492,652 633,659 1,200,808 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 38,687 989,421 1,125,898 3,978,371 6,132,377 

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2019 158,696 2,867,243 248,3 31 3,274,270 22,569,817 

Computers and Furniture and 
Vehicles 

Office 
Total 

Capital work-in· 
Laptops Fixtures Equipment progress 

Cost or deemed cost 

Ba lance at 31st March, 2019 38,687 1,148,117 3,993,141 4,226,702 9,406,647 22,569,817 
Additions 674,690 3,812,548 4,487,238 
Disposals 
Balance at 31st March, 2020 38,687 1,822,807 7,805,689 4,226,702 13,893,885 22,569,817 

Accumula ted depreciation and impairment 

Balance at 31st March, 2019 38,687 989,421 1,125,898 3,978,371 6,132,377 
Depreciation expense 39,893 699,726 195,899 935,518 
Balance at 31st March, 2020 38,687 1,029,314 1,825,624 4,174,270 7,067,895 

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 . 793,493 5,980,065 52,432 6,825,990 22,569,817 
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Note 5. Other financia l assets 

Non-current 

Bank balances 
- Deposits with maturity of more than twelve months 

Security deposits 

Project Advances 
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 
Other receivables (Other than Trade Receivables) 

Note 6. Current Tax assets a nd liabilities 

Advance Tax paid 

Note 7. Inventories 

Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
- Stock of material at s ite 
- Incomplete projects 

Note 8. Cash and cash equiva lents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 
- in escrow accounts 
Cheques I Drafts on hand 
Cash on hand 

Note 9. Other bank ba lances 

Other bank deposits 
Margin money deposits 

Foot Note: 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

5,000,000 
206,750 

5,206,750 

243,732,938 
984,696 

60,314,606 
305,032,240 

15,899,175 
15,899,175 

1,622,400 
2,432,202,939 

2,433,825,340 

9,786,600 
244,029 

31,863 
10,062,492 

93,450,000 
27,170,051 

120,620,051 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

5,000,000 
95,250 

5,095,250 

150,415,754 
947,426 

54,545,948 
205,909,1 28 

9,016,475 
9,016,475 

1,309,911 
2,239,336,260 

2,240,646,1 71 

16,225,454 
1,676,200 

57,609 
17,959,263 

93,450,000 
26,670,051 

120,120,051 

Balances with bank in margin money and fixed deposits are kept as security for guarantees 1 other faci lities. 

Note 10. Other assets 

Curr.en1 
Advances to land owners 
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind 
Prepaid Expenses 
Balance with statutory authorities 
Plan Assets (Net of provisions~ 92,419) 

Total 

10,000,000 10,000,000 
128,257,680 132,625,698 

576,534 562,555 
2,683,717 33,154,514 

12,327 44,445 
141,530,258 176,387,212 
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Note 11. Equity share capita l 

Equity share capital 
Preference share capital 

Total 

Authorised Share Capital: 
100,00 (P.Y. · 100,00) Ordinary Equity Shares of ~ 10 each 
1,81,34,450 (P.Y. · 1,81,34,450) Class A Equity Shares of~ 10 each 
20,16.050 (P.Y. · 20,16,050)Ciass B Equity Shares of~ 10 each 
5,25,58,955 (P.Y. · 5,25,58,955) Class C Equity Shares of~ 10 each 
3,20,00,000 (P.Y. • 3,20,00,000), 17.75% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of ~ 10 each 

Tota l 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
Ordinary Equity Shares 
100,00 (P.Y. • 100,00) Ordinary Equity Shares of ~ 10 each 
Class A Equity Shares 
l ,81,34,450(P.Y. · 1,81,34,450) Class A Equity Shares of ~ 10 each 
Class 8 Equity Shares 
20,16,050 (P.Y. · 20,16.050)Ciass B Equity Shares of~ 10 each 
Class 'C' Equity Shares 
5,25.58.955 (P.Y. · 5,25,58,955) Class C Equity Shares of~ 10 each 
Prefere nce Shares 
3,20,00,000 (P.Y. · 3,20,00,000), 17.75% Cumulative Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of ~ 10 each 

Total 

a) Reconciliation of Number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Ord inary Equity Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2018 

Add 1 (Less): Issued 1 (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31st March. 2019 

Add I (Less) : Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31s t March, 2020 

Class A Equity Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2018 

Add I (Less) : Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 3 1st March, 2019 

Add I (Less): Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31s t March, 2020 

Class 8 Equity Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2018 

Add I (Less): Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Add I (Less): Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2020 

Class C Equity Shares 
Balance at 1st April , 2018 

Add I (Less): Issued I (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Add I (Less): Issued 1 (Bought back) during the year 
Balance a t 31st March, 2020 

Preference Shares 
Balance at 1st April, 2018 

Add I (Less): Issued 1 (Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 31st March, 2019 

Add I (Less): Issued I [Bought back) during the year 
Balance at 3 1s t March, 2020 

b) Terms I rights attached to Equity Shares: 

Equity Shares (Class 'A') : Class A equoty shares have no voting rights. 

As at 
3 1st March, 2020 

~ 

727.194,550 
320,000,000 

1,047,194,550 

100,000 
181,344,500 

20,160,500 
525,589,550 
320,000,000 

1,047,194,550 

100,000 

181.344,500 

20,160,500 

525.589.550 

320.000,000 

1,047,194,550 

Number of shares 

10.000 

10.000 

10 000 

18,134,450 

18,134,450 

18,134,450 

2.016,050 

2,016,050 

2,016,050 

52,558,955 

52.558,955 

52,558,955 

32,000,000 

32,000,000 

32,000,000 

Equity Shares (Class 'B') : 
Equity Shares (Class 'C') : 
Ordinary Shares : 

Class B equity shares shall be entitled to 26% of the total voting rights in the Company. 
Class C equity shares shall be entitled to 74% of the total voting rights In the Company. 
Ordinary Equity shares have no voting and distributions rights. 

c) Terms of Conversio n of Preference Shares 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

727,194,550 
320,000,000 

1,047,194 ,550 

100,000 
18 1.344,500 

20.160,500 
525.589,550 
320,000.000 

1,047,194,550 

100,000 

181,344,500 

20,160,500 

525.589,550 

320,000,000 

1,047,194,550 

Share Capital 
~ 

100,000 

100,000 

100 000 

181,344,500 

181,344,500 

181,344,500 

20,160,500 

20,160,500 

20,160,500 

525.589,550 

525,589,550 

525,589,550 

320,000,000 

320,000.000 

320,000,000 

The Company has issued 17.75%, 3,20.00,000, cumulative compulsorily convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each (CCPS) on 26th February, 2014. Each CCPs shall 
be compulsorily convertible Into Class "B • Equity Share at fair value, which Is equivalent to the subscription amount of the CCPS in one or more 
February 27,2029. The Company has not paid any dividend sonce date ofissue of the above preference shares. 
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d) Details of shares he ld by each s hareholde rs holding more than 5% shares 

I. Equity Share capital 

Ordinary EquJty Shares 
Hubtown Umited 
Shree Naman Developers 

Class 'A' EquJty Shares 
Hubtown Limited 
High Scale Trading Private Umlted 
Grayllne Real Estate Private Umlted 
Eknalh I nfraprojects Private Umlted 
).P. Yaastu Nlrman Private Umited 

Class 'B' Equi ty Shares 
SIREF I Residential A Umiled 

Class 'C' Equity Shares 
Hubtown Limited 

Preference Shares 
SIREF I Residential A Umited 

Note 12. Other Equity 
Retained Earning 

Re tained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year 
Prior Period Adjustment 
Pront a ttributable to the owners of the company 
Balance at the end of the year 

As at 3 1st March, 2020 
No ofsha~s held % boldlngoflhisdassor 

shares 

7.400 
2600 

10,000 

12,431,045 
2,016,050 
1,108,827 
1,671,306 

907,222 
t8,134,450 

2 016 050 
2 Ot6 050 

52,558,955 
52 558955 

32,000 000 
32,000,000 

74.00% 
26.00% 

100.00% 

68.55% 
11.12% 

6.11% 
9.22% 
5.00% 

100.00% 

100 
100% 

100 
100% 

100% 
100% 

Total 

Total 

As a t 3 1st March, 2019 
No or shares held % holding of this 

class of shares 

7,400 74.00% 
2,600 26.00% 

10,000 100.00% 

12,43 1.D45 68.55% 
2,016,050 11.12% 
1.108,827 6.11% 
1.671,306 9.22% 

907.222 5.00% 
t8,134,450 100.00% 

2,016,050 100 
2 016 050 tOO% 

52,558,955 100 
52,558,955 tOO% 

32,000,000 tOO% 
321ooo,ooo tOO% 

As at As a t 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

~ ~ 

{184,718,547} [152,209,794} 
(184,718,547) (152,209,794) 

(152,209,794) ( 136.074,468) 

(32,508,754} [1 6,135,325} 
(184,718,547! (1521209,794} 
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Note 13. Borrowings 

Non-current 

(i) Debentures (Unsecured) 
40,00,000 (P.Y. · 40,00,000) Compulsorily convertible 

debentures of the face value of~lOOI· each (Refer footnote a) 

(ii) Vehicle Loans (Secured) 
· From banks (Refer Foot Note b) 
· From others (Refer Foot Note c) 

(iii) Other Loans (Unsecured) 
· Loan from Companies 

Less: Transferred to Current Maturities 
Of Vehicle Loan from banks 
Of Vehicle Loan from others 
Of Loan from Companies 

Foot Note: 

Total 

As a t 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

400,000,000 

985,870 
2,927,224 

247,596,573 
651,509,667 

(572,263) 
{544,764) 

(247,596,573) 
(248, 713,600) 
402,796,067 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

400,000,000 

1,505,134 

247,596,573 
649,101,707 

(519,264) 

(24 7,596,573) 
(248,115,837) 
400,985,870 

a. 17.75% Debentures of ~4,000 Lacs have a term of84 months from issue date (20,00,000 debentures issued on 0110212013 

and 20,00,000 debentures issued on 1010612013) same can be converted into Class "B" Shares in whole or in part at the 

option of the investor but not before expiry of 36 months. The term has been further extended for a period of 36 months 
Out of Total ~4,000 Lacs Debentures, Interest has been provided on Debentures amounting to n50 Lacs & on the balance 
amount of Debentures i.e. n, 750 Lacs no Interest has been provided during the period. 

b. ·Secured Vehicle loans from banks, which carry interest rate@ 9. 76% p.a and are repayable by November,2021 
• Vehicle loans secured against the assets of the Company 

c. · Secured Vehicle loans from financial institution, which carry interest rate@ 7.45% p.a and are repayable by 
November,2024 
· Vehicle loans secured against the assets of the Company 

d. Guarantees I Security given for Secured loans taken by the company 
· Personal guarantee of Mr. Hemant Shah and Mr. Vyomesh Shah, the promoter directors of Hub town Limited 
·Corporate guarantee of Hub town Limited 
. The promoters of Hubtown Limited have pledged the shares of Hub town Limited held by them as security for the Joan. 

Note 14. Other financial liabilities 

Non-current 
Retention money payable 

.l:.w:rmt 
Current maturities of long· term debts 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings 
Interest Accrued & Due on Other Loan 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 
Retention money payable 
Security deposits (Refundable) 
Other payables 

Foot Note : 

Total 

Total 

17 181 288 
17,181,288 

248,713,600 
611,066 

2,247,228 
132,970 

2,746,535 
617,576 

182,723,496 
437,792,470 

12 946 631 
12,946,631 

248,115,837 

2,247,228 
132,970 

2,706,891 
617,576 

360,260,660 
614,081,161 

Retention Money liability to the contractors which are not due for payment as at 31st March, 2020 have been shown under the 

head "Other Financial Liabilities" as per lnd AS-32. As per the management. the retention liability is in the nature of holding the 

amount as guarantee towards performance and does not relate to credit period given by the contractor. Further m the opinion of 

the management, there has not been any authoritative clarification 1 interpretation with regard to measurement of fair value in 

respect of above item hence retention liability has not been discounted as on 31st March, 2020. 
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Note 15. Provisions 

Non-current 
Employee Benefits 

Provision for leave benefit 

Cl.J.1:u.D.1 
Employee Benefits 

Provision for Gratuity 
Provision for leave benefit 

Note 16. Trade payables 

Due to MSME (Refer footnote) 
Due to Others 

Foot Note : 

Total 

Total 

Total 

As a t 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

28,624 
28624 

19 324 
19324 

7,080,416 
187,185,491 

194,265,907 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

21 247 
21247 

437 
437 

243,026,343 
243,026,343 

Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 
: The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified on the 
basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act The overdue 
principal amounts outstanding to the extent~ 70,80,416/- (P.Y- Nil) are payable to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date and the 
same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

Note 17. Other current liabilities 

Cl.J.1:u.D.1 
Advance from customers 
Overdrawn bank balances as per books of accounts 
Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 

. ~Ah&~~ 
!~/ .,~ 

... ~ ~~ 

'·· {/. 
, ""' ~-~' 

1,117, 933,565 

29,078,865 
Total 1,147,012,430 

603,373,930 
444,622 

31,112,640 
634,931,192 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 18. Revenue from operations 

Sale from operat ions : 
Revenue from sale of Trading Materials 

Other operating revenue : 
Excess/Short provision for expenses 
Sundry Creditor Balances Written Back 
Others 

Note 19. Other income 
a) Interest Income: 

-Loans 
- Bank fixed deposits 
-Others 

b) Other gains and losses 
Miscellaneous income 

Total 

Total 

Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

f 

17,156,597 
17,156,597 

2,796,864 
10,987,662 

3,675,000 
17,459,526 
34,616,123 

7,507,523 
1,650,772 

9,158,295 

38,306 
38,306 

9,196,601 

Year ended 
31s t March, 2019 

f 

10,105,529 
10,105,529 

495,000 

495,000 
10,600,529 

432,000 
7,090,843 

261,650 
7,784,493 

13,713 
13,713 

7,798,206 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

EXPENSES 

Note 20. Costs Of Construction I Development 
Construction costs incurred during the year: 

Land I rights acquired 
Material and labour costs 
Approval and consultation expenses 
Other direct development expenses 

Note 21. Changes in Inventories of incomplete projects 

Opening Inventory of Incomplete projects 

Closing Inventory of Incomplete projects 

Note 22. Employee Benefits Expense 
Salaries, bonus, etc. 
Contribution to provident and other funds 
Staff welfare expenses 
Other fund expenses 

Note 23 . Finance Costs 

Interest on Debentures 
Other interest expense 
Delayed/penal interest on loans and statutory dues 

Other borrowing costs 

Note 24. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

Note 25. Other Expenses 
Insurance 
Rent 
Rates and taxes 
Advertisement expenses 
Bad Debts 
Repairs and society maintenance charges 
Legal and professional fees 
Other expenses (Refer Foot Note) 

Foot Note: 
Audit Fees 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

31,794,534 
78,392,508 
30,814,374 

575,787 
141,577,203 

2,239,336,260 

2,432,202,939 
(192,866,680) 

56,827,469 
1,901,438 

27,991 
112,628 

58,869,526 

678,962 
202,018 

880,980 
50,000 

930,980 

935,518 
935,518 

902,435 
3,000,000 

129,508 
21,847,553 

79,949 
20,610 

3,337,991 
22,010,567 

51,328,613 

50,000 
50,000 

Year ended 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

97,139,428 
46,001,736 

463,772 
143,604,936 

1,915,311,976 

2,239,336,260 
(3 24,024,284) 

59,897,459 
1,856,339 

32,102 
106,971 

61,892,871 

5,056,195 
3,991,505 

9,047,700 
220,000 

9,267,700 

1,200,808 
1,200,808 

798,914 

64,754 
3,452,023 

493,991 
185,143 

109,401,875 
17,679,798 

132,076,498 

50.000 
50,000 
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Note 26. Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic Earnings Per Share 
Class - A 
Class- 8 
Class- C 
Ordinary 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 
Class- A 
Class- 8 
Class - C 
Ordinary 

Basic EPS 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

(1.79) 
(16.12) 

(0.62) 
(3,249.56) 

(1.79) 
(1.48) 
(0.62) 

(3,249.56) 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

(0.89) 
(8.00) 
(0.31) 

(1,612.19) 

(0.89) 
(1.94) 
(0.31) 

(1,612.19) 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows 

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Earnings used in the calculation o f basic earnings per share (32,495,586) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 
Class - A 18,134,450 
Class - 8 2,016,050 
Class- C 52,558,955 
Ordinary 10,000 
Total 72,719,455 

Diluted EPS 

(16,121,902) 

18,134,450 
2,016,050 

52,558,955 
10,000 

72,719,455 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of dilu ted earnings per share are as 
Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 

Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share (32,495,586) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share 
Class- A 18,134,450 
Class- 8 74,016,050 
Class- C 52,558,955 
Ordinary 10,000 
Total 144,719,45 5 

(16,121,902) 

18,134,450 
74,016,050 
52,558,955 

10,000 
144,719,455 

For the purpose of diluted EPS convertible instruments 17.75% Debentures are deemed to be converted on the first day of 
the previous year. The conversion ratio has been arrived at on face value basis. 



IOYNEST PRE,.. ISES PRIVATE LI"'ITED 
CIN: U45202,..HZ008PTCI83715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATE,..EHTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 1ST "'ARCH, 2020 

Note 27. Related Parties Disclosures 

A. Names of related part ies and description or relationship 

Parent/ Holding Company 
Hubtown Llmi~ 

Other Fellow Sub:stdlartts (with Wbom transactions have taken place) 
Citvtokl Farmint Private Limited 
Heddle KnowledRe Prtvate Limited 

Others· joint Ventures Of Holding Company (wtth Whom trans:acttons have taken place) 
Rising Glory Developers 
Akruti Gl<l JV 
Sunstone Developers JV 
Ackrutl Jay Chandan JV 

Key Management personnel their relatives &. enterprises (wtth Whom transactions have taken place) 
Cltygold Management Servk:H Pvt Ltd 

Note: Related party relat1onships are as idtntifted by the Company and rei ted upon by the Auditor. 
Previous year 

B. Related party transactions and balanm as at year end: 

Sr. Nature or transaction Holding Fellow Subsidiary 

~ Coml!a"l cOmJ!anles 

a. Transactions w1th Related parties 

Loans and Advances reulvtd \ recovered \ adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 148,621,000 

(290.584.000) 

Cltygold Farming Prtvate Um1ted 

Rising Glory Developers 

Akruu Gl<l JV 

Sunstone Developers JV 

Loans and Ad vances glvtn/ repaid / adjusted 
Hubtown Limited 283,359,832 

(44,374,500) 

Citygold Farming Prmte Llm•tod 
(2.200,000) 

Rising Glory Developers 

AkrutlGI<I JV 

Sunstone Developers JV 

Ill Others- give n/ repaid/adjusted 

Ackruti Jay Chandan JV 

lv P"'C F<H 
C1tygold l<lanage.,.nt Services Pvt Ltd 

Transrerof Sieel I Other Mater1<~1s (Expenses) 
Hubtown Limited 667,088 

(1,056,464) 

yj Advertisement & Other Income ( Income) 
Hubtown Limited 4,467,370 

vii Sitting Fns (Expenses) 
Khilen Shah 

Kamal Mat.ll~ 

joint VentUrH o f Key Management personnel. 
Holding comJ!!!nr: their relatives & ~nt t!]!r1Sts 

19,921,000 
(25.050.000) 

(800,000) 

(11 ,700,000) 

34,191,000 
(20,675,000) 

(800,000) 

83,562 
( 16,500,000) 

1,727,622 
(2.500,000) 

(5.000.000) 

12.500 

12.500 



)OYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U4 5202MH2008 PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE fiN ANCIAL STAT EMENTS fOR T HE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

C. Balance o utst;mdlng 

Sr. Nature or Balan« outstand ing 
No. 

Balance o utsU ndlng RKeivabiH: 
AkrutiGM )V 
5unstone O.Veloptrs )V 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Mehsana) Private Limited 
Hubtown 8U5 Termina l (Adajn) Pnvate Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Ahmadabad ) Private Limited 
Hubtown Bus Terminal (Vadodara) Private Limited 
Mfs Rising Glory Developers 
Hubtown Limited 

Balance outstand ln& payables : 

Hubc:own Limited 

M/s RlslnR Glory O.Velopers 
C1tyKOid FarmlnR Pnvate Um1ted 
Ackruto Jay Chandan )V 
Ackruti jay O.Veiopers 
City~d ManaROm<nt Servi«S Pvt Ltd 
Kloilen Shah (51ttinR Feu payable) 
Kama l Matalla (SottlnR Fees payable) 

Note 28. Contingent Ua blllty 

Sr. Particulars 
No. 

Claim a gainst Company not acknowledge a s debt on accounts or:-

Comm t:ss.k)ner or lnrome TalC (Appeals): 

FY. 2016-17 

As at As at 

3 1st Mardi, 2020 3 1st llla rdl, 2019 
t t 

4.500 4,500 

4,033.562 3,950,000 
560,857 4 99,530 

61.327 
6 1.327 
6 1.327 

9,895,000 
87,675,122 

55,3 18,037 
4.375,000 

1,727.622 
1,379,401 

894,508 4,949,409 

u.soo 
12.500 

As at As at 

3 1st March, 2020 3 1st March, 2019 
t t 

t 2.512.800 

The- Company doH not have anv conun~tent habditv as at the balanct sheet date, other then sQted above:. as ~rtJOed by the rN~eement and ref ted bv the auditors. 

Nol'e 29. 
The Company has created charse on Its Immovable property or any Interest therein ag.-inst borrowings on behalf or the: related parues and third 
panies. 

Note 30. 
In the opinion of the Board or Directors of the Company. aU the Items of current assets, current labilit ies & loans and advances continue to have a 
realisable value o f at least the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRJVATE liMITED 
CJN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 31. Capital Management 

The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to 
support its business and maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure 
on an annual basis. 

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowings and offset by cash and bank balances) and total 
equity of the company. The borrowings consist of debentures issued, term loans from financial institutions and loans 
from companies. 

Gearin~: Ratio 

The gearing ratio at the reporting period was as follows 

Unsecured Loan 
Secured Loan 
Interest accrued and due/and but not due 
Less: Cash and Bank Balance 
Total Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 
Retained Earnings 
Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/B 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

~ 

400,000,000 
985,870 
744,036 

(10,062,492) 
391,667,414 

1,047,194,550 
(184,718,54 7) 
862,476,003 

45.41% 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

~ 

400,000,000 
1,505,134 

132,970 
(17,959,263) 

383,678,840 

1,04 7,194,550 
(152,209,794) 
894,984,756 

42.87% 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008 PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 32. Pos t Retirement Benefit Pla ns 
The Principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuaria l va lua tions were as follows, 
Gratuity: 
Discount Rate 
Expected rate of salary increase 
Expected average remaining service 

Service cost 
Current service cost 
Past service cost and (gain)floss from settlement 
Net interest expense 
Component of define benefit cost recognised in profit or loss 

Actuarial (gains) 1 losses for the period 
Component of defined benefit cost recognised in other comprehensive income 

Total 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 
Fair value of plan assets 

Funded status 

Movement in PV of defined benefit obligation 

Opening define benefit obligation 
Current service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in financial assumption 
Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from changes in experience adjustment 
closing define bene fit obligation 

Movements in fair value of plan asse ts 
Opening fa ir value of plan assets 
Interest income 
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) 
Contribution from employer 
closing fa ir value of plan assets 

Asset Informa tion: 

Gratuity Fund 

Expected Payout: 
Expected Outgo First Year 
Expected Outgo Second Year 
Expected Outgo Third Year 
Expected Outgo Fourth Year 
Expected Outgo Fifth Year 
Expected Outgo Sixth to Tenth Years 

Sensitivity Ana lysis: 

Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

t' 

6.80% 
5% 

24.29 

22,346 

(3,396) 
18,950 

13,168 
13,168 

32,118 

92,419 
(104,746) 

(197,165) 

53,119 
22,346 

4,058 
14,865 
(1,969) 

92,4 19 

97,564 
7,454 
(272) 

104,746 

Total Amount 

104,746 

PVO Payout 
1,260 
1,315 
1,374 
1,594 
1,847 

10,669 

As of 31st March, 2020, every percentage point increase in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obl igation~ 75,061 / ­

As of 31st March, 2020, every percentage point decrease in discount rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation~ 1,1 4,794 /-

Year ended 
31st March, Z019 

t' 

7.64% 
5% 

24.06 

12,015 

(4,978) 
7,037 

13,423 
13,423 

20,460 

53,119 
(97,564) 

(150,683) 

25,996 
12,015 

1,994 
335 

12,779 
53,119 

90,901 
6,972 
(309) 

97,564 

Target Alloca tion 
% 

100% 

As of 31st March, 2020, every percentage point increase in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation~ 1,14,802 /­

As of 31st March, 2020, every percentage point decrease in salary escalation rate will affect our gratuity benefit obligation~ 74,794 1-

Narrations: 
1 Analysis of Defined Benefi t Obliga tion 

The number of members under the scheme have increased by 20.00% 
The total salary has increased by 31.77% during the accounting period 
The resultant liabi li ty at the end of the period over the beginning of the period has increas a~~~~ 



fOYNEST PREMISES PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

2 Expected rate of return basis: 
EROA is the discount rate as at previous valuation date as per the accounting standard 

3 Description of Plan Assets and Reimbursement Conditions 
100% of the Plan Asset is entrusted to LIC of India under their Group Gratuity Scheme. The reimbursement is subject to Insurer's Surrender Policy. 

4 Investment 1 Inte rest Ris k 
The Company is exposed to Investment 1 Interest risk if the return on the invested fund fa ils below the discount rate used to arrive at present value 
of the benefit 

5 Longevity Risk 
The Company is not exposed to risk of the employees living longer as the benefit under the scheme ceases on the employee separating from the 
employer for any reason. 

6 Risk of Salary Increase 
The Company is exposed to higher liability if the future salaries rise more than assumption of sa lary escalation. 

7 Discount Rate 
The discount rate has decreased from 7.64% to 6.80% and hence there is an increase in liability leading to actuarial loss due to change in discount 
rate. 



JOYNEST PREMISES PRJVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U45202MH2008PTC183715 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Note 33. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

Financial Risk Management Objectives 
The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The 

Company's financial risk management policy is set by the Managing Board. 
The Company manages market risk through a treasury department which evaluates and exercises independent control over 

the entire process of market risk management The treasury department recommend risk management objectives and 

policies which are approved by the senior management. The activities of this department include management of cash 

resourses, borrowing strategies and ensuring compliance with the market risk limits and policies. 

Market Risk 
a) Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or fu ture cash flows of a fi nancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes 
in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to 
company's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

b) Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fa ir value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate on account of changes 
in foreign exchange rates. The company does not have any exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates from its 
operat ing activities or investments in foreign companies. 

Credit Risk 
The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter 
corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accordance with the company's policy. 

Liquidity risk 
The companies cash flow requirement are met by funds received from its holding company. 

Note 34. Previous year figures have been regrouped or reclassified whereever necessary. 

As pe r our report of even date 

For Sanket R Shah & Associates 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st july, 2020 

KAMAL MAT ALIA 
Director 

DIN : 00009695 

~H 
Director 

DIN: 03134932 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 21st july, 2020 



































































'P rrl 'P~ -liMA CAJ 
Chartered Accountants 

Pankaaj· Pande Bldg. No. 3, 4th Floor. Office No 4R. NavJivan Society, 

INDEPENDENT fflTlniT~,~~~lf· Tel.~ 
B. Com., F.C.A. !..tffiai(?pa•~a"~"' ~f"ff02-50 

The Members of 
Vega Developers Pvt Ltd 
Mumbai 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE 
Limited, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2020, and the statement of 
profit and loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information 

In our opinion and to the best of ow- information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its profit/loss, changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance ·with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe thatthe audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in om professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of om audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Responsibilities of Management and T hose Charged with 
Governance for the Standalone F inancia l Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read 



~th Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarcling of the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensw·ing the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, clisclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auclitor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 
or error and are considered matetial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
~aintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, iJ1tentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal con trol. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auclit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounling and, based on the auclit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 



on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timiJJg of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor's rep01t unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to ouh\'eigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters 

We draw attention to the uncertainity caused by Novel Coronavirus (COVlD 19) pandemic 
with respect to the estimates of Company's business operations and that such estimates 
may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic . Our opinion is not modified 
in respect of this matter. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Rep01t) Order, 2016 issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (u) of section 143 of The 
Companies Act 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. AB required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of 
our audit; 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept 



by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books 
and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been 
received from the branches not visited by us. 

c. The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited 
under Section 143(8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us 
and have been properly dealt with by us in preparing this report 

d. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account and 
with the returns received from branches not visited by us. 

e. In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

f. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 
financial repOiting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure A". 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) the Company has disclosed the impact, if any, of pending litigations as at March 31 
, 2020 on its financial position in its standalone Ind AS financial Statements. 

li) the Company has made provision , as required under the applicable law or 
accounting Standards , for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii) There is been no delay in transfeiTing amounts , required to be transferred , to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 
March 31 , 2020 . 

Place: Mumbai 
Date:9/ n/ 2020 

UDIN 20040694AAAABB5518 

For PM PANDE AND CO 
Chartered Accountants 

n FRNN~.toe:~ 

\'c?"~p~ 
Proprietor 

M No040694 



ANNEXURE "A'' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Referre d to in paragraph 1 on Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements in our report of even date to the members VEGA DEVELOPERS 
PVT LTD on the financial statement for the y ear ended on March 31, 2020, we 
report that: 

(i) a) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars 
including quantative details and situation of fixed assets. 

b) The management at reasonable intervals has verified the fixed 
assets . We Have been informed that no material discrepancies on 
such verification have been noticed. 

(ii) a) As per the r ecords maintained, the management has conducted 
verification of inventory at reasonable intervals. 

b) In our view the procedures of physical verification of inventory 
followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in 
relation to the size of the company and nature of business. 

c) In our view , the company has maintained proper records of 
inventory. No discrepancy has been noticed on physical verification of 
stocks as compared to the books record 

(iii) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, 
firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 
of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii) (a) and 3(iii) (b) of the 
Order are not applicable 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation give to us, 
the company has complied with section 185 and section 186 of the 
companies Act 2013 in respect of corporate guarantee given in connection 
with the loan taken by the others from bank or financial institutions and 
investment in other related party. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from public in terms of the 
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of section 
73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. We are 
informed that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National 
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or Court or any other 
tribunal. Accordingly, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
section 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(vi) Central Government has not prescribed/specified the maintenance of cost 
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
hence clause (vi) of Paragraph 3is not applicable to the company. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
is generally regular in deposWng undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, service tax and any 
other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. 



(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
dues of income-tax, service tax, wealth tax, which have not been deposited 
on account of any dispute. 

(viii) Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanation give 
to us by the management, the company has not borrowed any amount from 
financial institutions or bank or Govemment issued debentures till 31st 
March 2020. Hence clause (viii) of Paragraph 3 is not applicable to the 
company. 

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation give to us, 
the company has not raised money by way of public issue/ follow-on offer 
(including debt instruments). The company has not obtained housing loan 
during the year . 

(x) To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, no fraud by the company or any fraud on the 
Company by its officers/ employees was noticed or reported during the 
course of our audit 

(xi) To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us the company has paid/provided managerial 
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act. 

(xii) According to the record of the Company and the information and 
explanations given to us the company, the company is not the Nidhi 
Company, hence the clause (xii) of Paragraph 3 is not applicable to the 
company. 

(xiii) To the best of our knowledge and belief, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, the company has complied with Section 188 
and 177 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable in respect of all 
transactions with the related parties and the details have been disclosed in 
the Financial Statements etc. as required by the accounting standards and 
Companies Act, 2013. 

(xiv) According to the record of the Company and the information and 
explanations given to us the company, the company has not made 
preferential allotment I private placement of shares during the year under 
review and the requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 20 13. Hence 
the clause (xiv) of Paragraph 3 is not applicable to the company. 

(xv) According to the record of the Company and the information and 
explanations given to us the company, the company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him hence 
the clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 is not applicable to the company. 

(xv.i) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. 

For PM PANDE AND CO 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN No. 107289W 

PAKAAJ PANDE 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 9/11/2020 



ANNEXURE- B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDlTORS' REPORT 
Report on the lntcrnal Financial Controls under Clause (t) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 of the Compauies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. VEGA 
DEVELPOERS PRIVATE LIMITED. ("the Company'") as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction 
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Fim1ncial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintammg internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 20 13. 

Auditors ' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal fi11ancial controls over 
fin!lncial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by lCAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143( I 0) of the Companies Act 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Jndia Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obta in reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obta in audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor·s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
re~orting. 

Mea ning of Internal Fina ncia l Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of ftnancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fai rly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company: (2) provide reasonab le assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made on ly 
in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) 
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 
the financia l statements. 

l nbcrcnt Limi tations of I nternal Financial Controls over F inancia l Repor ting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal fmancial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in condi tions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion. the Company has, in all mmerial respects, an adequate internal fmancial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effecti ve ly as at March 3 1, 2020. based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For P M PANDE AND CO 
Chartered Accountants 

~:No.I0~28~ ~U-

P ANKAAJ "1£1-'--= 
Proptietor 
M . No. 40694 
Place: Mumbai 
Dated: 9/11/2020 
UDIN 20040694AAAABB5518 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020 
Particulars As at As at 

Note 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 
No. ~ ~ 

ASSETS 
Current assets 
(a) Inventories 3 13,05,28,101 13,15.68,281 
(b) Financial assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 4 4,62.12,720 
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 5 4,80,833 4,83,873 
(iii) Other financial assets 6 11,82,636 8,608 

(c) Other current assets 7 9,79.000 9,79,000 
Total Current Assets 13,31, 70,570 17,92,52,482 
Total assets 13,31, 70,570 17' 92,52,482 

EQUITY AND liABILITIES 
Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 8 
[b) Other equity 9 
Total Equity 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Trade payables 10 3,03,78,386 4,63,89,976 
(ii) Other financial liabilities 11 7,40,35,989 10,39,99,809 

(b) Other current liabilities 12 1,53,867 1,56,367 
Total Current Liabilities 10,45,68,242 15,05,46,152 
Total Liabilities 10,45,68,242 15,05,46,152 
Total Equity and Liabilities 13,31,70,570 17,92,52,482 

The accompanying notes a re a n inte rgaJ pa rt of financial statements 
As per our report or even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR P.M. PAN DE AND CO 

FIRM REGISTRATION~. 107289 W 
HARTER ED ACCQUN TS 

c/""'~ dl'"'~ 
ANKAAJ PAND ~ 

PROPRIETOR 
MEMBERSHIP NO. 40694 

Place: Mu bai 
Date: ~ ll 

~ 
KETANSHAH 
DIRECTOR 
DIN:00546842 

DIN: 03134932 

r 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRJVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 
Particula rs Note Year ended Year ended 

No. 3l''March 2020 31'' March 2019 
't 't 

I INCOME 

Other Income 13 6.752 440 

Total Income 6,752 20.956 

II E.'tpenses 
Costs Of Construction 1 Development 14 59.820 1.01 .256 
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 15 (59,820) ( l .Dl.256) 
Other Expenses 16 1,10,754 1,57.587 

Total Expenses 1,10,754 1,57,587 

Profit I (Loss) Before Tax (1,04,002) (1,36,631) 

Tax Expense 
Current Tax -
Profi t I (Loss) for the Year rt.o4,oozl (1,36,631) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income (1.04,002) 11.36.6311 

Earning per e qui ty shar e of nominal value of 't 1001- each 17 
Basic and Diluted (0.35) (0.46) 

The accompanying notes are an intergal part of financial statements 
As per our report of even dare For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR P. 1\1. PAN DE AND CO - /Jibh-FIRM REGISTRATION~ I 07209 W 
~ARTERED ACCQUNT S L- n ~ANSH~ 0"'\-ri' ~ Q q, .t DIRECTOR 

I " ~ ~~-054684 
PANKAAJ PANDE 
PROPRIETOR ~• Q'" -~NSHAH MEMBERSHIP NO. 40694 l 

~ DIRECTOR 

~~ Place: Mumbai . DIN:03134932 

Dateb_j \ '' \ 'L"' I 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE UMITEO 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3 1st MARCH, 2020 
As a t As at 

Particulars 31'' March 2020 31"' March 2019 
'!. 't 

I. ~h lla:w.s ilti5:ine fillm lll!l:tiltine i1!3:h1tics 
Net Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss Account (1.04.002) (1,36.631) 

Add I (L~ss} : 
Finance Charges -
Share of Profit I (Loss) of Firms - (20,5 16) 
Provision no longer required written back [6,752) (440) 
Interest Income - (6,752) (20.956) 
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (1,10,754) (1,57.587) 
Add 1 (Less) : 
(Increase) I Decrease in Inventories 10,40,180 33,98,744 
(Increase) I Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 4,49,59,692 19,04,862 
Increase I (Decrease) in Trade Payables & Other Payables (1,60.D4.838) (18.72,148) 
lncreasei(Decrease) in Other Liablit ies (2.99,66.320) (33.98.126) 
D1rect Taxes Pa1d 79,000 1.07.714 79.000 1 12.332 
Net Cash Oow in the course of Operating Activities [3,040} (45,255) 

II. Cllsh fig:ws ilti5:ine frgm lnvr::;tine iltliYitlcs 
Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 
(mcrease) I Decrease m Investments - 30,516 -
Net Cash flow in the course of Investing Activities 30,516 

111. cash tlo:w.s ild.sine frllm Elnandn.: a13:111llc.s 

Inflow f (Outflow} on account of: 
Increase in Unsecured Loans -
Interest and Finance Charges Paid 

Net Cash Oow in the course of Financing Activities - -
Net Increase in cash and cash Equ ivalents (I+ II + Ill ) (3,040) (14,739) 
Add: Balance at lhe beginning of the year 4,83,873 4,98,612 

Cash and Cash Equivalents a t tbe end of lhe year 4,80,833 4,83,873 

R~:~;go "liatiao g(~a~b aod llaok llalaom ei~:~DIIl 
l':l!llf :i is as fall!l:t!!~ 

Cash on hand 4.51.504 4,54,114 
Bank balance in Current Account 29,329 29,759 
Cash and Cas h Equivalents at the end of the year 4,80,833 4,83 873 

-
The cash now statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out m Indian Accounting Standard (lnd AS 7) statement of cash 
nows. 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

FOR P.M. PAN DE & Co. - ~~ FIRM REG ISTRATION NO. 107289 W 

~TEREDACCO~HT~ 

rJ 
KETANSHAH 

~ DIRECTOR , 
() -o 

' """ ~ <Y"'.l-e-
DIN: 00546842 

t .. .:: 
~ PANKAAJPANOE ~ ~ " PROPRIETOR 

""-. . Q' ~ILENSHAH MEMBERSHIP N0.40694 - DIRECTOR 

Place· Mumbai \ 
,. 

DIN:03J34932 

Date:~ t \\ Q_o 

' 
vo~N . 



VEGA DEVELOPERS P RIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 (~) 

Particulars Equity Share Capital Retained Earnings Total 

Balance as at 31st March, 2017 3,00,00,000 rio,92,39:il 2,89,07,609 
Changes in accounting Policy or prior period errors -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (64,648 (64.648) 
Balance as at 31st Ma rch, 2018 3,00,00,000 f11,57,039l 2,88,42,961 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (1,36,631) (1.36.631) 
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 3,00,00,000 (12,93,670) 2,87,06,330 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - . (1,04,002i (1,04,002) 
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 3,00,00,000 (13,97,672) 2,86,02,328 

FOR P.M. PAN DE AND CO p~ 
FIRM REGISTRATION N0.107289 W DIRECTOR -CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ~ ..a e \O pl9_,. 

D1N: 00546842 

ID - ~~ D "() 

( QJ ~~ 
t\?"'~ / ~ ·Q ~~LEN SHAH PANKAAJ PAN 

PROPRIETOR ~ DIRECTOR 

MEMBER;;
1
I,NO. 40694 DIN: 03134932 

Date: o.,..1 71 ~.-a ·t .. I . .. 



VEGA DEVfiOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE f'INANCJAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 
Note 1. Statement of Sign ificant Accounting Polides. 
1.1 Company Overview 

Vega Developers Private Limited is a Pnvate Limtted Company dom1nled in India, incorporated under the Compames Act. 1956. The Company is eng;~ged m the 
real estate bust ness of construction and development of residennal and commercial premises. 

1.2 The flnandal statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 25-July-2019 

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies followed by the Company 
l. Basis of preparation of flnanclaJ Statements 
(I) Compliance with lnd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the lndlan Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') as notified by 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companit's (I ndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. 
(II) Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the foUowing: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 
(ill) Current non-current classlftcadon 
Alllhe assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set 
out in Schedule Ill to the Act Operating cycle for the business activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability 
period, wherever applicable, and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) withm the credit period normally applicable to 
the respective project 

(iv) Rounding of amounts 
All amounts disclosed in the financial statement.~ and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of Schedule Ill, unless otherwise 
stated 
I. HJstoricaJ Cost Convention 

Tbe financial statements have been prepared on histoncal cost bas1s. e.~cept for the follow1ng: 

1. certatn financial assets and liabilities that have been measured at fa1r value 

tL assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to selL 

ill. defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value. 

II. Current and Non-Current Classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it is: 

i. Expected to be realised or mtended to sold or consumed m normal operating cycle 

II. Held primarily forthe purpose oftradtng 

iit. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or 

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting penod 

All other a.~sets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: 

i. It is expected to be sertled in normal operating cycle 

li. It is held primarily for the purpose oftrading 

iii. It is due to be senled within twelve months afterrhe reporting period, or 
lv. There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability ror at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 
Operating cycle fQr the business activities of the company covers the duratJon orthe spec1fic proJect I contract I servtce and extends upto the 
realisation or receivables within the agreed credtt period normally applicable to the respectlve proJect 

U. S.igoifican t accounting judgements. estimates and assumptions 
The preparation of financial statements In conrormity with the recognition and meas1.1rement principles of lnd AS requires manageme nt to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses. assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, 
and the disclosure of contlngent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amou nt of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classification of property 
The company determines whether a property is classified as investment property or inventory pro perry. lnve.-."tlnem property comprises land and 
buildings that are not occupied substantially for use by. or ln the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held 
primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation. These buildings a re substantially rented to tenan ts and not Intended to be sold in the ordinary 
course of business. Inventory comprises property that is held for sale In Lhe ordinary course of business. Principally, these are properties I hat the company 
develops and intends to sell before or on completion of construction. 
b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reportl ng date, that have a significant risk of causing a 
material adjustment to the carrying amountS or assetS and liabilities within Lhe next financial year, are descnbed below. The Company based tts 
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statement.~ were prepared Existing arcumstances and assumptions about future 
developmentS, however. may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that a re beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are 
reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 



I) Revenue RecogniUo n 
The Company uses the percentage-of-completion method in accounting for its revenue. The percentage or completion Is measured by reference to the 
stage o r the proJeru and contracts determined based on the proportion or contract costs mcurred for work perfo rmed to date bear to the estimated total 
contract costs. Costs of the project are based on the managemenfs estimate of the cost to be mcurred UJ>tO the completion of the projects and Include cost 
of land, Floor Space Index (FSI), matenals, serv1ces and other expenses attributable to the protects. Estunates of proJect tncome, as well as project costs, 
are reviewed periodically. Costs expended have been used to measure progress towards completion of work. Provisions for esumated losses. If any. on 
uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period In which such losses become probable based on the expected contract estimates at the reporting date. 

li) Estimation of net realisable value fo r Inventory (lncludJng advance to land owner) 
Inventory are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRY). 
NRV for completed property Is assessed by reference to market condltloos and pnces existing at the reporting date aod is determlned by the Company, 
b"*d on comparable transaCtions Identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical market serving the same real estate segment. 

NRV In respect of Inventory under construction I incomplete projects is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date for Similar 
completed property.less estimated costs to complete constructlon and an estimate of the time value of money to the date of completion. 
With respect to Advance given to land owners, the net recover.1ble value IS based on the prt!Sent val ue of future cash flows. which depends on the esllmate 
of, among other things, the likelihood th.1t a project Will be completed, the expected date of completion, the d1scount rate used and the estimation of sale 
pnces and constructlon costs. 
Iii) Valuation of Investment In/ loans t o subsid iaries 
The Company has perlortned valuation for Its investm ents In equity of subsidiaries, assodates and JV's for assessing whether there is any impalrtnent. 
When the fair value of Investments m such entities cannot be measured based on quoted prices In actlve markets, the ir fair value Is measured using 
valuation techniques Including the discounted cash flow model 
Similar assessment Is carried for exposure or the nature of loans and Interest receivable thereon as well as project advances.. The inputs to these models 
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement Is required in establishing fair values. Judgements 
Include considerations of Inpu ts such as expected earnings in future years. liquidity risk. credit risk and vol.,tility. Changes in assumptions "bout these 
fat'lors could affect the reported amo unts of these mvestments,loans and advances. 

Ill. Revenue recognltlon 
Revenue Is recognised to the extcntthatlt Is probable that the economlc benefits will accrue to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured 
and also when it is reasonably ccltl1n that the ultimate collection will be made and that there is buyers' commitment to make the complete payment. 

A. Revenue from sale of properties I development rights 
I. The company has adopted the principles of revenue recognition on the basis or · Guidance note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions •tssucd 

by the lnst1tute of Chartert>d Accountants oflndia, for the entitles to whom lndAS is applicable. 
li. Revenue !Tom sale of 'finished properties 1 buildings 1 rights' is recognised on transfer of all sign ilkant n~ks and rewards or ownersh1p of ~uch 

properties 1 buildmgs 1 nghts. as per the terms of the contracts entered mto w1th buyer/{s). which generally coinc1des with the Onnlng of the sale 
contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company still has obligations to perform substantial acts even aner the transfer of a ll 
slgntnClnt risks and rewards. 

Ill. Revenue from sale ofincomplete properties 1 projects is recogni'Z.ed on the basi.s of percentage of completion method only If the following thresholds 
have been met : 
a. All critical approvals necessary for the commencement o f the project have been obtalnl'd; 
b. The expenditure mcurred on construcllon and development costs, excluding land costs. is not less than 25% of the total esllmated 

construCtion and development costs of the project, 
c. At least 25% of the saleable project area Is secured by agreements with the buyers; and 
d. Atleast 10% or the agreement value of each sold unit has been receiVed at the reporting date in respect of such conrraru 

With the buyers 
Funher, revenue recognized m the aforesa1d manner and related costs are both restricted to 90% until the constructiOn actw1ty and related 
formalities are substanrlally completed. Recogmtion of revenue relating to agreements entered mto with the buyers. wh1ch are subject to fulfillment 
of obligations I conditions Imposed on the Company by statutory authorities is postponed till such obligations are substantially d1scharged. 

~tlmated costs relating to construction j development are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss m proport1on to the revenue recogn1zed 
d uring the year. The balance costs are earned as part of ' Incomplete Projects' as inventories under current assets. Amounts rece1vable I payable are 
reflected as 'Trade Recetvabll'S 1 Unbtlled Receivables or Advances !Tom Customers' respectively. af\er considenng tncome recogmzed In the 
aforesa1d manner. 

1v. Losses expected to be Incurred on projects under construct1on. are charged In the Statement of Profit and Los.s in the period m which the losses are 
known. 

v. Cost~ of the proreru are based on the management's estimate of the cost to be mcurred upto the completion of the projects and Include cost of land. 
Floor Space Index (FSI). matertals, serv1ces and other expenses attnbutable to the projects. Estimates of project mcome, as well as proJect costs, <1re 
reviewed periodically. 

VI. The sale proceeds of the Investments held m subsldlanes.JOIDt vent:url'S. etc. developmg real estate projects are mcluded m revenue from operallons. 
net of cost. 

B. Re venue from Trading Materia ls: 
Revenue from sale o( tradmg matenal IS recogmsed when significant risks and re\vards associated with the sale or material is transferred to the 
buyer. 

C. Revenue fro m project management services: 
Revenue from 'prorect management serv1ces' 1s recognized based on the agreements between the Company and the parties to whom such serv1c<>s 
are rendered. 

B. Profit / loss from parmersb lp firms I associa tion of pe rsons: 
Share of profit 1 loss from partnership fi rms 1 association of persons (AOP) Is recognised on the basis of their audited/ maMgemenl rev1ewed 
accounts, wh1ch is cons1dered as a part of other operatmg aroVIty. 

E. I nco me from leas ed premises: 
l~ase mcome from operating lease Is recognised m the SL.ltement of Pro11t and Loss on str:Hght line bJsls after adjusting for escalation over the lea~e 

term except where the lease incomes are structured to 1ncrease in line w1th expected general inflation. 
F. Interest and d ividend: 

Interest income Including mcome arising on othe r instrument.~ recognised on time proportion basis using the effective Interest r.ne method 
Dividend income is recognized when the nght to rece1ve dividend is established. 

C. Ot11ers: 
Other revenues 1 incomes and costs I expend iture are accounted on accrual. as they a re earned or incurred. 



IV. Property plant and eq uipme nt, Investment prope rty and depreciation I a.mmortisation 
A. On trans ition to lnd AS, the Company has opted to contmue with the carrymg values measured under the previous GAAP as at 1st April, 2015 of its 

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment property a nd use that carryang value as the deemed cost on the date of transition i.e.lst April, 20 IS. 

B. Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost of acquisition or construction Including arrributable Interest and finance cost, if any till the date of 
acquisition/installation of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated ompamnent losses, if any. 

C. Subsequent expenditure relating to Property. Plant and Equipment Is capitalised only when it is probable mat future economic benefi ts assoc1ated 
with tbe Item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and mai ntenance costs are charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depredation are eliminated from the fina ncial statements, either on 
disposal or when retired from active usc and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

D. Depreciation is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act. 2013. Depredation on additio ns to assets 
or on sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition. or up to the month of such salefdosposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 
Plant and Machinery (Mivan System) 
Computer servers and network systems 
Computer desktops and laptops 
Office cquipmenrs 
Vehicles 

Estimated useful life (in Years) 
3 toS 

6 
3 
5 
8 

Furniture and Fixture 10 

Completed Investment Properties 60 
Leasehold Land Over the Primary Lease period 
Commercial Premises 60 
The residual Vi! lues, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property plant equipment are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if appropriate. 

E. Investment properties are measured Initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to mitial recognition, mvestment properties are stated 
at cost less accumulated depredation and aC'CUmulated impairment loss, if a ny. 
Though the Company measures Investment property using cost based measurement, lhe fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. 
Fair values are determined bas.-d on an annual evaluation. 

V. Intangible assets and amortisation 
Acquired computer softwarcs are classified as mtangible assets and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. These are being amortised over the 
estimated useful life of five years. as determined by the management. 

IV. Financiallnstrumeots 

A financial instrument is any contract that goves nse to a financial asset of one enuty and a financoal liabohty or equity instrument of another entity. 

A. Financial Assets 
i. Initial recognition 

Fina ncial assets are subsequently measured a t amortised cost If these nnanclal assets are held within a busoness model with an obtectove to hold 
these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset gwe nse on specified dates to cash Oows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest on come from these finanCial assets is mcluded m finance 
income using the effective interest rate ("EIR") method. lmpairmentgains or losses arismg on these assets are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

ii. Subsequent measurement 
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financia l assets are dassllied in following categoroes: 

a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cosl 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to bold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash !lows and the contractual terms of the flooanclal asset give rise on ~1>ecilicd dates to cash nows tha t are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal a mount outstand ing. 

b) Financial Assets Measured a l Fa ir Value 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through OCI if these financial assets are held within a busoness model with an objective to hold these 
assets In order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets a nd the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal amount outstand ing. Movements in the carrying amount arc 
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses. interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further. in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, 
for Its Investments which are classified as equity Instrumen ts. the subsequent changes in fair value a re recognized on other comprehensove income. 

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fa or value th rough OCios earned at FVTPL 
On transition to lnd AS. the Company has opted to conrfnue with the carrying 1111lues measured under the prev10us GAAP as at lstAprll. 2015 of its 
investments in subsidiaries. associates and joint ventures and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of these investments on the date of 

transition I.e. 1st April, 2015. 
(ii) Finanrlal assets at fa ir value through other comprehens ive income 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income If it is held with In a business model whose objective os 
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selhng financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of pronClpal and mterest on the principal amoun t outstanding. Further. in cases where the Company has 
made an irrevocable election based on its business model. for Its mvestmenrs which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in 
fair value are recogmzed in other comprehensive income. 

(o il) Financial assets at fair value th rough profit or loss 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. 

(ov) Fina ncia l liabilities 
Financlalliabiliries are subsequently ca rried at amorrned cost usong the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration recognozed in 
a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing wuhln one year 
from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short matunty of these instruments. 

(v) Fai r value offiJlancia l ins truments 
In determining the fair value of its financial ins truments, the Company uses a vanety of methods and assumptions that are based on market 
conditions and risks existing a t each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis. available 
quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of assessing fair value result 10 general approximation uf value. and such value may never 

actually be realized. 



iii. De-recognition of Financial Assets: 
The Company de-recognises ~ financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset exp1re. or it transfers the financial 
asset and substantially all risks and rewards of ownership or the asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recogni7.es Its retamed mteres t In the assets and an 
associated hab1hty for amounts It mny have to pny. 

If the Company retains substantially all the nsks ~nd rewards of ownership of a transferred financ1al asset. the Company contmues to recogmse the 
financial asset and also recognises il collaterallsed borrowmg for the proceeds rece1ved. 

B. Equity Instrume nts and Flnanclnl Lia bilities 
Financial liabilities and equity Instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the su~"tance of the contractual arrangements entered 
Into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity Instrument. 

I. Equity Instruments 
An equity Instrument IS any contract that eVJdcnccs a residual interest 10 the assets of the Company after deducting all of Its liabilitJeS. Equity 
mstruments wh1ch are 1ssued for c;u;h are recorded ill the proceeds received. net of direct tSSue costs. Equ1ty Instruments which are ISSued for 
consideration other than CilSh <1re recorded ill fa.r value of the equity instrument. 

II. Financia l Lla bUides 
I. In itia l Recognition 
Financial liabilities are dass1fied, at Initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVPL. loans and borrowings and payables as appropriate. All finanoal 
liabilities are recognised Initially ar fa.r value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable t:r.lnsaction costs. 

2. Subsequen t Measurement 
The measurement of !lnandal liabilities depends on their dasslflcation, as de.~cribed below: 
- Finand al llabillties a t FVTPL 
Financial llabilltles at FVTPL Include finandal Uabtlltles beld for trading and finanCial liabiliues designated upon Initial recogmdon as at FVTPL 
Financial liabilities are classified as held for tradmg If they are Incurred for the purpose of repurchasing In the near term. Cains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by tbe Company are those contracts that require a payrnent to be rnade to reimburse the holder for a loss it 
Incurs because the speclfled debtor fails to make a payment when due In acconlance with the terms of a debt Instrument. Financial guarantee 
contr.IClS are recognised Initially as a liability at fair value, adjust ed for transaction cost~ tha t are directly anrlbutable to the Issuance of the 
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability Is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per Impairment requirements of lnd 
AS l09 and the amount recognised less cumulative amon isauon. Amortisation Is recognised as finance mcome in the Statement of Profit and l.oss. 

- Financial liabilities a t amortised cost 
After Initial recognltlon,lntere.~t-bearl ng loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Any difTcrcncc 
between the proceeds [net of transaction costs) and tl1e settlement or redemption of borrowings 1s rccogmsed over the term of the borrowings in the 
Statement of Profit and l.oss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking mto acc·ount any discount or premium on acqUisition and fees or costs that a re an 
mregral pan of the EIR. The EIR amortJsation is mcluded as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

3. De-recognition of Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities arc de-recognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or cxp1red. When an existing financial 
liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on ~ubstant1ally different terms. or the terms of an exisung llablllty are subs&Jnt1ally modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and recognition of a new liability. The d11Terencc in the 
respecuve c;~rrying amounts is recognised in the Statemt'nt of Proflt and Loss. 

C. Offsetting Financia l Instruments 
~1nancial assets and flnandalllabilities are offset and the net amount !s reported In the Balance Sheet If there IS a currently enforceable legal right ro 
offset the recognised amounts and there IS an Intention to settle on a net basis to realise the assets and settle tht' liabilities simultaneously. 

V. Derecogn itl on of financial ins tTUments 
The Company den.cognizt>s a flnancial asset when the contractu~ I rights to the cash flows from the finandal asset expires or tt transfers the finadal asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecogmtlon under lnt!AS I 09. A financ1alliability (or a part of a financial liability) Is derecognized from the Company's 
Balance Sheet when the obhgat10n spt>dfled m the contract IS dJscharged or cancelled or e.-q>ires. 

VI. Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recognl~es loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fa.r valued through profit or 
loss. Loss allowance for trade rece1vables Wlth no sJgnificant finan11ng component is measu red at an amount equal to life time F.Cl.. For all other fmanoal 
assets. expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL. unless there has been a s1gn1ficant Increase In credit risk from m1Ual 
recognitiOn 10 which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL The amount of expected credit losses {or reversal) that 1S requ1red to adjust the loss 
allowance at the reporting date to tbe •mount that IS required to be recognised is recognized as an impairment gam or loss 1n the statement of profit or 
loss. 

b. Non·financlalassets 
The Company assesses. at each reporung date, whether there is an tndicatlon that an asset may be impaired. If any lnd.cauon extsts. or when annual 
Impairment ttsting for an asset Is required. the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount IS the h1gher of an 
asset's or cash-generating un1t's (CCU) fair value less costs of disposal and irs value in use. Recove~ble amount 1S determmed for an md1v1dual asset. 
unless the asset does not generate tash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.. When the carrymg amount of 
an asset or CCU exceedS Its recoverable amount. the asset is considered Impaired and IS written down w 1ts recoverable amount. 

In assessmg value 10 use. the esumated future cash nows are d1scounted to thei r present value usmg a pre-tax discount rate that rcnects current market 
assessments of the lime value of money and the nsks speetfoc to the asset. In determinmg fa.r value less costs of d1sposal. recent market transactions arc 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropnate valuatiOn model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valu~tlon 
muluples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other ;~va1lable fair value mdicators. 

Impairment losses, Including Impairment on inventories. are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
I. Intangible nssets and property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets and propeny, l'lant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes In circumstances indicate that their 
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing. ll·1e recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the Fair value less cosr to sell 
~nd the value-ln ·use) is determined on an mdividual asset basis unless the asset does not genera te cash Oows that are largely independent of those frorn 
other assets. In such cases. the recoverable amount Is determmcd for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

ii. Provisions 



VII. TaxatJon 

I. CurT~nl Tax 
Th~ tax curnnlly payabl~ Is based on taxable profit for me year. Taxable profit dJff~rs from 'profit ~fore t.ax' as reported on the fi~Unm1l statement of 
profit and loss becauseof Items of mcome or expense that :tre taxable or deduroble m other years and Items that are never taXable or deduruble. The 
Com~ny's current t.u IS calcula~ usmg tat.M that have ~en enacted or subsunov~ly enacted by the ~nd of the reporong penod. 

In a~ the Company IS hable to pay 1ncome tax u/s IISJB of lncom~ Tax Act, 1961 (te. MAT), the amount of laX pa1d on ucess of nonnal1ncome laX 1~ 

r~ogmzed as an as~t (MAT Credu enmlement) only 1f there is conv1ncmg e..1dence for reai&Z.111on of such ass<Ot dunng the speofied penod. MAT credit 
entitlement Is revtewed at each Bal:mce Sheet date. 

IL DefeiT~d Tax 
Deferred taX Is recognized on tempor.uy dlferences bel\\<een tbe carry;ng amounts of assets and lwb•bties in the financial statements and the 
correspondmg taX bu~s used m the computation of !2Xable profit. Deferred GJJ( hab1litie~ ar~ generally recogn1zed for all taxable temporary d1fferences. 
Deferred talt assets are generally recognned for all d~duct1ble t~mpornry d1fferences to the extent that 11 IS probable that taJ<able profits wUI be ava1l.1ble 
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utihud 
The carry1ng amount of deferred tax asset IS rev1ewed at the end of each reporting p<!nod and reduced to the extent that u 1s no longer probable that 
sufficient ta~ablc profits will be available to allow all or pan of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tJx habllit1es and assets are musured ~t the tax rates that are expected to apply In the period m which the liability 1s srnled or the asset realized. 
based on tax rates (and taM laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 
The measur~ment of deferred tax liabilities and assets reOect.~ the tax consequences that would follow from the manner In which the Company expects, at 
the end of the reponmg period. to recover or seale the carrying amount ollts assets and liabilities. 

Ill. Current :o nd deferred t:~x for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recogn1zed m profit or loss. except when they relate to Items that are recogmzed fn other comprehensiVe mcome or directly 
in equity In wh1ch ase. the current and deferred t.ax are also recogmzcd In other comprehensive Income or d1recdy m equity respectiVely. 

VI II. Inventories 
All inventories arc stated at Cost or Net Reahzable Value, whichever is lower. 

Stock of material at Site' mdudes cost of purchase, other costs mcurred m bnngmg them to theor respecove present location and condioon. Cost formula 
used Is averngc C<KL 

Incomplete ProJCCb mclude cost of mcomplete properoes for wluch the Company has not entered Into sale agreements and in other cases wher~ the 
revenue recogmtlon 1s postponed. 'Incomplete ProJects' also 1nclude lnmal project costs that relate directly to a (prospective) prOJCCl. mcurred for the 
purpose of securing the pro)t'Ct. These costs are rM'Dgmzed as expendlture for the year In which they are Incurred unless they are separntely Identifiable 
a nd 11 IS prob;ible that the r~1ve pro,ect WlU ~ obtuned. 

lnvl'ntory value mcludes costs mcurred upto the compleoon of the protect vtz. cost of land 1 nghts. value ofnoor space mdex (FSI), matenals serviCe~ and 
otherexpen:.es (mdudmg borrowmg costs) attnbutable to the projects. Cost formula used Is average cost. 

IX. Trade and oth e r payabl~s 
These amounts represent hab•hues for goods and srmc~ proVIded to the Comrany pnor to the end of flnanoal year wb1cb are unpa1d Trade ~nd other 
plyables are presented as CUITent babUities unless payment is not due within 12 month\ alter reporung penod. For trade and other payables matunng 
Within one year from the balance sheet date, the carry;ng amounts approx1mate fair value due to the short m.Jtunty of these instruments. 

X. Trade receivable 
A rece1vable IS class1fied as ;a 'trade recetvable' 1f n IS tn respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or ser.1as rendrred 1n the normal course of 
business. Trndc receivables are recogmst'd im11ally at fa1r value and ~ubsequently m~sured at amort1sed cost ustng the EIR method. less proVISion for 
Impairment 

Xl. Employee benefits 
a) Defined Contribution Plan 
Contnbuuons to defined contr1bunon schemes such as provident fund, bbour welfare fund are charged as an expe~ based on the amount of 
contribution required to be made as and when serv1ces are rendered by the employees. Company's prov1dcnl fund contnbuuon IS made to a government 
Administered fund and charged as an expens~ to the Statement of Proflt and Los~. The above benefitS arc d~1l1ed as Defined Contribution Schemes~ the 
Company has no funher obligations ~yond the monthly contrlhutlons. 

b) Defined Benefit Plan 
The Company prov1des for gr.ttu1ty whiCh IS a defmed ~nefit plans the hab1litJts olwhich Is deternuned based on valuations. as at the balance sheet date 
made by Jn tndependent actu.1ry usmg the prorected una credn method. Re·measurement. comprising of actuanal g:uns and losses. Ill respect of gr.Jtu1ty 
are recogmsed m the OCI. m the penod m wh1ch they occur. Re·measurement recognised In OCI are not redassaf1ed to the Sldtcment of Profit and Loss m 
sub,equent pertod~ 

Tht. d.lss11icauon of the Com~ny's obhgauon Into current <tnd non-current 15 as per the actuanal valuation report. 
c) Leave Entitlement 
Leave entitlement are prov1ded based on an actuarial valuation, Similar to that of gratuity bener11. Re·measuremenL compnsmg of actuar~l gams and 
losses, 10 respect ofleave ent.tfement are recogn1sed 111 the Statement ot Prdu and l..oss 1n the penod m wh1ch they occur. 

d) Shon-term Benefits 
Shon term employee ~nefits such as salanes performance mcennves etc. <tre r~gnised as nrenRs a t the undtSCounted amounts 1n the Statement of 
Profit and Loss of the p~nod m wluch the related semce IS rtndered. Expenses on non·accumulaung compens.~ted ;obsences IS recognised 10 thr prnod 10 
whteh the ~bsences occur 

XII. DorTOWings and DorTowing cosu 
After ln111al rrcogn1Uon, mterest·~anng loans and borro,..mgs are subsequent!) measured at amorused cost usmg the EIR method Gatns and lo.-~ .1re 
recoamsed m the Statement of Profit or Loss .. hen the hab1hnes are de-recogmsed as ""ell as through the EIR amorosanon process.. AmoMJsed '"'' 1< 
calcul.lled by taking into account any diS<ount or prernaum on acquiSition and fees or costs that are an tntegnl pan of the EIR. The EIR amnniS3uon 1S 
mcluded a51lnanc..- costs m the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Interests and other borrowmg costs tncluded under finance costs calculated a< prr effec11ve tnterest rate 01ttnbutable to quahfyang assets, which takes 
subsunnal period of lime to get rudy for Its mtended use are allocated as p.1n of the cost of construCIJon I development of such assets. Such aiiOCilUon 1s 
su~pended during extended penods In wh1ch act.we development is Int errupted and. no costs Jre ~lloc:Jted once all such :tctlvilles are subsunually 
complete. Investment Income earned on the temporary lnvesnncm or spectfic borro" mgs pend1ng the1r expenditure on quahfying assets is deducted from 
the borroWing costs eligible for capitalisation. Other borrowing costs are chargl'tl to the l'rolit .md Loss Account. 

XI II. Ea mlngs per Share 
Basic curnlnJ!' per ~hare arc calculat~ by d1v1ding the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders hy the we1ghted average number 
of equity shJres outs landmg during the ye;u. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year IS adjusted for events of bonus 
l~sue, If any. 
For tlw IIU.,,ose of calcu!Jtlng diluted caromgs per share, the net proOt or los< lor the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted avcrng1• 
nurnbt•r or \hare' oul\tanding durmg the year are adjusted for the effects of all dllutlvc potcntiJ I eqUity sh,tres. 



XIV. Cash Flow Statement 
Cash flows are reported using the indireC't method. whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effeC'tS or transacuons of a non-cash nature. ~ny 
deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of Income or expenses associated with Investing or financing cash 
flows. The! cash Oows from operating. !nvesnng and financing acnvities of the company are segregated. 

XV. Cash and Cash Equiva lents 
Cash and cash l.'quivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an ongioal maturity of three months or 
less. which .>re subject to an mSJgmftcant nsk of changes'" value. 
For the! purpose or the statement of cash flows. casb and cash eqUivalents COnSISt of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above. net of outstanding 
bank overdrafts as they are considered an mtegral part of the Company's cash management 

XVIII. Fore,ign currency transactions 
A. All transact:lons in foreign currency are recorded in the reporting currency. based on closing races of exchange prevalent on the! dates ofthe relevant 

transactions. 
B. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency. outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date, are converted In reporting currency at lhe closing 

rates of exchange prevailing on the said date. Resultant gain or loss IS recogmzed during the year in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

C. Non monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies arc carried at the exchange rate prevalent on the date of the transaction. 

XV I. Seg,me nt re porting 
Operating segments arc reported in a manner consistent w1tb the internal reporting provided to the chief operatmg decision maker. The chief operating 
deCision maker regularly monitors and reVJews the operating result of the whole Company a.~ one segment of•Real Estate Development•. Thus, as defined 
m lnd AS I 08 "Operating Segments", the Company's entire business falls under th1s one operational segment and hence the nece.'iSary mforrnation has 
already been disclosed in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

XVII. Provisions, con tingent li<~bilities and contingent assets 
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of past event and it Is probable t:hat an outnow of 
embodying economic benefits of resources will be required to senle a reliably assessable obligallon. Provisions are determined based on best estimate 
required lO settle each obligation at each balance s heet date. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-taX rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting IS used, the increase in the provision due to the passage or 
time 1s remgnised as a finance cost 

Contingl!nt hab1lit1cs arc disclosed in respect of poss1ble obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. A contingent Uabillty also arises. In rare cases. 
where a liability cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured rcli~bly 

Contingent assets are netther recognised nor disclosed In the finnnctal sbtcments. 
XVIII. Rece nt accounting pronouncements 

Append1x B to lnd AS 21. Fore1gn currency transactions and advance consideration; On ~Ia ret. 28,2018. MiniStry of Corporate Aff.urs (-MCA"1 has 
notified the Compantes ( Indian Accounnng Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 rontaming AppendiX B to lnd AS 21. Fore1gncurrency transactions and 
advance cons1deraoon which clanfies the date of the transaction for the purpose of deterrnmlng rhe exchange rate to use on tmnnl recognition of the 
related asser. expense or income, when an entity bas received or paid ~dvance consideration in a foreign currency. 

The amendment will come 1010 force from 1 April 2018. The Company is evaluating the requirement oftbe amendment and the impact on the financial 
statements. The effect on adoption of lnd AS 21 is expected to be Insignificant· 

lnd AS 115 
In March 2018, the Mtnistry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Compan1es (lnd1an Accounting Standards) Amended Rules, 201B [•amended ru les"). As 
per the amended rules, ind AS 115 "Revenue from contractS with customers· s upersedes lnd AS I I. ·construction contractS· and lnd AS 18, "Revenue· 
and is applicable for all accounting periods commencing on or aft~r I Aprtl20 18. 

lnd AS 115 mtroduces a new framt>work of llve step model (or the analysts of revenue transactions- The model speofies that revenue should be recognised 
when (or as) an entity transfer control of goods or serv1ces to a customer at the amount to whtth the entlty expects to be entitled. Furtherthe new 
standard reqmres enhanced disclosures about the nature, amount ummg and uncert;unty of revenue and cash flows arismg from th<' ent1ty's contracts 
With customers. The new revenue standard is applicable to the Company from 1 Apnl 2018. 

The stand;ml permits tWO poss.ible methods or tranSitiOn: 
Retrospective approach· Under this approach the standard will be applied retrospectively lO each prior rt>porting period presented 111 

accordance with lnd AS B ·Accounting Policies. Changes In Accounting Estimates and Errors 

RetroSpectively \Vllh cumulative effect of inlually applying the standard recognt1ed at the date of mttial apphcauon (Cumulative catch· up approach} 

The Company IS evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the 1m pact on tbe financial Statements. 

XXII. Interest in )oint Arrangements 
As per lnd AS Ill - lomt Arrangements, investment m )omt Arrangement IS classlted as e1ther Joint Operauon or )01nt Venture. The d;u;s10catlon depends 
on the contractual rights and obligations of each mvestor rather than legal structure of the Jomt Arrangement The Company classifies liS )Omt 
Arrangements as Jo1nt Ventures. 
Th<' comJ>any recogmzes its interest in )omt Venture as an inv<'stment and accounts lor thatmvestment usmg the Eqwty method 10 accordance with lnd 
AS 28. 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

3. Inventories 
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
Incomplete projects 

Work in Progress (Kalina) 
Work in Progress (Santacruz) 
Work in Progress (Vile Parle) 

4. Trade Receivables 
From Related Party 
From Others 

5. Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances with banks: 

· in current accounts 
Cash on hand 
Cash and cash equ ivalents 

6. Other finandal assets 

.c.umm.t 
Security deposi ts 
Other Receivables 

7. Other current assets 
Current 

Advances to Suppliers 

Total 

Total 

Total 

Advances 1 Deposits recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be 
received 

Total 

As at 

31'' March 2020 
"! 

6.51.04.346 
3,76.42.135 
2,77,81,619 

13,05,28,101 

29,329 
4,51,504 

4,80,833 

11,82,636 
11,82,636 

9,79,000 

9,79,000 

As at 

31" March 2019 
'1: 

6,50,44,526 
3,76.42.135 
2,88,81,619 

13,15,68,281 

4,62.12,720 

4,62,12,720 

29,759 
4,54,114 

4,83,873 

720 
7,888 

8.608 

9,79,000 

9,79,000 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

8. Equity share capital 
Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
300,000 (As at 31st March, 2019: 300,000) Equity 
Shares of I( 100/· each fully paid up 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 
300.000 (As at 31st March. 2019: 300.000) Equity 
Shares of ~ 100/- each fu lly paid up 

Footnotes: 

TOTAL 

(i) Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 
and a t the end of the year. 

Balance at 1st April , 2018 
Add : Issued dunng the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31st March. 20 19 
Add : Issued during the year 
Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance a t 31st March, 2020 

(ii) Equity Shares held by its holding company or its 
ultimate holding company. 

Hubtovvn Limited with its benefeciary owners 
Others 

Total 

(iii) Details of shar es held by each s hareholders holding more than 5% shares 

3 1st March, 2020 
No of shares held % ofholding 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Limited With Bentfic1ary Owners 3,00,000 100% 

Total 3,00,000 100% 

(iv) Tenns I righ ts attached to Equity Sha res: 

As at 

31" March 2020 
I( 

3,00,00,000 
3,00,00,000 

3,00,00,000 

3,00,00.000 

Number of sha res 

3,00,000 

3,00,000 

3,00,000 

As at 

31•1 March 2020 
{No.) 

300000 

300000 

As at 
31"' March 2019 

I( 

3,00,00,000 
3,00,00,000 

3,00,00,000 

3,00.00,000 

Number of shares 

3,00,000 

3,00,000 

3,00,000 

As at 

3111 March 2019 
(No.) 

300000 

300000 

31st March, 2019 
No of s hares held % of holding 

3,00,000 100% 

3,00,000 100% 

The company has a single class of equity shares having a face value of~ 100/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to one 
vote per share. In the event of liquidation of company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the 
company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by 
the shareholders. 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

9. Other Equity 
Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the year 
Profit I (Loss) attributable to the owners of the company 

Balance at the end of the year 

10. Trade payables 
Trade Payables(Refer footnote) 

Footnote: 

As at 
31st March 2020 

:!( 

(12,93,670) 
(1,04,002) 

(13,97,672) 

As at 
315tMarcb 2019 

:!( 

(11,57,039) 
(1,36,631} 

(12,93,670} 

3,03,78.386 4,63,89,976 

To~=======3=,0=3=,7=8=,3=8=6========4~,6=3~,8=9~,9=7==6 

As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as defined under 
the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Company are 
registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

11. Other financial liabilities 
Current 

Advances payable in cash or in kind 11.00,000 
Business Advances for project from related party(Refer Footnote) 
Other payables 

7,03,89,198 10,26,29,198 
36,46,791 2,70,611 

Total=======7=,4=0=,3=5=,9=8=9========1~0,~3=9,~9~9,=8=0~9 

Footnote: 
The Company has received interest free Advances from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in which the 
Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of 
such amounts so received is not measureable precisely. 

12. Other Liabilities 
Current 

Other payables : 
- Statutory dues 1,53,867 1,56,367 

Total=========1=,5=3=,8=6=7===========1,=5=6,=3=6~7 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

Year ended Year ended 

31" March 2020 31" March 2019 
'-: "! 

13. Others Income 
Sundry Credit Balance Written Back 6,752 440 

Total 6,752 440 

14. Costs Of Construction I Development 
Construction costs incun·ed during the year: 

Approval/Construction expenses 59,820 1,01,256 
59,820 1,01,256 

15. Changes in Inventories of Work-in-progress 
Openinglnventory : 

Work-in-progress 13,15.68,281 13,49.67,025 
13,15,68,281 13,49,67,025 

Add/ (Less): During the year {11,00,000} (35,00,000} 
Total 13,04,68,281 13,14,6 7,025 

Closing Inventory: 
Work-in-progress 13,05,28,101 13,15,68,281 

13,05,28.101 13,15,68,281 

Total (59,820} (1,01,256) 

16. Other Expenses 
Legal and professional fees 40,510 81,890 
Filing Fee 8,184 17,520 
Other expenses lRefer Footnote) 62,060 58,177 

Total 1,10,754 1,57,587 

Footnote: 
Auditors Remuneration 
·Audit Fees 30,000 30,000 

Total 30,000 30,000 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

17. EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) Year Ended Year Ended 
31st March, 2020 31st March , 2019 

~ ~ 

Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (0.35) (0.46) 

Bask and Diluted EPS 
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are as 
follows : 

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per shar e 

Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of 
basic and diluted earnings per share 

18. CONTINGENT LIABTLITV 

(1,04,002) (1.36,631) 
(1.04.002) (1,36,631) 

3,00,000 3,00,000 

The company does not have any contingent liability as on the balance sheet date, as certified by the management and relied upon 
by the auditor. 

19. In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company. all the 1tems of current assets, current libilities & loans and advances 
continue to have a realisable value of at least the amount at which they are stated in the balance sheet 

20. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
The primary objective of company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains strong capital ratios in order to support its 
business and maximise shareholders value. The company's board of directors reviews the capital structure on an annual basis. 

The capital structure of the company consists of net debt (borrowmgs and offset by cash and bank balances) and total equ1ty of 
the company. 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRJVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

A. Lis t Of Related Parties: 

i) Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited 

Footnote: 
(i) Related party relationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors. 
(ii) Previous Year figures are given in brackets. 

B. Transaction with Related Parties-

Particulars HOLDING COMPANY HOLDING COMPANY 

Loans a nd a dvances received /recover ed: 
Hubtown Limited - -

1,05,000 -

loa ns a nd a dvances Paid: 
Hubtown Limited - -

(3,23,45,000) (35,1 0,000) 

Balance outstanding receivables/ (payable) : 

Nature of Transactions Amount {ill!) 
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

Hubtown Limited (7,03,89,198) (10,26,29, 198) 



VEGA DEVELOPERS PRIVATE LJMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 
22: Fair Valu e m easurement of Financial Instrume nts 

3 1st March 2020 (l!) 
FVPL FVOCI Amortised Cost FVPL 

Eioao!;ial Ali~~t~ 
Trade Receivable -
Cash and cash equivalent - - 4,80,833 -
Other financial assets - - 11,82,636 -
TotaJ of Financial Assets - - 16,63,469 -

Eioao~ial Liabiliti~s 
Trade Payables - - 3,03,78,386 -
Other Financial liabilities - - 7,40,35,989 -

Total of Fina ncial Liabilities - - 10,44,14,375 -

23. Financial Risk Management Objectives 

31st March 2019 f~) 
FVOCI Amortised Cost 

4,62,12,720 

- 4,83,873 

- 8,608 

- 4,92,481 

- 4,63,89,976 

- 10,39,99,809 

- 15,03,89,785 

The company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company's management oversees the 
manage ment of these risks. The company's board of directors review and agrees policies for managing each of these 
risks su mmarized below: 

1) Market Risk 

Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument wiiJ fluctuate because of 
changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 
primarily to company's long term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

There is no cash outflow on account of interest on Loans and Business Advance from shareholders are to be re paid only 
on realisation of sale component. 

2) Credit Risk 

The Company is not exposed to credit risk form its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inter 
corporate loans is managed by the company's treasury department in accorda nce with the company's policy. 

3) Liquidity risk 
The Company's cash flow requiremnet are met by funds r eceived from its holding company. 

As per our report of even date 
FOR P.M. PANDE AND CO 

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 107289 W 

(JHARTERED ACC.OUrJANTS 

Xar X-~ <{ ~J.L_ 
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PRO PRIETO 
MEMBERSHI 0. 40694 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: t>_j ttt ( ~>O 
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DIRECTOR 
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Anand A. Yadav & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Vishal Techno Commerce Limited 
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Stat ements 

1} Opinion: 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Vishal Techno 
Commerce Limited ('the Company') , which comprise the balance sheet as at 315

t 

March 2020, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), 
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory informat ion (herein after referred 
to as "Ind AS financial statement"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financia l statements give the information required 
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fa ir view in conformity with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in I ndia, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March, 2020 and its financial performance including other 
comprehensive income and t he statement of changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date. 

2) Basis of Opinion: 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor 's Responsibil ities for the Audit of the Ind 
AS Financia l Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the I nst itute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are re levant to our audit of the Ind AS 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethica l responsibili ties in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

3) Other Information 
The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Company's annual report, but does not include the standa lone financial statements and 
our auditors' report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any fo rm of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standa lone financial statements, our responsibi lity is 
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materia lly inconsistent with the standa lone financial statements or our knowledge 
obt ained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material m1sstatement of this 
ther information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
ega rd . 

Add : 415, Shopzone Premises, Near Bank of India. M G Road, Ghatkopar (W). Mumbai - 400 086 
E-mai l: anand@anandyadav.in I Mobile : + 91 -98700 65175 



4) Responsibility of Management's for the Ind AS Financial Statements: 
The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financ1al position, 
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (I ndian 
Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 as amended, and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in I ndia. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting pol icies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from matenal 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or er ror. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

5) Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements : 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financia l 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
mainta in professional skepticism throughout the aud it. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resu lting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 



• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the 
related disclosures in the I nd AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the aud1t evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that ach ieves fa1r 
presentation . 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant aud it findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our aud it. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance m the audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key aud it matters. 

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes 
publ ic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the publ ic interest 
benefits of such communication. 

6) Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements: 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued 

by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143( 11) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on t he matters specified in the 
paragraph 3 and 4 of the order. 



2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our aud it. 
b) in our opinion proper books of account as requ ired by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 
c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss, the statement of cash flows 

and the statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the books of account; 

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Secti on 133 of the Act read with relevant 
rule issued thereunder; 

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3151 

March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal f inancial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate report in Annexure B; and 

g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Aud itors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and accord ing to the explanations 
given to us: 
i. The Company has no pending litigations on 1ts financial posit ion in 1ts 

standalone financia l statements. 
ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law 

or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, and 
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be 

transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company. 

For Anand A Yadav & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 137527W 

~ 
Anand Yadav 
Proprietor 
M. No.: 156864 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 20th July, 2020 

UDIN: 20156864AAAADN4234 



Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors' Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ' Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report to the members of Vishal Techno Commerce Limited of even date) 

The Annexure referred to in I ndependent Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on 
the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020, we report that: 

(i) The company does not have any Fixed Assets during the financial year. 
(ii) The Company does not have any I nventories during the year and as at the balance 

sheet date. 
(iii) The Com pany has granted unsecured loan to one company covered under the 

register maintained under Section 189 of the Act; 
a. The terms and condition of the loan are prima facie not prejud icial to the interest 

of the Company, and 
b. the schedule of repayment of principal on demand and the loan is in terest free 

loan; 
c. As per the terms and condi t ions of the arrangement, the amount of the loan is 

not overdue ; 
(iv) I n our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has compl ied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act 1n 

respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and 
securities, as applicable. 

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of 
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Ru les, 
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under 
section 148(1) of the Act , for any of the services rendered by the Company. 

(vii) a. According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, except for dues in respect of Profession 
Ta x Payable and interest on delayed payment of Tax Deducted at Source (TDS ), the 
Company is generally regular in depositing , undisputed statutory dues, including 
income-tax and other material statutory dues, wherever appl icable, w ith the 
appropriate authorities. 
The extent of arrears of statutory dues outstanding including interest at the balance 
sheet date, for a period exceeding six months from the date they become payable 
and the detai ls of outstanding as follows: 

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in INR 

1. Profession Tax Payable 2,500/ -
2. Wealth Ta x Liability 2,96, 750/-
3. Interest on above Statutory Liability 4,20,959/ -

Total Statutory Liability 7,20,209/-

b. Accord ing to the informat ion and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the particu lars of dues of Income Tax, Value Added Tax 
and Service Tax as at the Balance Sheet date which have not been deposited on 
account of a dispute are as follows : 



Name of Statue Nature I Amount not Financial Details of Pending 
of Dues deposited on Year Proceedings 

account of 
demand 
(In INR) 

I ncome Tax Act, Income 99,00,370/- 2010-11 The Commissioner of 
1961 Tax I ncome Tax (Appeals) 

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, The 
Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, 
banks, government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, 
paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable. 

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no matenal fraud by the 
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or 
reported during the course of our audit. 

(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for 
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and deta ils 
of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financia l statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during 
the year the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during 
the year the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions w1th directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

For Anand A Yadav & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 137527W 

~ 
Anand Yadav 
Proprietor 
M. No.: 156864 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 201h July, 2020 

UDIN: 20156864AAAADN4234 



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors' Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Lega l and Regulatory Requirements' 
section of our report to the members of Vishal Techno Commerce Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

1) Opinion : 
We have audited the internal financia l controls over financial report1ng of Vishal Techno 
Commerce Limited ("the Company") as of 3151 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit 
of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financ1al 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 3151 March 2020, based on the 
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considenng 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Aud1t of 
Internal Financia l Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the I nstitute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note") 

2) Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls : 
The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintain ing internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
establ ished by the Company considering the essentia l components of interna l control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of I ndia (' ICAI '). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

3) Auditor's Responsibility : 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal finano al controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our aud it in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note" ) and the Standards on Audit ing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable 
to an audit of internal financial controls , both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls and, both issued by the I nstitute of Chartered Accountants of I nd1a . Those 
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with eth ical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial rep;rting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 



Our audit involves performing procedures to obta in audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system over financial reportmg and the1r operatmg 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtain ing an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reportmg, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opin ion on the Company's internal f inancial controls 
system over financial reporting. 

4) Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting : 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal f inancial control over f inancial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 

fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 

5) Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting : 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

For Anand A Yadav & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 137527W 

~ 

UDIN: 20156864AAAADN4234 



VISHAL TECHNO COMM ERCE LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020 

PiliticuliliS 

ASSETS 

Non-Curren t Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

(b) Investment property 

(c) Fina ncia I assets 

(i) Investments 
a) Other investments 

(ii) Loans 

(d) Current tax assets 

Tota l Non-Current assets 

Current assets 

(a ) Financial assets 

(i) Cash and cash eq uivalents 
(iii) Other financia l assets 

T otal Curren t Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capita l 

(b) Other equity 

Total Equity 

Liabil ities 

Non-Current Liabilities 

(a) Financia l Liabil ities 

(i) Borrowings 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

(a) Financia l Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade payables 

(iii) Other financial liabilities 

Other cu rrent liabilities 

(b) Provisions 

Cu rrent tax Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILmES 

As per our report of even date 

FOR ANAND A YADAV & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants -

Frr~•;oo No. J37527W $~·''•" •• ,,\ 
ANANDYADAV I~ MUM!I3AI ~ 

• * PROPRI ETOR C"! ~ 
~ ~ 
1'?'1: ~ .. 

r,EtJ ~cct.~ 
Membership No. 156864 

-
Mum bai 

Date: 20th July 2020 

Note 
No. 

As at As at 
31st Milich, 2020 31st Milich, 2019 

(~) ( ~) 

3 - -
4 3,170,099 3,236,465 

5 9,343 109,343 

6 1,575,000, 912 1,609,789,775 

7 25,613,020 25,613,020 

1,603,793,374 1,638,748,603 

8 170,709 221,917 

9 251,048,700 241,221,700 

251,219,409 241,443,617 

1,855,012,783 1,880,192,220 

10 500,000 500,000 

11 194,254,061 19-1,767,100 

194,754,061 195,267,100 

12 1,019,720,000 1,529,580,000 
1,019,720,000 1,529,580,000 

12 635,745,419 1SO,n 1,s1o 

13 2,638,713 2,192,171 

14 72,228.00 109,263 
15 156,38-1.00 396,707 

16 563,825.00 573,315 

7 1,362,154.00 1,362,15-1 

640,538,722 155,345,120 
1,660,258,722 1,684,925,120 
1,855,012,783 1,880,192,220 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

p 
- Shrenik Mehta 

O c,OMMc-9
0 

DIRECTOR ( ~a(C' DI N: 03137231 

~ \1-U\11\?>fl-\ ~ ~ ~ 
.) ;;:: . 
J....y <:> • 

Stt1 -tr , 
_ Prabhu 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03142640 



VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED 
• STAiEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

; 

ParticuJars 

I COME 
Revenue from Operations 
Other Income 

II EXPENSES 

Total Income 

Cha nges in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress 

Finance Costs 

Depreciation Expenses 

Other Expenses 

Total Expenses 

Profit before exceptional items and Tax (I- II) 

Profit I (Loss) before Tax 

Tax Expense 

(1) Current Tax 

(2) Deferred tax (charge) I credi t 

(3) Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of earlier years 
Profit I (Loss) for the Year 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Total Comprehensive Income 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of ' lOieach 
Basic and Diluted 

As per our report of even date 

FOR ANAND A YADAV & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accoun tants 

Membership No. 156864 

Mumbai 
Date: 20th July 2020 

Note Year ended 

No. 31st March, 2020 

17 
18 

19 

20 
21 

22 

(t) 

199,153 

66,366 
247,520 

513,039 

(513,039) 

(513,039) 

(513,039) 

(1.03) 

Year ended 

31st March, 2019 

m 

439,524 
1,650 

441,174 

3,334,449 

66,366 

434,122 

3,834,937 

(3,393,763) 

(3,393,763) 

(3,235,853) 

(6.47) 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ 
Shrenik Mehta 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03137231 

~.:. 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03142640 



VIS HAL TEUI 0 COMMERCE LIMITED 
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR T HE YEAR E OED 31st MARC H, 2020 

1. A I I Fl WS ARISING FROM OPERATl G ACTIVITIES 

Net prof1t I (loss) b..>fore taxation and prior period items as per Statement of 
Prof1t and Loss 
Add I (Le<.s) 

Fmance costs 

Depreciation and amo rtisation 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Add I (Less) : 
(Increase) I Decrease in ITade and other receivebles 

Increase I (Decrease) in trade and other payables 

Increase I (Decrease) in p rovisions 

Direct taxes paid 

Net cash Oow from operating activities- I 

II . C~SII FLQ WS ARISI G FR0:\1 11\.'VESTI 1G ACTIVITIES 

lnOow I (OutOow) on account of : 

(Increase) I Decrease loans and Advances 

(Increase} I Decrease in Investments 

et u s h Oow from investing activities- II 

lnOow I (OutOow) o n account of: 

Proceeds from Long term borrowings 

Finance costs paid 

Net cash Oow fro m financing activities- III 

G ACTIVITIES 

et increase in cash and cash equivalents ( I + II+ Ill ) 

Add: Balance at the beginning of the year 

Reconciliatio n of cash and cas h equivalents (Refer ole 8) 

Cash o n hand 

Bank Balances m C urrent Accounts 

Footnote: 

As at 

31st March, 2020 

(~} 

(511,039) 

199,153 

66,366 
265,519 

(247,520) 

(9,827,000) 
169,184 

(9,490) 

:>-1,788,863 

100,000.00 
34,888,863 

10,663 
160,046 
170,709 

As at 

31st March, 2019 

( ~) 

(3,393,763) 

3,334,449 
66,366 

3,400,815 
7,052 

213,629 
(10,413,666) 

246,565 

9,953.4n 
(9,946,.120) 

888,473,811 

888,4 73,811 

(881,682,7n} 

10,663 
211,254 
221,917 

The Cash Flow Statement has b..>en prepared under indirect method as set out m lndtan Accounting Standard (lnd P& 7) statement o f Cash Flows 

FOR A A D A YADAV & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountan ts 

Fi~ion 

A A DYADAV 

PROPR IETOR 

Membership o. 156864 

Mumbai 

Date: 20th j uly 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Shrenik Mehta 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03142640 



VISHAL TEC HNO COMMER E LIMITED 

QTESTO THEFI A CIALSTATEMENTSFORTHEYEARE DED31stMARCH,2020 

1. COMPANYOVERVIEW 

Vishal Techno Commerce Limited is an unlisted Public Limited Company domiciled m India, incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. 
The Company is engaged mto real estate business specializing in construction and development of lnfotech Parks, Cyber Parks, Business 
Parks, SEZ, lease of commercial, industrial and residential properheo., solar power energy generahon and distribution and financmg 
activitle<>. 

The financial s tatements a re approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 20th July 2020. 

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNnNG POLICIES 

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
These financial s tatements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affa irs pursua nt to Section 133 of the Companies Act , 2013 ('Act') (to the extent notified) read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Ru les, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accountmg Standards} Amendment Rules, 2016. 

The Company has adopted aU the lndAS standards and the adoption was carried out m accordance with lndAS 101 First time adoption of Indian 

Account ing Standards. The transition was carried out from Indian Accounting Principles generally accepted in India as prescribed under Section 

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP), which was the previous GAAP. Reconcilia tions and 

d escriptions of the effect of the transition has been summarized in Note 32. 

Accounhng policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is in1tially adopted or a revision to an 

existing accounting s tandard requires a change in the accounting pohcy hitherto in use. 

a) Historica l Cost Convention 
The financial s tatements have been prepared on histo rical cost basis, except for the following: 

i certain financ1al assets and liabilities that have been measured at fair value 

ii. assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fau value less cost to seU. 
iii. defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fai r value. 

b) Current and Non-C urrent Classification 
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on cu rrent/ non current classification. 
An asset is classified as current when: 

i. It is expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

A. Revenue from Construction Activity 
i. Revenue from sale of 'finished properties/ buildings/ rights' is recognised on t ransfer of all s ignificant risks and rewards of ownership of 

such properties/ building/ rights, as per the terms of the contracts entered mto with buyerf (s), which generally coincides with the firming of 

the sales contracts/ agreements, except for contracts where the Company s till has obligations to perform substantial acts even after the 

transfer of all s ignificant risks and rewards. 

B. Interest and Dividend Income 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flo" to the Company and the amount 

of mcome can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstandmg at the effective 

interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 

to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 
D1vidend income IS recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 
Others 
Revenues f Income and Costs/ Expenditure are generally accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

2.2 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION/ AMMORTISATION 
Tangible Fixed Assets are stated at cost of acquisi tion or construction less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, · 

any. 

Depreciation is p rovided on the straight line method on the b.1sis of estimated useful life of the asset in the manner specified in Schedule II 

B. to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on sale/ d isposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such 

addition, or upto the month of such sale/ disposal, as the case may be. · 

Asset Category Estimated useful hie (in Years) 

Furniture and Fixture 10 

O ffice equipments 5 

2.3 INVESTMENTS 

Investments are classtf1ed into Current and Non Current / Long Term Investments. Current investments are s tated at lower of cost and fau 

value. Long term investments are s tated a t cost. A provision for diminution is made to recognize decline, other than temporary, in the value of 
long term investments. 

2A FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

2.4.1 Initial recognition 

The Com pany recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the ins trument. All 

financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on init ial recognition except for trade receivables which are initially measured at 

tra nsaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acqu isition or issue of financia l assets and fi nancial liabilities, that are not 

at fair value through profit or loss,are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sa le of financial assets are 
accounted for at trade da te. 



VIS}iAL TECH 0 COMMERCE LIMITED 

N0TESTOTHE Fl ANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

2.4.2 Subsequent measurement 
a. • Non-derivative financial instruments 
(i) Financial assets ca rried at amortised cost 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 

collect contractual cash nows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified da tes to cash nows tha t are solely payments 

of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
A financia l asset is s ubsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held with in a business model whose 

objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash nows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 

rise on specified dates to cash nows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outs tanding. Further, in cases 

where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its investments which are classified as equity 

instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value a re recognized in other comprehensive income. 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above ca tegories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. 

(iv) Financialliabilities 
Financial liabilities a re subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for contingent consideration 
recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables 
matu ring within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

(v) Fair value of financial instruments 
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on market 
conditions and risks exis ting at each reporting da te. The methods used to determine fair va lue include discounted cash now analysis, available 
quoted market prices and deal er quotes. All methods of as essing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may 
never actually be reali zed. 

2.4.3 Derecognition of financia l instruments 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash nows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the 
finacia l a set and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financia l liability) is derecognized 
from the Company's balance sheet when the obligation s peci fied in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

2.4.4 Impairment 
a. Financial assets 

The Company recogni.tes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fa ir valued through 

profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivable with no ignificant financing component is measured a t an amount equal to life time ECL. 

For all other financial assets, expected credit losses a re measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant 

increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case thoseare measured at lifetime ECL.The amount of expected credit losses (or 

reversal) that is requi red to adjust the loss a llowance at the reporting date to the amount tha t is required to be recognised is recognized as an 

impairment ga in or loss in the statement of profit or loss. 

b. Non-financial assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Property, plant and equipment a re evaluated for recoverability wheneer events or changes in circums tances indica te tha t their carrying 

amou nts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fai r value less cost to sell 

and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash nows tha t are largely independent of 

those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. 

2.5 TAXATION 

i. Current Tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the financial 
sta tement of profit and loss becauseof items of income or expense tha t are taxable or deductible in other years and items that a re never 
taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calcula ted using ra tes tha t have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end o 
the reporting period. 

In case the Company is liable to pay income tax ujs 115JB of Income Tax Act, 1% 1 (i.e. MAl), the amount of tax paid in excess of normal 
income tax is recognized as an asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for rea lization of such asset during the 
specified eriod. MAT credit entitlement is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. 



VIS!JAL TECH NO COMMERCE LJMITED 

OTES TO THE Fl A CIALSTATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR E OED 31st MARCH, 2020 

li. Deferred Tax 
Deferred tax is recogni.ted on tem porary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial s tate me nts and 

the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred ta>. liabilities are generally recogmzed for all taxable 

temporary differences. Deferred tax a ssets are generally recogm£Cd fo r all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 

that taxable profits w ill be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be u tilized. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed a t the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent tha t it is no longer 
probable that sufficien t taxable profits will be available to allow a ll or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that a re expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the 

asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantjvely enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the 
Company expects, a t the end of the reporting period, to recover o r settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

iii. Current and defe rred tax fo r the year 
C urrent and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive 
income o r directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognjzed in other comprehensive mcome or directly in 
equ1ty respectively 

26 BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS 
Borrowings are initially recognised at the net transaction costs incurred and measured at ammortiscd cost. Any difference between the proceeds 

(net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recogniSCd in the statement of profit and loss over the period of the borrowings using 

the effective interest method. 

Interests and othe r borrowing costs calculated as per effective interest rate attributable to qualifying assets are allocated as part of the cost of 

constmction / development of such assets. Such allocation is suspended du ring extended periods in which active develo pment is interrupted 

and, no costs are a llocated once a ll such activities are substantially complete. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific 

borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets 1S deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for ca pitalisation. Other borrowing 

costs are charged to the Profi t and Loss Account. 

2.7 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Cash flows a re reported using the indirect method, whereby prof1t for the penod is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non<ash nature, 

any defe rrals or accruals of past o r future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income o r expenses assoc1ated with investing or 

financing ca sh flo ws. The cash flows from operat ing, investing and financing act ivities o f the company are segrega ted . 

28 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT UABILITIES 
Provisions are recogn ized only when there is a present obligation, as a resu lt of past events, and when a reliable est imate of the amount o 

obligat ion can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best 

estima tes. Provisions are discounted to their p resent values, where the time value of money is material. 

Contmgent liability is disclosed for: 

Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly w1thin the control of the Company or 
Present obligations arising from past events where it is not p robable tha t an outflow of resources will be required to sett le the obligat ion o r 
a reliable estimate of the amount o f the obligation cannot be made. 

2.9 USE OF ESTIMATES 

The p reparation of the financial s tate ments in conformity with lndAS requires management to make estima tes, judgments and a ssumptions. 

These estimates, judg ments and assumptions affect the applicat ion of accounting policies and the reported amounts of a ssets and liabilities, the 

disclosures of contingent assets a nd liabili6es at the date of the financial s tatements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 

period. Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting est rmates involving complex and subjective judgments and the usc of 

assumptions in these financial s tatements have been disclosed m note 2.10. Accou nting esllmates could change from period to period. Actual 

results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes awa re of changes in 

circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the period in which changes are made 

and, 1f material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the fmancial statements. 

2.10 Critica l accounting judgements and estimates 

a. Property, plant and equipment and depreciation 

The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful hfe and the expected 

res1dual value at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of Company 's assets are determined by management at the lime the 

asset is acquired and reviewed peiodica lly, includ ing a t each financial year end. The lives are based on h istorica l experience with similar 

assets as well as anticipat ion o f future events, which may im pact their life, such as changes in technology. 
b. Fair va lue measurements and valuation processes 

Some of the company's assets are measured at fair va lue for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair value o f an asset or liability, 

the Company uses market-observable data t t it is available. Where Levell inputs are not available, the Company engages third 

party q~alified va luers to .perform th ~i~ ompany works closely w ith the qualified externa l valuers lish the 
ap ro nate valuahon techmques and · u1 o them 0 CO.c, 



VISHAL TECHNO COMM ERCE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

Notes Amount 
(~} 

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 

As at 1st Apri l, 2018 10 500,000 

Changes in equity share capital -

As at 31st March, 2019 500,000 

Changes in equity share capital -
As at 31st March, 2020 500,000 

Amount in ( ~) 

Particulars Equity Share Capital Retained Earnjngs Total 

Balance at April1, 2018 500,000.00 198,002,953 198,502,953 

Total Comprehensive Income for the yea r - (3,235,853) (3,235,853) 

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 500,000.00 194,767,100 195,267,100 

Total Comprehensive Income for the year - (513,039) (513,039) 

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 500,000.00 194,254,061 194,754,061 

As per our report of even date For and on behali of the Board of Directors 

FOR ANAND A YADAV & ASSOCIATES 

~ Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regjstration No. 137527W -
~ 

B 
- Shrenjk Mehta 

8 
DIRECTOR ~ 

ANANDYADAV ~ ~ DIN: 03137231 

PROPRIETOR ~ .,.ut--'S"-1 ': 
( ~ MUMBAI ~» 

'31::..~" 
<II. "' 

Membership No. 156864 • $" 
~ .;:."" '5-: ~ 

'f-? ~ J}-1 • (l"» ..... 1(ftEo -.c<Ji - --=--
Mumbai DIRECTOR 
Date: 20th July 2020 DIN: 03142640 



VlSH.AL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED -
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

3. Property, plant and equipment 
-

Amount in ( t) 

Furnjture and Fixtures TotaJ 

Cost or deemed cost 

BaJance at 1st April, 2018 288,238 288,238 

Additions - -
Disposals I Discardment of Assets - -
BaJance at 31st March, 2019 288,238 288,238 

Accumulated depreciation 

BaJance at 1st April, 2018 286,043 286,043 

EHmina ted on disposa l of assets - -

Depreciation expense 2,195 2,195 

BaJance at 31st March, 2019 288,238 288,238 

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2019 - -

Amount in ( t} 

Furniture and Fixtures TotaJ 

Cost or deemed cost 

BaJance at 1st April, 2019 288,238 288,238 
Additions - -
Disposals I Discardment of Assets - -
BaJance at 31st March, 2020 288,238 288,238 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at 1st April, 2019 288,238 288,238 
Eliminated on disposa l of assets - -
Depreciation expense - -
BaJance at 31st March, 2020 288,238 288,238 

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 - -



VISHAL TECH NO COMMERCE LIMITED 
NOTES TO T HE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERJOD ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

As at As at 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
(~) (~) 

4. Investment property 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,927,638 5,927,638 

Additions - -
Transfe rred from property, plant and equipment - -
Balance at the end of the year 5, 927,638 5,927,638 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 

Balance at the beginning of the year 2,691,173 2,624,807 

Depreciation expense 66,366 66,366 

Effect of Foreign currency exchange differences - -
Balance at the end of the year 2,757,539 2,691,173 

Carrying amount 3,170,099 3,236,465 

5. Investment 

Non Current Investments 

(Trade, unless otherwise specified) 

Investment in equjty instruments (Unquoted) 

I) Subsid iary Company (Fully paid up equity shares) (At cost) 

a) 10,000 (As at 31st March, 2019 : 10,000) Equity shares of ' 10/ - each - 100,000 
A B Renewable Energy Private Limjted 

II) Others (At Fair Value) 

b) 25 (As at 31st March, 2019 :25) Equity shares of ' 29/- each 9,343 9,343 
Shamrao Vithal Co-opera tive Bank Limited (Refer Footnote) 
Total 9,343 109,343 

Footnote 

Equity shares of Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited are fa ir valued based on a udited financial statement fo r the year ended F.Y. 201&-19 

6.Loans 
Non-current 

Loans to related pa rties 

- Unsecured, considered good (Refer Note No: 26) 1,575,000, 912 1,609,789,775 
Total 1,575,000,912 1,609,789,775 



VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

As at As at 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
(~} (~} 

7. Current Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) 
(i) Current Tax Assets 

Advance Tax paid 25,613,020 25,613,020 
Less: Provision for Tax - -

Current Tax Assets Total 25,613,020 25,613,020 

(ii) Current Tax Liability 
Provision for Tax 1,362,154 1,362,154 

Less: Advance Tax Paid - -
Current Tax Liability Total 1,362,154 1,362,154 

Since the taxable income is negative, there is no current tax payable , reconciliation(Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit 
multiplied by Companie's tax rate) has not been provided. 

8. Cash and Bank Balances 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Balances with banks: 
- in current accounts 160,046 211,2.>1 

Cash on hand 10,663 10,663 
Total 170,709 221,917 

9. Other financial assets 
Current 
Security deposits 150,000 150,000 
Other receivables (Other than Trade Receivables) 250,898,700 241,071,700 

Total 251,048,700 241,221,700 



VlSHA.L TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FlNA.NCIA.L ST A. TEMENTS FOR THE YEA.R ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

10. Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
1,000,000 (As at 31st March, 2019: 10,00,000) Equity Shares of · 10/- each 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 

50,000 (As at 31st March, 2019: 50,000) Equity Shares of · 10/ - each fully paid up 

10.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at 
the end of reporting year 

Balance at 1st April, 2018 

Add: Issued during the yea r 

Less: Bought back during the year 

Balance at 31" March , 2019 

Add: Issued during the yea r 

Less: Bought back during the year 
Balance at 3151 March , 2020 

As at 

31st March, 2020 
( ~) 

10,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

Number of shares 

50,000 

-
-

50,000 

-
-

50,000 

A.s at 

31" March, 2019 

( ~) 

10,000,000 

500,000 

500,000 

Number of shares 

50,000 

-
-

50,000 

-
-

50,000 

10.2 Shares held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company, subsidiaries or associates of the holding: 

Holding Company 
Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 

Total 

10.3 Details of s hares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 

As at 31st March, 2020 
No of shares held % holding 

Fully paid equity shares 

Hubtown Limited with Benificiary Owners 50,000 100% 

10.4 Terms/Right attached to Ordinary Equity Shares 

No. of Equity shares 
As at As at 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 

50,000 50,000 
50,000 50,000 

As at 31st March, 2019 
No of shares held % holding 

50,000 100~ 

The company has a sing le class of equity shares having a par value of · 10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entiUed to one vote per share. The 
company declares and pays dividend in indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholders in the 
ensuing annual general meeting. 



VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORTH E YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

11. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 

Balance a t the beginning of the year 

Profit attributable to the owners of the company 

Balance at the end of the year 

12. Borrowings 

Non-current 

Secured 

- From financial institutions (Refer Footnote) 

Total 

Footnote: 

As at 

31st March, 2020 

(f) 

194,767,100 

(513,039) 

194,254,061 

1,019,720,000 

1,019,720,000 

As at 

31st March, 2019 

(f) 

198,002,953 

(3,235,853) 

194,767,100 

1,529,580,000 

1,529,580,000 

(i) Repayable in quarterly installment starting from 30th September 2019. Mortgage of land and s tructures on 
project located in Andheri (East), Matunga, Kelavali, Ghodivali, Raigad, Mulund, Khalapur and Majiwade; first 
charge by way of over the receivable and escrow account collection from above project. Irrevocable and 
unconditional Personal Guarantee(s) of Mr. Hemant Shah and Vyomesh Shah. Corpora te guarantee of Heet 
Builder Private Limited and Citygold Education Research Limited Pledge of shares of Heet Builder Private 
Limited,- Citygold Education Research Limited held by Hubtown Limited. Pledge of 70,00,000 shares of 
Hubtown Limited. 

(ii) The Company has borrowed funds from ECL Finance Limited for the project under execution in a fellow 
subsidiary till (28.02.2019), Heet Builders Private Limited. All the cost of borrowings, upfront fees and interest 
cost are borne by Heet Builders Private Limited to the extent of loans advanced to Heet Builders Private Limited 
out of total amount of borrowed from ECL Finance Limited. 

(i) 

Currrent 

Unsecured 

Loans repayable on demand: 

From Related Party (Refer Footnote) 

Total 

Footnote 

635,745,419 150,711,510 
635,745,419 150,711,510 

The Company has received interest free Joan from it's Parent Company, considering the nature of business in 
which the Company operate, the amounts so received are considered to be repayable on call j demand as the 
repayment period of such amounts so received is not measureable precisely. 



VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

13. Trade payables 

Dues to MSME (Refer Footnote) - -
Dues to others 2,638,713 2,192,171 

Total 2,638,713 2,192,171 

Footnote 
As per information available with the Company regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as 
defined under the Micro Small Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers 
of the Company are registered under MSMED Act, and the same has been relied upon by the auditors. 

14. Other financial liabilities 

Current 

Other payables 72,228 109,263 

Total 72,228 109,263 

15. Other Current liabilities 

Other payables : 

-Statutory dues 156,384 396,707 
Total 156,384 396,707 

16. Provisions 

Current 

Provision for Rates and Taxes 563,825 573,315 
Total 563,825 573,315 



VtSHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMJTED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

17. Revenue from operations 

Other operating revenue : 

Sundry Creditor Balances Written Back 
Total 

18. Other income 

a) Other Income 

Interest on Income tax Refund 

Misc. Income 
Total 

19. Finance Costs 

Other interest expense 

Other Interest Charges (Delayed and penal Interest) 
Total 

Year ended 

31st March, 2020 
( ~) 

199,153 
199,153 

Year ended 

31st March, 2019 
(~) 

439,524 

439,524 

1,647 

3 
1,650 

3,151,201 

183,248 
3,334,449 

Footnote: interest expense for loan taken from ECL Finance Limited is recoverable from Heet Builders Private Limited 
and therefore finance cos t for the loan is not recognjzed for the year to the extent of loan advanced to Heet Builders 
Private Limited. 

20. Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 

Depreciation on Furniture and Fixtures 

Depreciation on Buildings 

21. Other Expenses 

Rates and taxes 

Total 

Repairs and society maintenance charges 
Legal and professional fees 
Other expenses 

Total 

Footnote: 

AudH Fees 

66,366 66,366 
66,366 66,366 

2,500 
229,976 212,473 

2,657 72,250 
14,887 146,899 

247,520 434,122 

10,000 20,000 
10,000 20,000 



VJSHAL T ECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED 
• NOTES TO TH E FINANCIAL STAT EMENTS FO R THE YEAR EN DED 31st MARCH, 2020 

22. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

Basic and Di lu ted Earning Per Share 

Basic EPS 

The earnings and weighted average number of equity sha res used in the 
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share a re as fo llows: 

Profi t for the year attributable to the owners of the Company 

Earnings used in Ule calculation of basic and diluted earnjngs per share 

Weighted average number of equity shar es for the purposes of basic and diluted eamffigs per shar 

23 Related Party Disclosures (As per IND AS - 24) 

A. Name of the related parties and related parties relationship 

Holding Company Hubtown Lim ited 

As at 

31st March, 2020 
( ~) 

(1.03) 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2020 
( ~) 

(513,039) 

500,000 

As at 

31' 1 March, 2019 
( ~) 

(6.47) 

Year Ended 

31st March, 2019 
( ~) 

(3,235,853) 

500,000 

ll Fellow Subsidiary Heet Builders Private Limited (28..()2-2019) 

ill Others Signif icant Inf luence Citygold Management Serv ices Private Limited 

Footnote: 

Re lated party relationship are identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors 

B. Transaction with Re lated Parties -

Sr. 
No Nature of Transaction Holding 

Company 

Others Significan t 
Fellow Subsidiary Influe nce 

Loans and advances received / recovered 

Hubtown Limited 125,000 

(140,825,000) (-) (-) 
Heet Builders Private Limited 

(-) ( 142,559,794) (-) 
Citygold Education Research Limited 575,121,137 

(-) (-) (-) 
ii Loan Repaid /given / Adjusted 

Hubtown Limi ted 90,000,000 

(3,000,000) (-) (-) 
Heet Bu ilders Priva te Limited 

(-) (1,031,033,605) (-) 
iii Payment made on our BehaH 

Citygold Management Services Pvt Limited 

(45,929) 



VISHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED . 
"NOTES TO TH E FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

• 
Balances outstanding As at As at 

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
i Balance Payables ( ~) (~) 

Hold ing Company 

H u btown Limited 60,624,282 150,499,282 
Other Significant Influence 

City gold Management Services Pvt Limited 1,247,814 1,215,951 

ii Balance Receivables 

Others - Fellow Subsidiaries 

Citygold Education Research Limited 575,121,137 -
Heet Builders Private Limited (28-02-2019) - 1,609,789,775 

iii Balance of corporate gurantee for loan taken 

Holding Company and Fellow Subsidiary 
Hubtown Limited, Heet Builders Private Limited (28-02-2019), 1,019,720,000 1,529,580,000 
Citygold Education Private Limited 

Note:-
The loan of Rs. 10,197.20 lakhs taken by Vishal Techno Commerce Limited has been joinUy and severally guranteed by Heet Builders 
Private Limited and Hubtown Limited . There is no contract determining the ratio of individual gurantees by each party, in such cases 
the amount shall be divided equa lly between each party. 



VIS HAL TECHNO COMMERCE U MITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

24. Contingent Liability 

A. Contmgent liabtlity with regards disputed dues wtlh statu tory authonties : 

A Claims against company not acknowledge as debt on account of:-
lncome tax matter under appeals with the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeal) : 

Financial yea r 2010-2011 Under Section 221 of Income Tax Act, 1%1 

Total 

As a t 

31st March, 2020 
( ~) 

9,900,370 
9,900,370 

As at 
31" March, 2019 

m 

9,900,370 
9,900,370 

Further interest / penalty that may accrue on original demands are not ascertainable, at present. The Company has taken necessary steps to protect 
its position with respect to the above referred claims, which in tts opinion, based on professional / legal advice, are not sustainable. 

The Company does not have any contingent liability as at balance sheet date, other then stated above, as certified by management & relied upon by 
the auditors. 

B. On account of Corporate guarantees issued by the Company to ECL Finance Limited on behalf of Heel 
Bulders Private Limited : Outstanding Loan amount 

25 Capital Management 
The entity manages its capital to ensure that the enti ty will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders 
through optimisation of debt equity ra tio. 

The capital structure of the entity consis ts of net debt ( Borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of the company. 

Gearing Ratio 

The gearing ra tio at the reporting period was as follows 

Secured Loan 

Unsecured Loan 

Interest accured and due/ and but not due 

Total Debt 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Net Debt (A) 

Equity Share Capital 

Other equity 

Total Equity (B) 

Debt Equity Ratio A/ B 

As at 

31st March, 2020 
( ~) 

1,019,720,000 

635,745,419 

1,655,465,419 

170,709 

1,655,294,709 

500,000 
194,254,061 

194,754,061 

8.50 

As at 

31st March, 2019 
(~) 

1,529,580,000 

1SO,n 1,510 

1,680,291,510 

221,917 

1,680,069,593 

500,000 
194,767,100 

195,267,100 

8.60 
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VJSHAL TECHNO COMMERCE LIMITED 
OTES TO TilE FlNANCJAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 

26 Fmancial Risk Management Objectives 

The company is exposed to market risk, c redtt risk and liquid tty risk. The company's management oversees the management of these risks . 
The company' s board of directors review and ag rees policies for managing each of these risks summarized below 

Market Risk 
Interest ra te rist.. 
Interest ra te ris t.. tS the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financtal instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market inte rest 
rates. The Company has borrowed funds for execu tion of project by a fellow subsidiary Heel Builders Priva te Limited . Interest and other 
Borrowings cost are born by Heel Builders Private Ltmted refe r Note No. 12 

ii) Credit Risk 

The company is not exposed to credit risk from its operating activities. Credit risk from balances with banks and inte r corporate loans is 
managed by the company's treasu ry department in accordance with the company's policy. 

iii) Liquidtty risk 
The companies cashflow requirement are met by funds received from its holding company. 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, alit te rns of Current Assets, Non Current Assets, Non cu rrent liabilities, Current 
Liabilities and Loans and Advances continues to have a realizable value of at least the amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet. 

As per our report of even date 

FOR ANAND A Y ADAV & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration No. 137527W 

Ajt: 
PRO Date: 20th July 2020 

Membership No. 156864 

Mumbai 

Date: 20th July 2020 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

~ 
Shrenik Mehta 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 03137231 

%::. 
DIRECTOR 

DIN: 031426-tO 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

TO, 
THE MEMBERS OF, 
VANTil BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

Report on the lnd AS financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying lnd AS financial statements of VANTil BUILDCON PRIVATE 
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2020, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary 
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of ou,. information and according to the e ... planations given to us, 
the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner 
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2020, and its loss and 
its cash flows for the year end 
ed on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 
143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the lnd AS financial statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the lnd AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Financial statements of current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors' Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the Standalone 
Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon. & A.s 
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Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's Responsibility for the lnd AS financial statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated !n section 134 (5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act'1 ) with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with 
Rule 7 ofthe Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
lnd AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the lnd AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing. as applicable, matters related to 
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 

so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Companys financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the lnd AS financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue o.-• ouclitor's rt:poil that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these lnd AS financial 
stJtements. 



• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the lnd 
AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the lnd AS financial statements 
including the disclosures, and whether the lnd AS financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order''), issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act 2013, and on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the company as we 
considered appropriate and according to the information and explanation given to us, we 
give in the "Annexure A", a statement on the matter specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the 

order to the extent applicable. 



II. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid lnd AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st 
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a Director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting 
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in "Annexure B" to this report 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with Rulell of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

•. Th~ Company does not have any material pending litigations which would 
impact its financial position. 

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

FORM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS.~=!'oo... 
FRN: 103256W 

MUKESH K. GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
M. No. :038823 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 20/11/2020 
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"ANNEXURE A" TO OUR INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020 OF VANTil BUILOCON 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

As required by the Companies (Audit Report) order, 2016 On the basis of such checks as we 
considered appropriate and in terms of the information and explanations given to us, we state 
that:-

1. Fixed assets: 
a. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets. 
b. These fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable 

intervals and no Material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 
c. Title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

2. The Company does not hold any inventory or securities as stock in trade, hence paragraph 
3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

3. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any 
loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other 
parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) ofthe order are not applicable to the company and 
hence not commented upon. 

4. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not given any 
loan, security or guarantee in prejudice of section 185 and 186 of the Act. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public within the 
meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder to the extent 
applicable; 

6. It has been explained to us that the maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed 
under section 148{1) of the Act; 

7. Payment of Dues: 

a. According to the records of the Company, it has been generally regular in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues including Service Tax, Wealth Tax, Employees State Insurance, 
Provident fund, Cess and other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There has 
been some delay in depositing undisputed Income Tax deducted at source and profession 
tax. Moreover, amounts outstanding at the last day of the financial year for a period 
exceeding six months from the date they became payable is Rs. 0.34 Lakhs for profession 
tax. 



b. According to information and explanation given to us and based on the records of the 
company, examined by us, there are no dues outstanding of income tax, sales tax, service 
tax, duty of customs and value added tax on account of any dispute. 

Statute and nature Financial Year Amount Forum where 
of dues dispute is pending 

income rax LUll-lL 4U,U~,!>LL 

I 
1ncome lax 

Appellate Tribunal 

8. On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanations given to us, 
the company has defaulted in repayment of loans and dues to debenture holders and bank. 
Attention is invited to Footnote No. a to schedule 10- "Borrowings" with regards to amount 
of non-payment of borrowings. 

9. On the basis of records examined by us and the information and explanations given to 
us company has neither taken any term loan nor there any IPO or public offering during the 
period under report. Hence paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, and to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, no fraud on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported by 
the Company during the year. 

11. According to the information and explanations given to us, no Managerial remuneration 
has been paid or provided. Hence paragraph 3(xi) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

12. Company is not a Nidhi Company hence nothing to be disclosed tor any provisions applicable 
on Nidhi Company. Hence paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

13. Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and 
explanations given to us, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the lnd AS 
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

14. The company hasn't made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully 
or partly convertible debentures during the year. 

I 



15. The company hasn't entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. 

16. The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934. 
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controis under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of Yantti Buildcon 

Private Limited ("the Company'' ) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the lnd 

AS Financial S.tatements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal Financial 

Controls based on the Internal Control over Financial Reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of Internal Control stated in the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (' ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 

company's policies. the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 

Note"} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAJ and deemed to be prescribed under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an Audit of Internal 

Financial Controls, both applicable to an Audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require 

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain Reasonable 

Assurance about whether adequate Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting was 

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

Internal Financial Controls system over Financial Reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 

Internal Control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the Auditor's 

Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the lnd AS Financial 

Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our audit opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls system over Financial 

Reporting. 



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of Financial Reporting and the preparation of 

Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted Accounting 

Principles. A company's Internal Financial Control over Financial 

Reporting includes those policies and procedures that; 
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 

Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject 

to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate 

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 312020, b~sed on the intern~! control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

MUKESH K. GOHEL 
PROPRIETOR 
M. No. :038823 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 20/ 11/ 2020 
UDIN: 20038823AJU\AFB2210 



. 
i'A."TII BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Particulars 

ASSETS 

Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, plant and equipment 

(c) Current tax assets (Net) 

Total Non-Current assets 

Current assets 

(a) Inventories 

(b) Hnancial assets 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents 

(c) Other current assets 

Total Current Assets 

Total assets 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

(a) Equity share capital 

(b) Other equity . 
Total Equity 

Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade payables 

(iu) Other financial liabilities 

(b) Other current liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Total Equi ty and Liabilities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

For M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCI~ 

CHARTERED ACCOUN~& A$ 
I RN: 103256W o~~ 800 

: MUMBAI ~ 1 
1 • M. No. 1: rr 
~ 038823 • 

MUKESH K. GOHEL ~~ 
PROPRIETOR 

M.No.: 038823 
-

&1)11-C ~·3'fS~AAAA P.S'-~'o 
Place: Mumbai 

Date: 20th November,2020 

Note 

No. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 
14 

As at As at 

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

~ t 

2,92,000 2,92,000 

1,10,901 1,10,901 

4,02,901 4,02,901 

57,99,80,622 57,72,86,372 

2,46,739 2,40,211 

2,35,268 1,00,000 

58,04,62,629 57,76,26,583 

58,08,65,530 57,80,29,484 

5,00,000 5,00,000 

(32,84,057) (70,93,162) 

(27,84,057) (65,93,162) 

93,25,982 92,07,556 

14 ,58, 78,376 14,58,46,503 

42,61,16, 736 42,35,24,236 

23,28,492 60,44,351 

58,36,49,586 58,46,22,646 

58,36,49,586 58,46,22,646 

58,08,65,529 57,80,29,484 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

HEMANT GULATI 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00408734 

~ 
Director 

DIN:03142640 



VANTil BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020 

Particulars Note 

No. 

INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 15 

Share of Profit I (Loss) of Joint Ventures 

Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Changes in Inventories of Incomplete Projects 16 

f-inance Costs 17 

Other Expenses 18 

Total Expenses 

Profiti(Loss) before Tax 

Tax Expense 

(1) Current Tax 

(I) Excess I (Short) provision for taxation in respect of 

earlier years 

Total 

Profit for the Year 

Earning per equity share of nominal value of~ 101- 19 

each (in Rupees) 

Basic and Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date 

ror M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES 

CI IARTEREDACCOUN~TA~1 & 
f HN: 103256W 0~~\, A.s,s-0 

" ~ 

' 

li MUMBAI ?t ~ 
. U . No. m 
~ 038823 "' 

MUKESH K. GOHEL ~~~ol;..: 
PROPRIETOR -
M.No.: 038823 

I/JifN : ..to•Jn~•AAAF&~.UO 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 20th November,2020 

Year ended Year ended 

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

~ ~ 

38,88,941 2,30,038 

- 18,946 

38,88,941 2,48,984 

(26,94,250) (34,16,145) 

53,126 1,68,080 

27,20,960 34,82,523 

79,836 2,34,458 

38,09,105 14,526 

-
- -

- -

38,09,105 14,526 

0.29 0.29 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

HEMANT GULATI 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00408734 

~~ 
Director 

DIN:03142640 



VANTil BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

Particulars 

Cash Flow arising from Operating Activities: 

I Net Prof1t before taxes as per profit and loss account 

Add I {Deduct) : 

Interest Expenses 

Deprec1at1on 

Share of Profit 

Operating Profit I (Loss) before Working Cap1tal Changes 

Add I (Deduct) : 

(Increase) I Decrease 1n Inventories 

(Increase) I Decrease in loans and Advances 

Increase I (Decrease) in Trade Payables and other habihties 

Income tax paid 

Net Cash Flow in the course of operating activities 

Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 

II Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Share of Profit 

Proceeds from Long Term Investments 

Net Cash Flow in the course of Investing activi t ies 

Cash Flow from Financing Activ;ties: 

Ill Inflow I (Outflow) on account of: 

Unsecured loans Borrowed (net) 

Interest Pa1d 

Net Cash Flow in the course of Financing activities 

Net Increase I (Decrease) 1n Cash and Cash Equivalents (I + II + Ill) 
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beg1nmng of the Year 

Cash and Cash Equ1valents at the end of the Year 

Reconcil ition of cash and cash equilvalent (Refer note 8) 

Cash on hand 

Balances w ith banks 

1n current account 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fmancial statements. 

As per anached report of even date 

For M. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATE':;S~~~ .... 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ~\. & "\,s 

FRN: 1o3~s~ I :o~ MUMBA:o%.l} 
~- · M. No. m 

~ 038823 Co • • 
MUKESH K. GOHEL ~« I';~ 
PROPRIETOR ~~~ 
M.No.: 038823 ~ 
IJ.])ft-1 : .2o&>3SB£.5' AAAAF f/>2~f() 

Place: Mumba1 

Date: 20th November,2020 

2019 - 2020 

~ 

53,126 

-
-

(26,94,250) 

{1,35,268) 

47,01,979 

1,18,426 

{58,46,592) 

2,743 

2,43,996 

2018 - 2019 

~ 

38,09,105 14,526 

1,68,080 

53,126 1,68,080 

38,62,231 1,82,606 

{34,16,145) 

1,14,488 

85,78,456 

18,72,461 52,76,799 

57,34,692 54,59,405 

3,14,969 

(57,93,466) 

(57,28,166) {54, 78,497) 

6,526 (19,092) 

2,40,211 2,59,303 

2,46,737 240,211 

2,743 

2,46,739 1111111111111111 II 2,40,211 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

HEMANT GULATI 

DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00408734 

~ 
Director 

DIN:03142640 



YANTII BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

. STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

(~} 

Equity Share Capital Reserves and Surplus 

Equity Share Capital Retained Earnings Tota l 

Balance at March 31, 2018 5,00,000 (71,07,687) (66,07,687) 

Total Comprehensive Income for - 14,526 14,526 
the year 
Balance at March 31, 2019 5,00,000 (70,93,162) (65,93,162) 

Total Comprehensive Income for - 38,09,105 38,09,105 
the year 

Balance at March 31, 2020 5,00,000 (32,84,057) (27,84,057) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per attached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

ForM. K. GOHEL & ASSOCIATES ~ CHARTERED ACCOUNT AN & 
4 

FRN: 103256W 
~~\. S,s 

0 00 0 ,. 
HEMANT GULATI 

~ 
lli MUMBAI ~ ) 

. M. No. m 
~ DIRECTOR ~ 038823 (/) 

u~ 
* * 
~.11. ~i~ DIN: 00408734 

MUKESH K. GOHEL ~ArPJ!. (~ :)) 
~u 

PROPRIETOR - . 
: 

Uj) J.N . ,20D.JrB~AAAAF8.UrO ~~ * .()'y 

Place: Mumbai --=-

Date: 20th November,2020 Director 
DIN: 03142640 



JYANTTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

J ,._OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

Note I. S~tement ofSI~tnlflcant Accountln~t Polldes. 

1.1 CompanyOvervtew 
Yanttl Buildcon Private Limited is an Private Umited Company domiciled In India, Incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged into real estate 
business specializing In construction and development of lnfotech Parks, Cyber Parks, Business Parks, SEZ as well as sale and lease of commercial, industrial properties and 
other similar works. 

1.2 The financial statements a rc approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 20th November, 2020. 

Note 2. Sl~tnlflcant Account1n11 Policies followed by the Company 

I. Oas is of pre paration of financial Statements 

II) CompLiance with 1nd AS 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the 'lnd AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate 
Affaors pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act') read with of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant 
provoslons of the Act. 

The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the peroods presented In the financial statements. 

(II) lllstorlcal cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following: 
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value; 
2) assets held for sale- measured at lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell; 
3) defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; 

(Ill) Current non-current class ification 
All I he assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current. wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Company as per the guidance set out in 
Schedule Ill to the Act Operating cycle fo r the bus iness activities of the Company covers the duration of the project/ contract including the defect liability period, wherever 
applicable. and extends upto the realisation of receivables (including retention monies, if any) within the credit period normally applicable to the respective project 

11. Significant accounting Judgements, estimates a nd assumptions 
The prepa ration of fina ncial statements In conrormlly with the recognition and measurement principles of lnd AS requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported balances of revenues, expenses. assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent 
liabohtles. Uncertaonly about these assumptions and estimates could result In outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities 
affected In future periods. 

a) Judgements 
Classlflcatlon of property 
The company determines whether a property Is classified as Investment property or Inventory property. Investment property comprises land and buildings that are 
not occupied substantially for use by, or in the operations of, the company, nor for sale in the ordinary course of business, but are held pro manly to earn rental income 
and capital appreciation. These buildings are substantially rented to tenants and not intended to be sold In the ordinary course ofbusoness. lnventory comprises 
property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of bus mess. Pnncipally, these are properties that the company develops and Intends to sell before or on completoon 
of construction. 

b) Estimates and assumptions 
The key assumptions concerning the future a nd other key sources of estimation uncertainly at the reporting date, that have a sognificant nsk of causing a materoal 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and esllmdtes on 
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however. may change due to 
market changes or circumstances arising that a re beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reOected In the assumptions when they occur. 



Ill. Revenue rcCOJlniUon 

Revenue Recognition l~cvenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the considcrdtlon which the 
Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. 

A. Revenue from Construction Activity: 

Revenue from the sale of properties I Oats/ commemal premises I units In a project are recognised when the company satisfies performance obligations at a 
pomt In time le when control is transferred to the customer which is usually on giving soft possession for fitouts or actual possession to the customer 
Revenue Is measured based on the transaction price, which Is the consideration, adjusted for discounts, rebates, price concessions, returns and financing 
component if any, as specified In the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the governmenL Where the total 
project cost Is estimated to exceed total revenues from the project. the loss Is recognized Immediately In the Statement of profit and Loss AccounL 
Amount received as Advance from customers on Invoicing I raising demand letters are classified as Contract Liabilities. The company's right to consideration in 
exchange forgoods or services that the company has transferred to the customer are classiOed as receivables. 
The Company has adopted lnd AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers, with effect from April!, 2018. lnd AS 115 establishes principles for reporting 
Information about the nature, amoun~ timrng and uncertamty of revenues and cash flows arising from the contracts w1th its customers and replaces lnd AS 18 
"Revenue" and Guidance Note on "Accounting for Real Estate transactions" for cnt1t1es to whom lnd AS Is applicable. 

B. lnteresllncome: 

Interest Income Including Income arising on other instruments recognised on time proportion basis using the effective Interest rate method. 

C. Others: 
Other revenues/ Incomes and costs 1 expenditure are accounted on accrual, as they are earned or incurred. 

IV. Property plant and equipment, Investment property and depreciation I ammortlsatlon 

A. Tangible fixed assets arc stated at cost of acquisition or construction including attributable Interest and finance cost. if any till the date of acquisition/installation 
of the assets, less accumulated depreciation/amortisation and accumulated Impairment losses. If any. 

B. Depreciation Is provided based on useful life of the assets as prescribed In Schedule II to the Companies Ac~ 2013. Depreciation on additions to assets or on 
sale/disposal of assets is calculated pro-rata from the month of such addition, or upto the month of such sale/disposal, as the case may be. 

Asset Category 

Computer 

V. Taxation 

I. Current Tax 

Estimated useful life (In Years) 

3 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported In the financial statement of profit and loss 
becauseof !tentS of Income or expense that are taxable or deductible In other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is 
calculated using rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the e nd of the report1ng period. 

In case the Company Is liable to ~ay income tax ufs 115JB of Income Tax A~ 1961 (i.e. MAT). the amount of tax paid In excess of normal income tax IS recognized as an 
asset (MAT Credit entitlement) only if there is convincing evidence for realization of such asset during the specified period. MAT credit entitlement is rrviewt-d at "ach 
Balance Sheet date. 

II. Deferred Tax 

Deferred tax Is recognized on temporary dlfcrences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities In the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases 
used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that 1t Is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. 

The carryong amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities a nd assets a re measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the period in which the liability Is settled or the asset realized, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reOects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner In which the Company expect>. at the end of the 
reporting period, to recover or settle the caroylng amount ofits assets and liabilities. 

Ill. Current a nd deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized In profit or Joss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive Income or directly on "'!Uity, in 
which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized In other comprehensive income or directly In equity respectively. 

VI. Trade and other payables 
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. TrJde and oU1er payalJics are 
presented as current liabilities unless payment Is not due within 12 months after reporting period. For trade and other payablcs maturing within one )Car fro1n the 
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these Instruments. 

VII. Trade r eceivable 
A receivable Is classified as o 'trade receivable' If It Is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold or services rendered In the normal course of business. 
Trade receivables are rrcognised Initially at fair value and subsequently mea>ured at amorused cost using the EIR method, Jess prov1slon for lmpaormenL 

VIII. Borrowings and Borrowing costs 
Borrowing are lmtally recogmsed at Net offtransation cost oncurred and measured at amortised cost Any difference between the proceeds (net of transat1on costs) 
and the redemption amount is recogmsed In statetment of profit and loss over ther perood of the borrowongs usmg the effective Interest method 

Interests and other borrowmg costs 1ncluded under finance co•"tS calculated as per effect1ve Interest rate attributable to qualifying assets. which takes substantial 
perood of tome to get ready for Its Intended use are allocated as part of the cost of construction 1 development of such assets. Such allocation os suspended durmg 
extended periods In which active development Is Interrupted and, no costs are allocated once all such acnv1t1es 3re substantially complete. lnvestmentuocome earned 
on the temporary Investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifyong a>Stts is deducted from the borrowing costs ellg1ble for cap1tahsat1on. 
Other borrowing costs are charged to the Profit and Loss AccounL 



IX. ""mlng$ per Share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dovldmg the net profit or loss for the year attribut;Jble to equi!y shareholders by the weighted average number of equo!y 
shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equl!y shares outstanding during the year Is adjusted for events of bonus Issue, if any. 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equl!y shareholders and the weighted average number o 
shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of ali dllutive potential equi!y shares. 

X. Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the Indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effe•ts of transactions of a non·cash nature, any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with Investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from 
operating. Investing and financing activities of the company are segregated. 

XI. Cash and Casb Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent In the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short·term deposits with an original maturi!y or three months or less, which are 
subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose or the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short·term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts 
as they are consodered an Integral part of the Company's cash management 

XII. Provisions, continge nt llabllllles and conllngent assets 

A provision Is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result or past event and it is probable that an outflow of embodying 
economic benefits or resources will be required to settle a reliably assessable obligation. Provisions are determined based on best estimate required to settle each 
obligation at each balance sheet date. If the effect or the time value of money Is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when 
appropnate, the risks specofoc to the liabili!y. When dlscountmg Is used, the oncrease in the provision due to the passage of time Is recognised as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be conformed by the occurrence or non· 
occurrence of one or more uncertain fu ture events not wholly wothin the control of the Company. A contingent liabili!y also arises, in r•re cases, where a liablli!y cannot 
be recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. 

ContlngentasseiS are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. 

XIII. Recent accounting pronouncements 
lndAS 116 
On 30th March 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified lnd AS 116l.eases, under Companies (Ind ian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 
which Is applicable woth effect from 1st April, 2019 

lnd AS 116 seiS out the principles for the recognltion,measurement. presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract I.e., the lessee and the lessor. hod 
AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting model for lessee and requires the lessee to recognize right of use asseiS and lease liabilities for ali leases with a term of 
more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is low value In nature. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement or profit and loss. lnd AS 
116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements In lnd AS 17. 

As per lnd AS 116, the lessee needs to recognise depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on lease liabilities In the statement of profit and loss. The lease 
payments made by the lessee under the lease arrangement will be adjusted against the lease liabilities. 

The Company Is evaluating the requirement of the amendment and the Impact on the financial statements. The effect on adoption of IND AS 1161s expected to be 
lnslgnoficent 

.. 



VANTil BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

4. Property, plant and equipment 

Freehold land Computers Total 
Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at March 31, 2018 2,92,000 97,882 3,89,882 
1\dditions - -
Disposals - - -
Balance at March 31, 2019 2,92,000 97,882 3,89,882 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at March 31, 2018 - 97,882 97,882 

Lllminated on disposal of assets -
Depreciation expense - - -
Balance at March 31, 2019 - 97,882 97,882 

Carrying amount as at 31st March 2019 2,92,000 - 2,92,000 

Freehold land Computers Total 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at March 31, 2019 2,92,000 97,882 3,89,882 

Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 2,92,000 97,882 3,89,882 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at March 31, 2019 - 97,882 97,882 

l:hmmated on disposal of assets 

Depreciation expense - - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 - 97,882 97,882 
Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 2,92,000 - 2,92,000 

Freehold land Computers Total 

Cost or deemed cost 

Balance at March 31, 2019 2,92,000 97,882 3,89,882 

Additions - - -

Disposals - - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 2,92,000 97,882 3,89,882 

Accumulated depreciation 

Balance at March 31, 2019 - 97,882 97,882 

Elimmated on disposal of assets -
Depreciation expense - - -
Balance at March 31, 2020 - 97,882 97,882 

Carrying amount as at 31st March, 2020 2,92,000 - 2,92,000 



YANni BU!LDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOlES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

As at As at 
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

~ ~ 

5 Current Tax Assets (Net) 
Advance Tax pa1d 1,10,901 1,10,901 
Less: Prov1s1on for Tax . . 

Total 1,10,901 1,10,901 

6 Inventories 
Inventories (lower of cost or net realisable value) 
· Incomplete projects 57,99,80,622 57,72,86,372 

Total 57,99,80,622 57,72,86,372 

7 Cash and cash equivalents 
Balances w1th banks: 
· in current accounts 2,43,996 2,37,468 

Cash on hand 2,743 2,743 
Total 2,46,739 2,40,211 

8 Other Current assets 
Current 
Advances Recoverable 2,35,268 1,00,000 

Total 2,35,268 1,00,000 



YANlTI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

As at As at 
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

~ ~ 

9 Equity share capital 

Authorised Share Capital: 
50,000 (P.Y. 50,000) Equ1ty Shares of ~ 10/- each 5,00,000 5,00,000 

Issued and subscribed capital comprises: 

50,000 (As at March 31, 2019: 50,000) Equ1ty Shares of ~ 10/-
each fully pa1d up 5,00,000 5,00,000 

5,00,000 5,00,000 

9.1 Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning 
and at the end of reporting year 

Balance at April 1, 2018 50,000 50,000 
/\dd. Issued dunng the year - -
Less: Bought back dunng the year - -

Balance at March 31, 2019 50,000 50,000 

Add : Issued during the year - -
Les~: Bought back dunng the year - -

Balance at March 31, 2020 50,000 50,000 

9.2 Details of shares held by each shareholders holding more than 5% shares 
As at 31 March, 2020 Asat31March,2019 

No of shares held 
% No of shares held o/o holding 

holding 

Fully paid equity shares 
Hubtown Um1ted w1th beneficiary holders 50,000 100% 50,000 100% 

Total 50,000 100% 50,000 0% 

9.3 The company has a single class of equ1ty shares having a par value of n o;-per share. Each holder of equ1ty share is ent1tled to one vote per share 

. The company declares and pays d1v1dend m 1nd1an rupees. The d1v1dend proposed by the Board of D1rectors IS subject to the approval of 
shareholders 1n the ensumg annual general meetmg. 

10 Other Equity 
Equity Component of Financial Instruments - -
Retained Earn1ng (32,84,057) (70,93,162) 

Total (32,84,057) (70,93,162) 

Retained Earnings 
Balance at the beginning of the year (70,93,162) (71,07,688) 

Profit attributable to the owners of the company 38,09,105 14,526 

Balance at the end of the year (32,84,057) (70,93,162) 



VANTil BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

11 Other financial liabilit ies 
Current 
Interest accrued and due on borrowmgs - -
Busoness advances from related party (Refer Footnote) 42,54,59,626 42,34,39,626 
Other payables 6,57,110 84,610 

Total 42,61,16.736 42,35,24,236 
Footnote: 

The Company has receoved onterest free advances from ot's Parent Company, consodenng the nature of busmcss m whoch the Company operate, tne 
amounts so receoved are considered to be repayable on call I demand as the repayment period of such amounts so receoved os not measureable 
precosely. 

12 Borrowings 
Current 

Unsecured 

(I) Loans repayable on demand: 

- From Related Party (Refer Footnote A) - -
- From Company (Refer Footnote B) 93,25,982 92,07,556 

Total 93,25,982 92,07,556 

Footnote: 
A) Loan from do rector are mterest free and are repayable on demand 

B) Unsecured loan from company are received at the rate of C.Y. 19.10%- (P.Y. 19.10%) and are repayable on demand. 

13 Trade payables 

Dues to MSME - -
Dues to Others 14,58, 78,376 14,58,46,503 

Total 14,58, 78,376 14,58,46,503 

Footnote: 
As per informatoon avaolable with the Comapny regarding dues to Micro, Small and Medoum Enterprises as defined under the Micro Small Medoum 

Enterpnses Development, Act 2006 (MSMED Act), none of the suppliers of the Comapny are regostered under MSMED Act, and the same has been 

relied upon by the audotors. 

14 Other liabilities 

Current 
Other payables : 
Overdrawn bank balances as per books of accounts - -

- Provision for Audot Fees 30,000 15,000 

- Statutory dues 22,98,492 60,29,351 

Total 23,28,492 60,44,351 



VANTil BUILOCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

15 Revenue from operations ~ ~ 

Other operatmg revenue : - -
- Sundry credit balances appropriated - 2.04,616 
Excess Prov1s1on Wntten Back 38,88,941 25,422 

Total 38,88,941 2,30,038 

16 Changes In Inventories Of Incomplete Projects 

Opening Inventory : 
Incomplete proJects 57,72,86,372 57,38, 70,227 

57,72,86,372 57,38, 70,227 

Closing Inventory : 
Incomplete projects 57,99,80,622 57,72,86,372 

57,99,80,622 57,72,86,372 

Total (26,94,250) (34,16,145) 

17 Finance Costs 

Interest on F1xed loans - -
Delayed/ penalmterest on loans and statutory dues 53,126 1,68,080 

Total 53,126 1,68,080 

18 Other Expenses 

Rates and taxes 2,64,000 -
Bank Charges 4,854 5,049 

Directors' fees and travelling expenses - 90,505 

Legal and professional fees 21,50,250 29,49,250 

Sundry Balances Wntten off - 1,18,731 

Other Expenses 3,01,856 3,18,988 

Total 27,20,960 34,82,523 

Footnote: 
Aud1t Fees 15,000 15,000 

GSTon above 2,700 2,700 

Total 17,700 17,700 



YANITI BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMIT!:D 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

Year ended Year ended 
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

f f 
19 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Ba~ic and Diluted Earnings Per Share 0.29 0.29 

Basic and Diluted EPS 
rhe earnmgs and we1ghted average number of equ1ty shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnmgs per share are as 

follows 

Year Ended Year Ended 

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

~ f 

Profit for the year attnbutable to the owners of the 

Corr.pany 38,09,10S 14,S26 

Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted 38,09,105 14,526 

earnings per share 

Year Ended Year Ended 

31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 

We1ghted average number of equ1ty shares for the 
purposes of bas1c earnmgs per share 

Ord1nary 50,000 50,000 

Total 50,000 50,000 



VANTil BUILOCON PRIVATE LIMITED 
11;0 fES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31Sl MARCH 2020 

20 Related Party Disclosures lAs per IND AS - 24) 

A Name of the related parties and related part1es relationship 
HOLDING COMPANY 

Form on which Company is a partner 

Key Managenal Personnel 

Ill Others Significant Influence 

Footnote: 

Hubtown llm1ted 

Ml s R1s1ng Glory Developers (upto 31st July 2018) 

Hemant Gulat1 

Cotygold Management Services Private L1m1ted 

Related party relauonshtp are 1dent1fied by the Company and relied upon by the Aud1tors 

~- TransactiOn w1th Related Parties -

Sr. 
No. 

Nature of Transaction 

Busoness advances taken/ recovered I adJUSted 

Hubtown Lom.ted 

Business Advance given/repaid/adjust ed 

Hubtown Limited 

iii InterCompany payables 
Cttygold Management servtces Pvt Limited 

1v On Behalf payments made (Including reimbursement of Expenses) 

Hemant Gulat1 

On Behalf payments received/adjusted 

Heman! Gulatl 

v• Share of Profit/Loss from Partnerships I Jo1nt Ventures 
Mls R1s1ng Glory Developers (Jo.nt Venturer) 

v11 lnvestemnt sold from Partnerships I Joint Ventures 
Mls R1s1ng Glory Developers (Jo1nt Venturer) 

Footnote: 
PreVIous Year fi ures are g1ven 1n brackets 

Sa lance outstanding 

Balance Payables 
Hubtown Lom1ted (Hold1ng Company) 

C1tygoid Management serv1ces Pvt Lom1ted (Others S1gn1ficant Influence) 

Heman! Gulat1(Key Management Personnel) 

Mls R1s1ng Glory Developer> (upto 31st July 2018) 

Holding 
Company 

43.10,000 
(3,43,33,405) 

22,90,000 

(3,14,01, 797) 

1-l 

H 

1-) 

H 

Others Significant 
Influence 

H 

(-) 

4,052 
(2,000) 

1-) 

1-) 

(-) 

1-) 

Key Management 
Personnel of the Entity 

1-) 

(·) 

1-) 

5.07,218 

12.92,024) 

5,23,218 
(2,82,430) 

H 

(-) 

As at 
31st March, 2020 

42,54,59,626 

4,052 

42.611 

6 57,JJO 

Firm in which Company 
is a partner 

H 

1-l 

H 

1-) 

1-) 

181,054) 

l 10,000i 

As at 
31st March, 2019 

42,34,39,626 

26 6JJ 

82.JJO 



VANTil BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR lHE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

21 Contingent L1ability 
The company does not have any contmgent hab1hty as at the balance sheet date as cert1fied by the management and relied upon by the auditors, 
as otherv.1se ment1oned below: 

Statute and nature of 
Section 

Financ1al 
Disputed Dues Amount Paid 

Balance disputed Forum where dispute 

dues Year dues payable is pending 

Income Tax 143(3) 2011-12 40.69,952 61,430 40,08,522 
Income Tax Appellate 

Tribunal 

Total 40,69,952 61,430 40,08,522 

Further interest I penalty that may accrue on original demands are not ascertainable, at present The Company has taken necessary steps to 
protect 1ts pos1t1on with respect to the above referred cla1ms, whiCh 1n Its op1mon, based on professional I legal advice, are not sustainable. 

22 Capital Management 

The ent1ty manages 1ts cap1tal to ensure that the entity w1ll be able to continue as a gomg concern while max1m1s1ng the return to stakeholders 

through opt1m1sat1on of debt eQuity ratio. 

rhe capital structure of the entity cons1sts of net debt ( Borrow1ngs offset by cash and bank balances) and total eau1tV of the company 



VANTil BUILDCON PRIVATE LIMITED 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 

23 Financial Risk Management Objectives 

The company IS exposed to market nsk, cred1t nsk and liqu1d1ty nsk. The company's management oversees the management of these nsks. 
rhe company's board of directors rev1ew and agrees polic1es for managing each of these risks summarized below: 

i) Market Risk 
Interest rate nsk 

Company has rece1ved intrest free advances and 1t rece1ves mterest free funds for 1ts operatmg cash flow from 1ts hold1ng company as and 

when required (Refer note 10), hence the Company IS not exposed to interest risk. 

ii) Credit Risk 
The company 1s not exposed to cred1t nsk from 1ts operatmg act1vit1es. Cred1t nsk from balances with banks and mter corporate loans is 

managed by the company's treasury department 1n accordance w1th the company's policy. 

iii) Liquidity risk 
The companies cashflow requirement are met by funds rece1ved from its holding company. 

24 Trade payable & other current liability are subject to confirmat1on, reconciliation and adjustment 1f any. 

25 The accumulated losses of the company have resulted m complete erosion of the net worth of the company. l he Company'~ management IS 

however of the v1ew that the same eros1on is temporary 1n nature as the company has made certam mvestments m certa1n assets I projects, 
the proceeds of which would, when fructified, result in recovery of the eroded worth of the company. The company to that extend does not 

see the stated eros1on of the net worth as an impediment to 1ts status as a gomg concern. 

26 In the op1n1on of the Board of Directors of the Company, all1tems of Current Assets, lnventones and Loans and Advances contmues to have a 

realizable value of at least tne amounts at wh1ch they are stated m the Balance Sheet. 

27 Prev1ous year's figures have been regrouped I recast wherever necessary. 

1 he accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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